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The Cover Story

The evolution of Green Technology has seen a marked increase in the past few years. From the 

dramatic events at Fukushima, to the wild fluctuations in the crude oil markets, the desire and 

awareness for renewable, sustainable, and safe alternative energy sources has been on a 

marked increase. While the goal of any recycling program is the reduction of waste materials 

and the elimination of toxic catastrophes in the future, rarely has the goal ever intersected with 

each other. As the forerunner in upcoming technological trends, Tex Cycle has chosen to 

embark upon this marriage of cutting-edge breakthroughs and ecological conservation. By 

fulfilling the increasing energy needs of an interconnected world and the desire for 

environmental preservation, Tex Cycle continues to ensure the advancement and support for the 

development and implementation of future Green advancements. As the digital world continues 

to grow and expand into the public consciousness, Tex Cycle is committed to preserving the 

splendour and majesty of the natural world, for a balanced and brighter tomorrow.
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HO SIEW CHOONG
Executive Chairman
67 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Ho Siew Choong was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad (“Tex Cycle Technology”) on 13 
May 2005. He obtained a Diploma in Graphic Reproduction from London College of Printing, United Kingdom in1974 
and Post Award Studies (graphic reproduction) in 1975. Upon his return from the United Kingdom he joined Metro-
Engravers Sdn. Bhd (“Metro-Engravers”) and was involved in all areas of business management such as Human 
Resource, Finance, Marketing, Research and Development, Sales and Distribution. He was appointed Chairman of 
Metro-Engravers in 2000. He is the person responsible for advancing Metro-Engravers to a highly advanced field of 
pre-print electronic system. He was appointed as a Director in Tex Cycle Sdn. Bhd. (“Tex Cycle”) in 1995 and has since 
been involved in various aspects of Tex Cycle’s business which includes Administration and Finance. He is also one of 
the members of Tex Cycle’s Research and Development (“R&D”) team which is working to enhance, improve, design 
& develop Tex Cycle’s methods of recovery and recycling new products and services. He attended all five (5) meetings 
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

PERIASAMY A/L SINAKALAI
Managing Director
Member of Remuneration Committee
68 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Periasamy A/L Sinakalai was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology on 13 May 2005. He obtained a Senior 
Cambridge Certificate in 1968. He started his career in The New Straits Times Group in 1969 at the young age of 18. 
After 10 years of service in The New Straits Times Group he left his position as a Production Planner to join Papyrus 
Printing, a subsidiary of the Star Publications for two (2) years. He then joined Malaysian British Assurance Berhad and 
was promoted to the position of a Production Manager in 1979. His tenure in Malaysian British Assurance Berhad lasted 
for about five (5) years before he left in 1985 to join Tex Cycle as a Marketing Manager. S. Periasamy subsequently 
became a shareholder of Tex Cycle and was appointed the Executive Director of Tex Cycle on 21 April 1986. In addition 
to his role as a Marketing Manager, he has also been directly involved in Tex Cycle’s Administration and is an integral 
part of Tex Cycle’s R&D team. He was awarded the Pingat Masyarakat Cemerlang (PMC) by the Yang Dipertua Negeri 
Sembilan on 25 October 2001. He is the current Secretary for the Association of Scheduled Waste Recyclers, Malaysia 
(ANSWERS). He attended all five (5) meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

HO SIEW CHEONG
Executive Director
57 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Ho Siew Cheong was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology on 13 May 2005. He graduated with a Bachelor 
of Science from the University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne, United Kingdom in 1985. Upon graduation, he started his 
career as a Site Engineer in General Fire Fighting Sdn. Bhd. He was later appointed as a Sales Manager in Metro 
Engravers in 1987. In 1995 he founded Metro Koats and has been responsible for the development and invention 
of all the products of Metro Koats, including camouflage paint and chemical formulae/ solutions for the process of 
treatment of contaminated waste and effluent. Due to his expertise in developing chemical formulae/solution, he has 
been appointed as the technical director of the Group and mainly be responsible for the R&D of the whole Group. He 
attended all four (4) meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

HO SIEW WENG
Executive Director
62 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Ho Siew Weng was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology on 13 May 2005. He was appointed to the Board 
of Tex Cycle Sdn Bhd on 13 August 2001. He has been directly involved in various areas of Tex Cycle’s business 
management particularly Marketing, Sales and Distribution. Prior to his appointment to the Board of Tex Cycle, he was 
attached to Metro-Engravers and was involved mainly in the Sales and Marketing Department. Tex Cycle has benefited 
from his experience in marketing and sales, where his job function includes building a sales and marketing team with 
representatives based in different locations to reap the full benefit of local knowledge. He is also in charge of exploring 
new business potential in both the regulated and non-regulated waste generating industries. He attended all five (5) 
meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
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RAVINDRAN MARKANDU, FCA
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of Audit Committee
Member of Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee
69 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Ravindran Markandu was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle on 1 March 2007. He is a Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1976 and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 
His previous employments include ten years with the UMW Group as Group Accountant initially and finally as Group 
Financial Controller of UMW Toyota Motor Sdn. Bhd., seven years with the Upali Group, the last position held being 
Executive Director, Malaysian Operations.  In 1993 he accomplished a management buy-in of Bright Packaging Industry 
Berhad and successfully had the company listed on the Bursa Malaysia (Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange) in 1995.   He 
left Bright Packaging in 1998, after having sold a substantial portion of his stake. He now provides consultancy and 
investment advisory services and through a family company he is involved in real estate investment in affordable and 
luxury property development. He is also involved with a number of not-for-profit organisations, being a past Honorary 
Secretary-General of the Kuala Lumpur and Selangor Indian Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Honorary Treasurer 
of the Bukit Damansara House Owners’ Association, and a committee member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in England and Wales Members’ Society, Malaysian Chapter. He attended all five (5) meetings held during the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018.

ALAGASAN A/L VARATHARAJOO
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of Nominating Committee 
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
67 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology on 31 October 2011. He started his 
career as a Printing Apprentice with the New Straits Times Group in 1970. He left for England to obtain a Certificate in 
Photolithographic at the London College of Printing in 1973. Soon after his return to Malaysia in 1975, he joined Rajiv 
Printers as a Production Supervisor. In 1982 he re-joined The New Straits Times Group as a Production Supervisor 
and retired after twenty five years as a Senior Production Manager. He has been a member of the Institute of Printing, 
United Kingdom; Malaysia Branch since 1997 and at present hold the post as their Honorary Treasurer as well as a 
Lecturer cum Trainer for the Institute and conducts various printing courses. In addition, he’s one of the Directors of 
Print Media Training Consult Sdn Bhd and Sole Proprietor of Alnprint Enterprise which is involved in the sales and 
marketing of printing consumables. He attended all five (5) meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 
2018.

CHAN JEE PENG
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman of Remuneration Committee 
Member of Audit Committee and Nominating Committee
39 years of age, Malaysian, Male

Chan Jee Peng was appointed to the Board of Tex Cycle Technology on 8 October 2018. He has close to 18 years of 
audit and financial management experience. He started his career with 2 of the Big Four accounting firms and has held 
senior financial position in public listed companies. Subsequently, he joined a mid-tier accounting firm and rose to the 
ranks of an Executive Director and then joined UHY Malaysia as their Audit Partner. He was involved in various audit 
of Public Listed Companies, multinational companies and Local Government Agencies. He was in charge of many 
Reporting Accountants assignments for various corporate exercise of Public Listed Companied including Initial Public 
Offering restructuring and due diligence assignment. Currently, he is the Managing Partner of SFAI Malaysia which 
provides assurance, tax and advisory services. He attended one (1) meetings held during the financial year ended 31 
December 2018.

Additional Information on Directors

Save for Ho Siew Choong, Ho Siew Weng and Ho Siew Cheong who are siblings, none of the Directors has any family 
relationship with any Directors and/or major shareholders of the Company. None of the Directors has any conflict of 
interest with the Company or has any conviction for offences within the past ten (10) years other than traffic offences, 
if any.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Statement aims to present the Executive Directors and key management’s analytical overview of the Group’s 
operations and fi nancial performance for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2018, in addition to other statements 
disclosed in this annual report such as the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls and the audited 
Financial Statements. Analytical disclosures made here are based on available management information, which may not 
be specifi cally audited, and are made to the extent where they do not compromise competitively sensitive information. 
This section may also contain opinions and forward-looking views, and as such, user’s discretion is advised.

COMPANY PROGRESSION

Throughout the last thirty-four years, TEX CYCLE has grown signifi cantly. Starting from humble beginnings, the 
Company has enlarged into a well-established Public Listed Company boasting a strong portfolio of assets, market 
composition and people connected by shared values as well as common goals. 

The Group’s core business aspiration has expanded tremendously over the years due to our on-going endeavour to be 
the preferred schedule waste recycling company in the region. As of today, TEX CYCLE is entrusted by the Malaysian 
Department of Environment (“DOE”) to treat 31 types of scheduled waste codes within the country, compared the 
singular licensed scheduled waste code at its inception. Up-to-date, TEX CYCLE has over 5,500 registered customers, 
with the numbers steadily increasing.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
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In present times, where scheduled waste management activities are the foremost consideration at a national and 
international level, the spot light on our activities shines brighter than ever, especially with the great support from the 
Malaysian Government.

Diving into more specific issues is our core purpose, as we manage the impact of our activities on the environment, 
driven by an aspiration to transcend the trade-off between scheduled waste recycling improvements in living standards 
and environmental degradation. Our aim is to recycle scheduled waste by finding ways to reuse them that cause 
no long-term damage to the planet or it’s people. Basically, most of the scheduled wastes collected for treatment 
are naturally bio-degradable, consisting of cotton fabrics, rubber, activated carbon and wood. These wastes, when 
decontaminated, will be manufactured into fuel pellets which may be consumed as a renewable energy fuel source.

Over the years, we had performed a large number of improvements or upgrades on our facilities, specifically to minimise 
the emissions and discharge from our own scheduled waste treatment operations. For instance, we have implemented 
programs that reuse recovered water and heat from our operations, which results in a broader global reduction target.

OBJECTIVES

TEX CYCLE, being one of the major players in the country’s recycling and recovery of scheduled waste industry, is 
committed to promoting and assisting the initiatives laid out by the Malaysian Department of Environment (“DOE”). 
To abide with the recent National Policy Statement on Scheduled Wastes which lays out Government policies for the 
control and management of hazardous waste, our business model is undergoing some development processes to cater 
for the national standards as follows:

• Facilitation in the development of new and upgraded infrastructure for hazardous waste required both to ensure 
sufficient capacity and meet expected increments of hazardous waste. TEX CYCLE embarks on continuous Research 
and Development (“R&D”) projects and takes every effort to run the business profitably and responsibly by seeking up-
to-date technologies and modern state-of-the-art equipment and upgrading its operations to attain more effectiveness 
and efficiency in all that it does.

• Promotion of more waste to be reused, recycled and recovered and amounts sent for disposal are minimized. Being in 
a competitive marketplace, it is essential for our professional teams to manage our customer’s satisfaction proficiently 
and proactively. This objective is upheld through the loyal and professional approach to engage our exceptional 
scheduled waste management services and reliable products, while at the same time stimulating customer’s mind sets 
to support our business model.

• Hazardous waste products pose as an inherent threat to human health and the environment, making it important that 
there are adequate facilities to allow the waste to be managed in ways that reduce this risk. The Group believes in 
sharing our resources with our stakeholder of utmost priority, namely our Employees. Hence, we pursue our mission 
with an unrelenting commitment to ensure that our Employees have a secure working environment and can return to 
their families safely because of the heavy investments made in relation to safety and health measures. 

• Raising awareness about other environmental benefits, such as reducing the amount of virgin material required 
for manufacturing and saving more natural resources. This has been widely addressed by our years of Corporate 
Responsibility initiatives to preserve the future generation through various projects, collaborations, exhibitions and 
awareness programs that instil the importance of caring for the environment. 

RISK FACTORS

Risk plays a part in all our lives. As a society or business, we need to take risks to grow and develop. From energy to 
infrastructure, supply chains to airport security, hospitals to housing, effectively managed risks help societies achieve. 
In our fast paced world, the risks we have to manage evolve quickly. We need to make sure we manage risks so that 
we minimise their threats and maximise their potential.

As such, with the Group’s pivotal interest to identify and manage significant risk, we have designed and implemented 
a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management Policy (the Policy) which forms part of the Company’s internal control 
and corporate governance best practice which are further elaborated under the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Controls. 

Some of the major risk being identified, monitored and mitigated severely by the Group on a day-to-day basis are 
elaborated further hereon.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT

FIRE

In our core recycling and recovery business, without a doubt the biggest risk which TEX CYCLE faces day-to-day is fire 
risk. Fires involving hazardous wastes can bring significant harm to people and the environment:

-There is the risk of death and/or serious injury and health mutilation from high thermal energy and smoke inhalation

-Combustion products, even those from non-toxic materials, release airborne pollutants which can root short and 
long term effects on human health and the environment

-Fire water run-offs can passage pollutants into drainage systems, rivers and lakes, groundwater and soil, 
threatening water supplies, public health, wildlife and recreational use

-Explosions, sparks and projectiles can harm people and spread any fire

-Substantial property damage and subsequent financial losses 

As part of our business strategy and planning, we have minimised this risk via a qualified safety and health department, 
whereby the safety officers are daily monitoring and improving the existing safety features within the factory areas, 
especially in the event of a fire. We also have our annual safety audits done by the Department of Occupational Safety 
and Health Malaysia (“DOSH”) and BOMBA. We have also equipped all staffs with adequate in-house awareness 
seminars and practical trainings with the assistance of BOMBA. Nonetheless, we do have in place a fire fighting and 
rescue team as means of immediate response in the event of a fire outbreak.

The Executive Directors and Key Management takes this risk as a priority and since commencement of operations are 
committed to investing in fire safety equipments as well as other safety aspects of the Group. 

WORK HAZARDS 

Safety is always a major concern to all industries especially with the booming of more sophisticated and complicated 
technologies. Work hazard or injuries are very prone to our kind of industry whereby the company deals in hazardous 
scheduled wastes. Tex Cycle do employ quite a significant number of general workers to run the daily production 
operations. All staffs have been trained and equipped with the necessary safety measures despite which, mishaps do 
come along occasionally due to negligence of the workers just as the saying goes “to err is human”. 

As a result, the downtime encountered from these mishaps may cause risk to the business in terms of cost and other 
non-financial areas. Same as for fire risk, we have minimised this risk via a qualified safety and health department, 
whereby the safety officers are daily monitoring and improving the existing safety features within the factory areas to 
avoid such mishaps. The production supervisors are always putting out an eagle eye on the workers and constantly 
conducting trainings in house to ensure the workers are updated with all relevant precaution measures to be adhered 
to during production hours.

PRICE WAR 

Although a company can maintain profit margins in a downturn by lowering perceived prices, the risk is high that 
competitors will reduce their actual prices, thereby starting a price war. Price wars or the pricing strategy tank battles, 
can easily turn into wars of abrasion in which everyone loses.

In a growing age of awareness onto treatment of scheduled wastes, competition will always be continuously evolving 
as a result of new players in the market. Intrinsically, TEX CYCLE is always on the move to monitor and restructure its 
logistic, marketing and production teams’ effectiveness and efficiency in pursuit to achieve economies of scale to fight 
the price wars. Internal marketing strategies are also in place to mitigate this tough risk battle. In the long run, these will 
be able to comprehend rising cost of running the business itself.

CHANGES IN REGULATIONS

With the ever sprouting green technology industry, legislations and regulations are deemed to kick in as protection 
from violation of certain rights and processes for the betterment of all stakeholders. Environmental related regulations 
attempt to protect public health and the environment from pollution by industry and development. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT

The environmental related regulators, be it locally or internationally, have sought to develop methods for collecting 
interpretable, quantitative information about the costs and benefits of environmental regulations in areas where 
compliance imposes a financial burden, awareness of the health risks of non-compliance is lower, and officials are less 
trusting of the data on which regulations are based. 

Hence, this may affect the schedule waste management businesses in the country depending on the laws passed. 
Some laws could impact adversely on the existing technologies and marketing strategies, requiring significant changes 
to be made in eyeing for compliance with those set rulings in line with upgraded environmental quality standards.

For survival in those instances, TEX CYCLE is always in the loop with all possible updates on SIRIM, DOE and 
the Local Town Council Regulations, to keep abreast with latest as well as recommended changes to related legal 
requirements. More so, we will be able to mitigate culture shocks within the company and industry by being up-to-date 
and alert at all times. 

MACHINERIES BREAKDOWN

Tex Cycle possess state-of-the-art facilities in the factory. Many high-tech equipment had been stored in place for a 
much more efficient and environmental friendly output. A major risk is of course machine breakdown time causing a 
slowdown in production rates. Bearing in mind the increasing volume of scheduled waste into the prescribed premises 
of Tex Cycle, a machine breakdown could cause a huge pilling up of scheduled waste to be treated. This in turn 
results in increase in storage space area. To mitigate this huge risk, repairs and maintenance are always on-going to 
avoid devastative breakdowns in an untimely manner. Constant monitoring of equipments are also in practice by the 
engineers to ensure all variable elements are meeting the applicable standards set.  

MILESTONES

Tex Cycle since its existence in 1984 has been in the recycling and recovery industry with its goal to constantly support 
the Government’s initiative in protecting the environment with the following milestones achieved:

	 - 2003, awarded with ISO14001:2004 (constantly achieved till to-date) 

	 - 2004 till 2009, awarded the Prime Minister Hibiscus Award

	 - 2005, listed in the BURSA Malaysia ACE Market 

	 - 2006 & 2008, awarded by the Malaysian Canadian Business Council under the Business Excellence category

	 - 2006 till 2014, been shortlisted several times under the ACCA MaSRA Sustainability Reporting Awards

	 - 2016, 31 scheduled waste codes awarded till to-date by the Malaysian Department of Environment 

	 - 2016, awarded Feed-In-Tariff approval by the Sustainable Energy Development Authority Malaysia to commission 
	   a Renewable Electrical Energy Power Generation

	 - 2017, awarded with the Renewable Energy Power Purchase Agreement with Tenaga Nasional Berhad

	 - 2017, recognition award to TEX CYCLE SDN BHD for Exceptional Performance in Environmental Protection and  
	   Management from Environmental Management & Research Association Malaysia Council (ENSEARCH)

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

FYE 31 December                      2014                  2015                    2016                    2017                  2018

                                                RM’000             RM’000                RM’000               RM’000             RM’000
Revenue                                   22,134               25,945                  31,684                36,195              37,065
Profit before tax                          5,361                 8,112                  16,517                15,398                9,957
Profit after tax                             3,354                 7,374                  15,177                12,847                7,747

Net earnings per                          
share (sen)  		              1.32                   2.93                      5.97                     5.07                  3.05
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REVENUE

During the year of 2018, the Group’s revenue increased marginally by 2%, from RM36.2 million to RM37.1 million as 
a result of moderate sales volume from new customers in the recycling and recovery division. This is in line with the 
Group’s initiatives to widen the existing customer base and provide greater awareness on the waste management 
facilities which the Recycling and Recovery Division (“RRD”) of the Group possess.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT

Improved logistics facilities

In the business world, “time is money”. Hence, timely services have been a key driver in ensuring high customer 
satisfaction and securement of long term contracts. Thus, during the year 2018, the RRD had invested into additional 
transportation facilities and avenues to provide better service to customers. This also includes the recruitment of 
experienced logistics personnel into the RRD in order to fulfi l the division’s aim of improving its’ current logistics planning 
and scheduling system. The logistics team ensures on time service or delivery as well as closely follows through the 
daily scheduling plans. Our prompt services have been key in growing our existing customer base and a pull factor to 
the many new customers that the division has seen, especially in the current fi nancial year.

Strengthening of the marketing team

The RRD had also invested in the recruitment of more experienced marketing personnel as driving forces to boost the 
current sales volume. With the inclusion of these experienced hires from various backgrounds and capabilities, the 
RRD benefi ted from obtaining recurring sales volumes from many industrial companies within the country. 

In addition, the RRD still continues to encourage the sales incentive programme for the marketing personnel with its’ 
objective to provide a sound basis by which the marketing team is motivated and rewarded for achieving and exceeding 
all sales goals as set by the RRD. The incentive plan covers both commissions and bonus for the marketing team 
against set key performance indicators (“KPI”). The KPIs are being evaluated and monitored on a monthly basis with 
the co-operation of the fi nance and marketing departments. This is part of the plan to provide room for improvement to 
all marketing personnel. It is a form of awareness given before the year end hits in for the sole purpose to enable all 
marketing personnel to keep track of their performances and rally towards the year end with higher sales volume as 
set by the RRD.

Among the additional work done performed by all marketing personnel in order to achieve the targeted revenues are 
as follows:

- Kept the RRD constantly informed as to competitive and economic conditions within the country which may affect
  the marketing or sales of the Company Services therein;
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- Furnished the RRD, on a timely basis, with sales call reports, sales forecasts, and such other information pertinent
  to marketing team’s performance;

- Assisted the RRD in obtaining relevant fi nancial information concerning the Company clients and potential clients
  within the country; and

- Made use their best efforts to solicit orders for the services, promoted the sale of the services in a diligent and
  aggressive manner, and forwarded all orders to the Company promptly.

BOTTOM LINE IMPACT

The Group has its profi t before taxation (“PBT”) and profi t after tax (“PAT”) decreased, from RM15.4 million to RM10.0 
million and from RM12.8 million to RM7.7 million respectively. This is mainly due to the one-off fair value gain of 
RM6.2million for the previous fi nancial year and RM3.6million gain from partial MRT acquisition in the previous fi nancial 
year from the Group’s investment property. By excluding these one-off gains, the Group has a year-on-year net fall on 
its’ PBT and PAT of 15% and 21% respectively which is mainly due to the one-off staff cost incurred for the Employees’ 
Share Scheme of RM1.1million and impairment of RM0.7million in accordance with MFRS9 Financial Instruments.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT

Consolidation of production and administrative offi ce team

During the year 2018, the RRD was alert on the rising materials and administrative costs. With that in mind, the 
Executive Directors and Key Management team had decided to streamline or consolidate the majority of the RRD 
productions in one location, Klang. The conclusion was made after a cost-benefi t analysis study and trial runs were 
carried out on the overheads cost savings as a result of the sharing of personnel and equipments with a common 
objective. 

This production consolidation throughout the year, enabled a more coherent monitoring and tracking of the production 
processes. The production team was able to have a proper communication within the production divisions, marketing 
and logistics department. 

These three departments had also innovated a networking tool or avenue, with its’ pivotal intention to share issues 
and solutions to them whereby every department is agreeable as well as kept in the loop. This live networking tool has 
helped tremendously in saving time of personnel from attending separate meetings during operation hours.

In line with the aforementioned, in 2017, the whole administrative and fi nance team was also moved over to Klang 
for the similar reasons and better monitoring of all the teams. In the long run, economies of scale had been achieved 
as a result of this synchronisation work. The offi ce in which all administrative personnel are located at, is built with an 
energy saving and green concept. The offi ce walls are partially designed with recycled materials like wooden pallets 
from our RRD.

Investment in state-of-the-art equipments

There had also been signifi cant upgrades and perusal of newly acquired machineries for the RRD. These investments 
come from various suppliers within the country as well as international level. 

The machineries basically had been engineered upon taking into account of all advises and recommendations from 
international and local suppliers. This has helped in ensuring wastage of resources and time are minimised by a 
signifi cant portion since the machineries are embedded with high capabilities and standards to perform multiple 
production task. These equipments are critical to the RRD to survive plus overcome the price war faced with upcoming 
competitors in the recycling and recovery industry. Not only it is cost saving but also can be categorised as green 
technologies especially with the Group’s mission to support the Malaysian Government’s initiative of promoting a 
greener environment in the country.
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FYE 31 December                      2014                  2015                    2016                    2017                  2018

                                                RM’000             RM’000                RM’000               RM’000             RM’000
Current assets                          17,304               20,931                 26,844                 34,586              38,156
Current liabilities                         3,297                 2,598                   2,693                   3,715                4,583

Net asset per share
(sen)              25.39                 27.78                    33.37                  37.84                 39.98

Shareholders’                           
equity             64,631               70,648                  84,856                  95,834            101,596

Group Ratios

Profi tability

Operational Return on Asset (EBIT/Average Assets)

Return on Equity (Net Earnings/Equity)

Gearing

Debt to Equity Ratio

Valuation

Net Asset per share (RM/share)

Enterprise value/Total comprehensive Income

FYE 2018

8.54%

7.63%

0.18 : 1

0.40

18 times

FYE 2017

14.97%

13.41%

0.19

0.37

16 times

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

Outlined below are key fi nancial ratios of the Group for the current fi nancial year and the preceding fi nancing year for 
comparison in all the key measures on profi tability, liquidity, gearing, and valuation. 
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OUTLOOK

In current challenging times, where the economic situation is still uncertain, many factors could take charge in deciding 
the fate of all future business growth, for instance infl ation. The global economy is one of the biggest external factors 
that will, at some time, potentially affect every business either bearishly or bullishly. Market fl uctuations based on 
politics, wars and currency devaluation eventually trickle down to most commercial organisations. 

MOVING FORWARD

In view of this situations, the Group has set and in the run to implement innovative strategies to survive any of 
such catastrophes. Among them is to adopt the blue ocean strategy which is based on the simultaneous pursuit of 
differentiation and low cost.  It is an “and-and,” not an “either-or” strategy. Conventional wisdom holds that companies 
can either create greater value for customers at a higher cost or create reasonable value at a lower cost. Here strategy 
is seen as making a choice between differentiation and low cost. In contrast, by applying this blue ocean strategy, TEX 
CYCLE seeks to break the value-cost trade-off by eliminating and reducing factors an industry competes on and raising 
and creating factors the industry has never offered. This is what we call value innovation.

Value innovation is distinctively diverse from the competitive strategic approach that takes an industry structure as 
given and seeks to build a defensible position within the existing industry order. The strategic logic of value innovation 
guides companies to identify what buyers commonly value across the conventional boundaries of competition and 
reconstruct key factors across market boundaries, thereby achieving both differentiation and low cost and creating a 
leap in value for both buyers and the company.

Nevertheless, on hindsight, the Group does realise as well that a dynamic approach is always necessary in any 
organisation especially referring back to our history and shall bear in mind the existing business and technologies in 
place that brought the company this far. A red ocean strategy is therefore brought into the equation to balance out the 
potential risk from a blue ocean strategy, vice versa. Reason being, there is already a well-established market for TEX 
CYCLE with loyal and profound networking with the current customer base. To just disregard them may seem not a 
viable solution for substantial competitions and negative market outlook. 

Summarising it all in a nutshell, the dynamic approach of a red and blue strategy was adopted and one of the Group’s 
major innovation in conjunction with strengthening the current operations system, Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary 
of the Group, has embarked into a Renewable Electrical Energy Power Generation Project (“REEP”) of generating 
electricity from decontaminated biomass to the Tenaga Nasional Berhad grid surrounding the Telok Gong, Klang vicinity 
which is in short supply due to the area’s fast growing expansions. 

The Company had obtained approval from Sustainable Energy Development Authority Malaysia (“SEDA”) to build 
and operate a REEP with a capacity to supply 2 MW per hour of electricity to Tenaga Nasional Berhad. With the 
implementation of the power generating project, it is expected to contribute positively to the Group’s results from 2019. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
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This project will be highly in support of the Government’s target and initiative to reduce the intensity of greenhouse 
gas emissions (“GHGs”) to 40% of GDP in 2020 plus increase the percentage from 2% to 20% of renewable energy 
for electricity generation. This is also coherent with the Company’s believe in the “Cradle-to-Cradle” concept, with its 
pivotal intention to reduce disposal of scheduled waste to secured landfill which leaves behind substantial effects to 
the global environment. This concept is also brought to light by the Department of Environment (“DOE”) with the way 
forward being an evolution towards excellence in Integrated Waste Management by a paradigm shift from a Cradle-to-
Grave to Cradle-to-Cradle approach. Previously waste was regarded solely as an unwanted by-product, however, at 
present waste recycling and resource recovery are seen as potential resources.

Our very own extraordinary REEP’s technology aims to further enhance and complement our existing scheduled waste 
management system with the following objectives: 

Minimise the degradation of the environment 

By using our in-house treated waste streams as fuel source replacing Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG), we have 
eliminated the use of new fossil fuel for the process. These waste streams if left untreated will contaminate ground and 
surface water, the waste will also degrade to form methane which is a potent greenhouse gas. 

Zero or low Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission 

It has low greenhouse gas emission and the process stops the creation of methane gas created in the bio-degradation 
of biomass. Carbon Dioxide (CO2) is created in place of the methane. 

Safe for use and promotes healthy and improved environment for all forms of life
 
The process will neutralise biomass residue and in turn improve the environment for all forms of life. 

Conserve the use of energy & natural resources

The project seeks to use decontaminated biomass destined for secured landfill as a fuel source to produce electrical 
power, hence the project when implemented will conserve on the use of environmentally degradable fossil fuel. 

Promote the use of renewable resource 

The project will create a viable and sustainable means to dispose of the decontaminated biomass, thus encouraging 
industries to use more renewable resources. 

As such, the Company is at present in the midst of expanding its renewable energy division aggressively through many 
of our mind-boggling projects in the pipeline. Responses have been portrayed to be very positive from all parties and 
possible announcements will be made once agreements have been signed off. Our goal is to reach out to as many 
biomass feedstocks producing businesses in order to promote this clean energy system which is the future business 
and will indirectly help save our environment rather than toying along the incineration method which is most commonly 
perused but may be extremely harmful to the flora and fauna around us.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

TEX CYCLE embraces Research and Development within our organization by working on with newer products 
or technologies subject to important shifts coherent with our blue and red ocean strategies. While research and 
development work can be instrumental in creating new products or adding features to old products, the work that the 
department does is more complex than simple innovation. R&D is connected to marketing, cost management and other 
parts of business strategy.

Market Participation

The idea is to allow Tex Cycle grasps the ability to attract new customers and win customer interest. At its core, 
research and development is about innovation, about offering consumers something they have never seen before. 
When the R&D team can pull off such a product offering, the interest that consumers have can cause a sharp leap in 
market participation and sales. It may even create an entirely new market for our Company.
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Cost Management Benefits

Our Research and development idea does not create value directly in relation to how much funding the department 
receives. It is unique in this property; the success of R&D; depends more on the practices, talents and innovations of 
the people working there than on how much money the department receives. This means that our company can actually 
spend less money on research and development than many competitors but work to secure talented employees and 
proper goal orientation and still produce good results in return.

Marketing Strategies

With more upcoming Research and development outbreaks, it allows the Company to create strong marketing 
campaigns and advertising strategies. The two divisions comprehend each other very well. The research and 
development department work to make new product designs or add features, and the marketing department interprets 
these changes in the most exciting light possible in order to attract customers, creating synergies between the two 
branches.

Trend Matching

At many times a market is already embracing a trend, and the research and development department can be used to 
make the business active in that trend and increase sales. For example, in our current markets with rapid embracement 
of green products, Tex Cycle aims to use research and development to evolve products out of natural ingredients, 
recycled materials or biodegradable substances, allowing for the release of an eco-friendly version of the product that 
increases sales. When R&D; can catch up with trends, the business is seen as adaptable and profitable. On this ground, 
we had already kick started several R&Ds to uplift our goal of 4R Concept of “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle, Recover”. 

Among the on-going R&D projects are as follows:

	 1)	 Research on potential renewable energy power generation methods by utilizing the various available renewable 
		  sources locally and globally.
	
	 2)	 Testing phase of our in-house built Anaerobic Thermal Desorption Unit (“ATDU”), a newly enhanced 
		  methodology of increasing the capacity of production to treat waste in a more efficient and economical method 
		  in addition to saving fossil fuel intakes.

	 3)	 Computerization of the logistic department to create more efficient collection services.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE SCHEME (“ESS”)

During the year, Tex Cycle has embarked into a new staff rewards programme called the Employees’ Share Scheme 
(“ESS”). The implementation of the ESS primarily serves to align the interests of the Eligible Persons to the corporate 
goals of Tex Cycle Group. The ESS will provide the Eligible Persons with an opportunity to have equity participation in 
the Company and help achieve the positive objectives as set out below:

	 (i)	 to recognise the contribution of the Eligible Persons whose services are valued and considered vital to the 
		  operations and continued growth of Tex Cycle Group;
	
	 (ii)	 to motivate the Eligible Persons towards improved performance through greater productivity and loyalty; and 
	
	 (iii)	 to reward the Eligible Persons by allowing them to participate in the Group’s profitability and eventually realise 
	 any capital gains arising from appreciation in the value of the Company’s Shares.

In order to demonstrate a transparent and fair distribution of these shares, an ESS Committee was formed comprising 
of 2 Independent Directors, 2 Executive Directors and 1 Senior Management. 

For the first batch of the ESS, evaluation was done based on the following criteria:

	 (i)	 Length of service
	
	 (ii) 	 Attendance

	 (iii)	 Performance

	 (iv)	 Future Contribution

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
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The Independent Directors conducted 7 interview sessions with a total number of 8 staffs and all 4 Executive Directors 
for their views. The final tabulation of shares to eligible staffs was made solely by the 2 Independent Directors to avoid 
management bias and maintain integrity of the whole exercise.

Allocation Basis

The basis of allocation of the number of Shares in respect of the Share Grant and the maximum number of Shares, 
which may be offered to an Eligible Person, shall be determined entirely at the discretion of the ESS Committee 
subject to provisions of the By-Laws. An Eligible Person who is a member of the ESS Committee shall abstain from 
deliberations in respect of any Shares to be granted to or held or to be held by him or persons connected to him. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to any adjustments which may be made under the By-Laws, the aggregate 
maximum number of Shares that may be allocated to any one category/designation of Eligible Person shall be 
determined by the ESS Committee provided that:

	 (i)	 the directors (including executive directors) and senior management of the Tex Cycle Group do not participate 
		  in the deliberation or discussion of their own allocation; 

	 (ii)	 not more than 75% of Tex Cycle Shares available under the ESS on any date shall be allocated to the executive 
		  directors of the Tex Cycle Group; and

	 (iii)	 the allocation to any Eligible Person who, either singly or collectively through persons connected (as defined 
		  under the Listing Requirement) with the Eligible Person holds 20% or more of the total number of Shares  
		  (excluding treasury shares) of the Company, shall not exceed 10% (or such percentage as the relevant 
		  authorities may permit) of the maximum Tex Cycle Shares available under the ESS, provided always that it is in  
		  accordance with the Listing Requirements or any prevailing guidelines issued by Bursa Securities or any other 
		  relevant authorities, as amended from time to time.

The ESS Committee shall determine the actual number of Share Grants to be allocated to the Selected Person after 
taking into consideration, amongst others, the Selected Persons’ position, ranking, performance, seniority, the length of 
service, contribution and/or potential contribution to the continued success of the Group and any other factors deemed 
appropriate by the ESS Committee. 

The ESS Committee has the discretion in determining whether the vesting conditions, performance targets to be 
met and the ESOS Options and Share Grants available for vesting under the ESS are to be awarded to the Selected 
Persons via single award or several awards where the vesting of any number of Shares is to be staggered,  the 
number of Shares to be granted in each award and the timing for the vesting of the same shall be decided by the 
ESS Committee at its discretion and each award shall be separate and independent from the others. The new Tex 
Cycle Shares to be allotted and issued and/or transferred to the Scheme Participants pursuant to the ESS will not be 
subjected to any retention period unless the ESS Committee stipulates otherwise in the Offer.

Eligibility Conditions

Any executive directors or employee of Tex Cycle Group (excluding dormant subsidiaries within Tex Cycle Group), who 
meets the following criteria as at the date of the Offer shall be eligible for consideration and selection as a Selected 
Person by the ESS Committee:

(i)	 if he has attained the age of 18 years; 

(ii)	 is not an undischarged bankrupt or subject to any bankruptcy proceedings;

(iii)	 falls under one of the following category:

(a)	 if he is employed on a full-time basis and is on the payroll of any corporation in the Group for a continuous  
	 period of 1 year and has not served a notice of resignation or received a notice of termination prior to the date  
	 of Offer. For avoidance of doubt, any foreign employees within the Group are not eligible to participate in the 
	 ESS; or

(b)	 if his employment has been confirmed in writing and has been in employment for a continuous period of 1 year 
	 in the Group or in the case of an executive director, he has been appointed to the board of directors of any 
	 companies of the Group at least 1 year prior to the date of Offer; or

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
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(c)	 if he is employed by a company or corporation which is acquired by the Group during the duration of the ESS 
	 and becomes a subsidiary of the Company upon such acquisition, he must have completed a continuous  
	 period of at least 1 year in the Group following the date that such company becomes or is deemed to be a  
	 subsidiary of the Group; or

(d)	 if he is serving under an employment contract for a fixed duration, the contract should be of a duration of at 
	 least 3 years in the Group; and

(iv)	 if he fulfills any other criteria and/or falls within such category as may be determined by the ESS Committee 
	 from time to time, provided always that the section of any Eligible Person for participation in the ESS shall be  
	 at the discretion of the ESS Committee and the decision of the ESS Committee shall be final and binding.

If the Eligible Person is:

(i)	 a director, chief executive officer and/or major shareholder of Tex Cycle; or 

(ii)	 a person connected to the director, chief executive officer and/or major shareholder of Tex Cycle.	

The specific allocation of Share Grants granted by the Company to him/ her must first be approved by the 
shareholders of Tex Cycle at a general meeting, unless such approval is no longer required under the 
Listing Requirements and they shall not participate in the deliberation or discussion of their own allocation. 

Duration

The ESS shall continue to be in force for a period of 5 years, commencing from the effective date (12 October 2017) of 
the ESS provided always that on or before the expiry thereof, the Board shall have the discretion upon recommendation 
of the ESS Committee, to extend in writing the tenure of the ESS for another 5 years or such shorter period as it deems 
fit immediately from the expiry of the first 5 years.

INVESTMENT IN CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) FUND

Tex Cycle has also invested into a fund namely Interpac Social Enterprise and Responsibility Fund (“ISERF”) with the 
idea of a more sustainable funding for corporate social responsibility activities on top of our usual charity, donation and 
sponsorship drives as well as sustainability events with regards to the environment which is further elaborated under 
the Environmental Sustainability Report.

The ISERF is a conventional wholesale equity fund issued by Inter-Pacific Asset Management Sdn Bhd that encourages 
social responsibility and social enterprise participation by utilizing returns from investments. The Fund will disburse 
20% of the gain in the financial year which is measured by the increase in the Fund’s NAV within the financial year, 
either in the form of dividend declaration, capital repayment or any other methods, back to the investors. The principal 
objective of the disbursement is for the investors to participate in social responsibility projects and causes of their 
choice. However, actual utilization of the disbursement is at sole discretion of the investors.

This is neither a capital protected nor capital guaranteed fund.

This Fund is suitable for sophisticated investors like us who:

•	 Have long term investment horizon;

•	 Seek capital gains; and

•	 Use a portion of the capital gain to participate in social projects of their choice.

Tex Cycle is always at a look out for such similar funds with CSR motives connected to it.

APPRECIATION

We, the Executive Directors and Key Management Team, would hereby like to extend our heartfelt appreciation to 
the Independent Directors, Management and Staff for their contribution and dedication during the financial year under 
review. Our humblest appreciation also goes out to our Customers and Partners in business for their commitment and 
trust all this years and hopefully for the many more years to come forth, plus last but not least our Shareholders for their 
continuous support towards the evolution in addition to development of TEX CYCLE’s business as we work towards 
saving the environment for the good of our current and future generations.
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At Tex Cycle, we are obliged towards our employees, investors, customers, suppliers and the community while making 
conservation of the environment our highest priority. We are constantly engaged in upgrading our processes and 
procedures through Research and Development to ensure our environment is continuously protected and conserved 
towards improvement for maximization of its stakeholders’ interest.

We ensure that all matters of CR are considered and supported throughout the Company and are consistent with our 
stakeholder’s interests. Comprehensive policies and practices have been developed to enable business decisions to be 
made and conduct its operations ethically, adhering to legal obligations and showing consideration for the community 
and environment. The various activities undertaken as part of Tex Cycle’s Corporate Responsibility are discussed 
below.

The various activities undertaken as part of Tex Cycle’s Corporate Responsibility are discussed below.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Tex Cycle’s Stakeholders though distinct in its own way, they share the same aspiration which is reducing waste, 
protecting and preserving the Environment. The identification and selection of Stakeholders with whom Tex Cycle is 
engaged revolves around those relevant to the business operation that is the Employees, Regulators, Customers, 
Shareholders, Community and Suppliers. Together, we engage in various ways and at different levels to discover the 
social and environmental issues that are material in decision-making and accountability.

Employees

Tex Cycle has always given focus to Employees, one of the most important stakeholder groups “internal” to the core 
operation of the business and its’ most important investment. The Management rates the engagement with Employees 
as valuable and is based on relationship-building from the very beginning. Tex Cycle’s Management deals with its 
Employees with trust, mutual respect and understanding to develop and build interactions. This established relationship 
is the basis to our engagement with our Employees.

Engagement of our workforce, the people of Tex Cycle is important and a vital part of our success. Focus on the people 
and the workplace culture is placed at the top of their list and believes that good performance by our Employees 
should always be recognised and appraised. Tex Cycle continually invests in its Employees and aids in their growth by 
providing the right trainings, build connection to the business through various environmental programs, give rewards 
in various ways for their contribution, create career development opportunities, initiate safe working environment and 
offer physical & financial support where needed.

Employees of Tex Cycle are appreciated for their ongoing contributions to the company throughout the year as they 
are capable of furthering the Organization’s success. To retain its people, Tex Cycle provides them with benefits and 
aims to create a work environment that can encourage and enable them to be responsible. Tex Cycle has identified 
and gratified Employees who’ve been with the Management through evolving challenges that we’ve faced and continue 
facing as a growing and developing Company. Some of the continuous benefits to our Employees are listed below:

-    Eligible Employees are given education scholarships to pursue higher studies in fields related to their jobs
-    Employee of the quarters & Employee of the year awards
-    Company’s share distribution
-    Family Day gathering and activities / Recycling Day
-    Staff Recreation
-    Competition on Environmental, Safety and Health issues after trainings
-    Recycling Campaign
-    Award given to the section/area which complies with the audit checklist
-    Promotions / bonus
-    Incentives for full attendance
-    Safety, Health & Environmental Month
-    Competition and activities involving staff members and their family
-    Recognition of staffs with long service
-    Employees children are given financial assistance for school necessities
-    Adequate insurance coverage
-    Annual Medical Health Check for Employees
-    Heart Disease and Diabetic Talk
-    First Aid Training
-    Stress Management Talk
-    Distribution of Festive Goodies

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY 
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Regulators 

Regulators act as the backbone to Tex Cycle. As its core business operation revolves around the Environment, 
Regulators and their compliances play an important part in ensuring protected interest of all. Regulators whom Tex 
Cycle closely engages with are the Regulatory Bodies such as DOE, DOSH, JPJ, MPSJ and BOMBA. Environmental 
issues and green matters are the usual highlights in their engagement and occasionally, our facility is also used as 
learning ground for new regulatory officers as well as a site for visit by the regulatory bodies for international visitors. 
Tex Cycle as one of the pioneers in the Management of Scheduled Waste has been also been recently invited by DOE 
to assist in the development of occupational skills in the field of Scheduled Waste Treatment System.

Customers

Tex Cycle renders Customers as an important channel to promote environmental preservation and protection of which 
it addresses through the services it offers. Regular engagement is required to reach fair pricing, ensuring best quality of 
service and assurance that their trust in us on waste management is maintained at all times. A common concern raised 
through this engagement is attractive pricing and best service which is promptly addressed by the higher Management 
and Sales Representatives.

Customers are also welcomed periodically to audit the process flow of the recycling and recovery activities in our plant. 
Through exhibitions and initial visits, Customers are provided with brochures explaining the activities, products and 
services, environmental programs and further information on Scheduled Waste Management and its regulations. Tex 
Cycle too connects with Customers through joint activities on their EMP projects. Tex Cycle believes that Customer’s 
trust and confidence in us and our processes are enhanced through our transparency.

Suppliers

Tex Cycle also values relationships with its Suppliers as vital to the success of its operations. In our Supplier 
Engagement we aim to receive valuable benefits from our Suppliers. We acknowledge that they are important to the 
business operation as through them we have access to best people, best resources, first access to innovation, latest 
technological advances, favourable terms and priority allocation of resources in times of scarcity. Having in hand the 
best Supplier can create a vital strategic advantage for the business.

We achieve this through mutual understanding and trust in regular dealing with them best prices are obtained for quality 
goods and services through continued support to Suppliers. Their key concern is that we continue supporting them 
in business for the long term. This concern is addressed through ad-hoc meetings and agreements with major and 
significant Suppliers where mutual value is achieved for both parties.

Tex Cycle’s SHE Department ensures that Contractors attend briefing and trainings on a continuous basis on the 
following: -

•    Tex Cycle’s Environmental policy
•    Regulations for Vendors and Contractors
•    Fire Emergency Response Procedures
•    Emergency Route
•    Scheduled Waste Code and Warning Labels
•    Tex Cycle Recycling and Waste Minimization Policy
•    Environmental Legal Requirements
•    Competent and qualified to handle (dealing with scheduled waste) Supplier and Contractor Development
•    Practice: Tex Cycle provides environmental policy, training materials and available practices in the Contractor Safety 
     Briefing.
•    Knowledge Sharing: Contractors and suppliers are required to attend annual training at Tex Cycle on issues such as 
     environmental impact, handling and safety procedures for the material/ product supplied to Tex Cycle
•   Cooperation: Samples of new material/product from the contractor or supplier are tested in the lab at Tex Cycle to 
     assess if new products worsen the environmental impact.

Community

Being in the Industry of Scheduled Waste Management, Tex Cycle’s daily business operations matters to the Community 
as the hazards of the improper handling of toxic wastes may pose serious consequences to the people. And so, 
responsible daily operations matters most in this Community Engagement of Tex Cycle. Through various projects, 
collaborations, exhibitions and programs, Tex Cycle brings awareness on ways to create a better Environment to the 
Community.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY 
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Tex Cycle gives a very special focus to young children as they are the future generation of what we have to offer. Thus 
early education and awareness to this group of community on environmental protection, preservation, waste reduction 
and 4R’s are constantly exposed and cultivated in them through sessions, briefings, talks as well as sponsorships. 
Young adults who are furthering their education in the Environmental and related studies often visit Tex Cycle to gain 
more knowledge on ways of reducing waste and recycling in the industrial point of view.

Tex Cycle’s focus besides environmental issues in the Community at large is the health and financial concern for the 
less privileged groups. Tex Cycle is the main sponsor of a Dialysis Centre in the Klang Valley with the collaboration of 
an NGO. It faithfully continues to provide the less fortunate with the much needed medical requirement with annual 
financial aids to the centre so that they may carry on with their lives. Tex Cycle also distributes its profits generously on 
a continuous basis to other charitable organizations with the aim to lessen poverty and extend help to the needy and 
the less fortunate not only with monetary contribution but also with sponsorship of basic necessities.

Tex Cycle is pleased to have reached this significant milestone with regular, consistent and relevant Stakeholders 
Engagement with all of the above groups. Tex Cycle believes that the powerful combination of our Stakeholders 
will continue bringing its assets, its people and its vision together to deliver sustainable value to all its Stakeholders 
environmentally and profitably.

Communication of Environmental -Related Information

Environmental and any important related issues such as health and safety related matters are communicated to all the 
staff through various ways at Tex Cycle. Most prominent methods are:-

•    meetings with representatives from every department
•    all general notices are placed on the notice boards
•    memos sent by internal e-mail systems
•    openly communicating to Employees and their families during activities
•    Management participates in environmental training and activities organized

Besides many activities that are implemented for staff participation as a part of resource conservation programs, Tex 
Cycle also has ongoing programs to convert various wastes to useful products.

Target and Achievement

Incorporating Environmental Accounting into Cost and Investment Consideration. The investment on the plant 
is part of the investment towards pollution control and conservation of our natural resources. Over the years, the 
investment toward the facilities has increased for the benefits of both the environment and surrounding community. The 
management ensures that the facilities of Tex Cycle complies with the regulation and observe the requirements by the 
stakeholders. The benefits of complying with the environmental law are clearly seen through the increase in revenue. 
The profit gained in Tex Cycle is through the recycling and recovery activities.

External Assurance

Tex Cycle indirectly observes related principles in all its operational planning and introduction of new products and 
services. As an active Licensed Contractor by the Country’s Department of Environment and an independent member 
in many other industry associations, Tex Cycle is committed in doing its part in engaging in continued ways and means 
to reduce all possible threats to the environment by embracing some principles such as Kyoto Protocol, Montreal 
Protocol, etc amongst others.

Most of the participants who come to Tex Cycle tend to carry the mindset that Tex Cycle is a large launderette due 
to the existence of a large number of industrial washing machines and a collection of contaminated wipes, rags and 
gloves in the main production area. They assume that these contaminated rags, gloves and wipes are washed similarly 
to household laundry system but on a larger scale. Therefore, the awareness program is specially arranged to change 
these mindsets by providing a line tour, explaining the process in detail and the importance of a waste water treatment 
and the dangers of these contaminated materials. Depending on the group, the questions varies from technical to very 
basic questions but through these question and answer sessions, the participants are able to get a better understanding 
on the importance of the regulation on Scheduled Wastes and their responsibilities as citizen. Organizations are able 
to understand why it is important to segregate the domestic wastes from industrial wastes and what happens to these 
contaminated wastes once it leaves their premises.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY 
REPORT
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Waste as Competition

Tex Cycle aims to change the perspective of the public regarding the image of a Scheduled Waste recycling and recovery 
plant. Tex Cycle has practiced pollution control, waste minimization, cleaner production and promoting environmental 
awareness as part of the company’s policy.

Where employees are concerned, activities such as buying recyclable materials such as paper, glass, tin, etc. at 
a higher market price and competitions on reusing household and decontaminated factory wastes into art-craft are 
continuously carried out to encourage healthy competition while instilling environmental awareness.

Externally, Tex Cycle has joined many initiatives to be transparent to the society in its business operations as well as its 
efforts in environmental protection and preservation. The many awards achieved over the years are proofs themselves 
that Tex Cycle is aiming high to be a role model in the Scheduled Waste Management Industry.

Awards Achieved Prior 2018

ISO 14001 – Tex Cycle was first awarded with the ISO 14001 certification in March 2003 and has been recertified to-
date. 

Prime Minister Hibiscus Awards 

Tex Cycle was the winner of the year 2004 “Anugerah Alam Sekitar” Award. The Industry Environmental Award for SME 
is the highest award given out by the Selangor State Government.

•    Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2005/2006 (Notable / SMI Special Award)
•    Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 Selangor Government
•    Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 SME Special Award
•    Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 Exceptional Achievement in Environmental Performance
•    Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2008/2009 for Notable Achievement in Environmental Performance

Malaysian Canadian Business Council

•    Malaysian Canadian Business Council (MCBC) Silver Award in Industrial Excellence in Professional Services Award 
     2006
•    Malaysia Canada Business Council (MCBC) Company of the Year Award under Business Excellence Awards 2008
•    Malaysia Canada Business Council (MCBC) Talisman Malaysia Limited Award Industry Excellence for Environment  
     under Business Excellence Awards 2008

ACCA

•    ACCA – MaSRA First Time Reporting 2006
•    ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards for Transparency (MaSRA) 2009 (shortlisted)
•   ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards (MaSRA) 2011 – (shortlisted) National Award for Management  
     Accounting
•   Practice Solution Award 2008 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management Accounting 
     (NAfMA)
•   Practice Solution Award 2009 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management Accounting 
     (NAfMA)
•   Practice Solution Award 2010 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management Accounting  
     (NAfMA)
•    ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards (MaSRA) 2014 – Shortlisted

Star Biz ICR Malaysia

•   Corporate Responsibility Award 2008 for Environment Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion from Star  
    Biz ICR Malaysia
•   Corporate Responsibility Award 2009 for Marketplace Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion from Star 
    Biz ICR Malaysia
•   Corporate Responsibility Award 2010 for Marketplace Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion from Star 
    Biz ICR Malaysia

KPMG Malaysia

•   KPMG Shareholder Value Award 2010 – Winner for Infrastructure Award Achieved In 2014

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY 
REPORT
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ABOUT THIS REPORT 
PREFERED SCHEDULED WASTE MANAGEMENT 

Our theme “Preferred Scheduled Waste Management ”highlights our efforts to continuously move towards a sustainable 
future. With the on-going technology advancements in the industry, we keep abreast of the latest waste management 
process and compliance requirements.  As one of the foremost schedule waste management service provider we take 
vigilant concern of the quality, environment and compliance issues.  

Our Sustainability Report (“SR”) concentrates on Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad’s sustainability practices in which 
we emphasize on the economic, environmental, and social (“EES”) impacts of our business operations and initiatives.  
In our previous reporting we use Corporate Social Responsibility statement which consists of environment and social 
segments.  Hence this will be our first attempt to comply with Bursa Malaysia requirements in sustainability reporting, 
we prioritized on reviewing our material issues and mapping out our route forward to embed sustainability throughout 
our business operations.

Furthermore, throughout this SR, we demonstrate our full commitment in integrating sustainability practices and 
preparing this statement on pursuant to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad(“Bursa Securities”) ACE Market Listing 
Requirements (“AMLR”), and Sustainability Reporting Guide issued by the Exchange .

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

Tex Cycle’s SR 2018 has been prepared in conformity with Bursa requirements. This SR covers the reporting period 
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. Our main focus for this year is on assessing our material sustainability 
topics that encompasses the economic, environmental and social aspects. The content of this report is based on the 
material topics that we have identified. The scope and boundaries of this SR cover all our entities and operations in 
Malaysia. The Group will be advised by an external consultant to assist on the sustainability reporting enhancement 
and to support comprehensive sustainability efforts across the Group’s progress.

ABOUT TEX CYCLE

Vision

Tex Cycle envisions being The Preferred Scheduled Waste Recycler in Malaysia. It aims to achieve this vision through 
practice of sustainability in every aspect of the business with Persistence and Commitment, Determination and Passion. 
It further aspires to one day being able to achieve zero-waste through maximization of resources.

Mission

	 •	 Tex  Cycle is committed in doing its part by engaging in continued ways and means to reduce all possible 
		  threats to the Environment. It embraces all relevant national as well as international efforts and inspires  
		  awareness on environmental Protection to the Community at large.
	 •	 Tex Cycle believes in sharing our resources with our most important Stakeholder, our Employees who are 
		  given utmost priority. We pursue our mission with continuous commitment in ensuring that our Employees  
		  work in a safe environment and return to their families safely.
	 •	 Being in a competitive marketplace, it is essential for our professional teams to manage our Customer’s  
		  satisfaction efficiently and proactively. We uphold this with loyal and professional assistance which is provided 
		  in engaging our exceptional services and reliable products at all times.
	 •	 Tex Cycle embarks on continuous Research and Development in striving to do business profitably and  
		  responsibly by seeking up-to-date Technologies and modern state-of-the-art equipment and upgrading its 
		  operations for more effectiveness and efficiency in all that it does.
	 •	 Tex Cycle addresses Corporate Responsibility to the future generation through various projects, collaborations,  
		  exhibitions and awareness programs to instil the importance of caring for the environment. Tex Cycle also readily 
		  extends assistance in whichever way possible to the less fortunate.
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Corporate Values

Tex Cycle’s Codes of Ethics for Directors and employees govern the standards of conduct and behaviour of the 
employees. Tex Cycle’s Board commits itself and its Directors to ethical, business like and lawful conduct, including 
proper use of authority and appropriate decorum when playing the role as Board members. We practice the following 
corporate values in our business operations:

 	 •	 Adhering to all regulations wherever we operate.
 	 •	 Practicing high ethical standards and sincerity in our business.
 	 •	 Protecting the environment and community in all our actions.
 	 •	 Respecting diversity and individual growth of Employees.
 	 •	 Creating higher value through technology, creativity and innovation.
 	 •	 More than meeting the expectations of Customers and Shareholders and building mutually profitable  
		  relationships.

WHO WE ARE

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad (“Tex Cycle Technology” or “the Company”) is an investment holding Company which 
was listed on the ACE Market (formerly known as MESDAQ Market) of Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad on 27 July 
2005. Today, Tex Cycle Technology is the holding Company of Tex Cycle Sdn. Bhd., Metro Koats Technology Sdn. Bhd., 
Metro Envy Sdn. Bhd., Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd., TC Chemical Sdn. Bhd. and TC Champ Sdn. Bhd.

The Company is primarily engaged in an environmentally friendly Waste Management Business which provides 
professional services preferred by companies from various industries, mainly of the Electronics, Engineering, 
Automobile, Oil & Gas and Printing industries in accordance with Environmental Quality Act.

Conversely, we also supply specialized products for the Defense industry and further endow chemical products for Oil 
& Gas, Agro-cultural and chemical related industries.

Our systems and procedures are technologically advanced and upgraded frequently. This allows us to offer a one-stop 
solution to our valued Customers with economical products and services in total compliance.

WHAT WE DO

Our core business is:
	 •	 Recovery and Recycling of Scheduled Waste

Recovery and Recycling of Scheduled Waste

	Our Recovery and Recycling of Scheduled Wastes division was formed in 1984, a time when contaminated waste 
was unintentionally dumped in landfills or burned indiscriminately at obscure places. Sharing the same vision of the 
Department of Environment (DOE) to continuously protect the land we live on, we have developed to earn pioneer 
status in the recycling of scheduled waste. We practice and act on the worldwide effort of waste management, living 
the motto of “reduce, reuse, recover, recycle.”

As a professional recycler, we collect contaminated materials directly from companies in the electronic, engineering, 
automobile, oil & gas, printing and other manufacturing industries. These materials are soiled with grease, inks, 
solvents and whatever substance imaginable. Such wastes are now highly regulated and have to be disposed off, at 
sites permitted by the DOE and handled only by licensed contractors. Every year, the ever increasing hundreds of tons 
of contaminated materials are transported by our licensed fleet of trucks to our sites.

Our job is to remove contaminants from the soiled materials so that they can be reused. Damaged materials can also 
be converted into safe recyclable products, fit for reuse.

Our new factory, utilizing the latest state-of-the-art technology is designed to handle the logistics and process involved 
in waste management. Safety and hygiene consciousness is our law. Our trained drivers and service personnel are 
committed to quality and provide the best solution in waste management. We pride ourselves in the fields of research, 
trend development and service excellence. We work closely with our customers and the authorities in complying with 
the latest environmental regulation. Being a major player in the environment business, we will continue to service and 
upgrade our processing methods to meet or exceed the stringent government standards for waste-water purity.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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Location of Corporate Office
Lot 8942, Jalan Telok Gong
42000 Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

Location of Registered Office
c/o HMC Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5 Bangsar South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Review of operations

The group’s operations are illustrated in the Management Discussion & Analysis (MDA) section in the annual report.

Business and Operations Review

Throughout the last thirty-three years, Tex Cycle has grown significantly. Starting from humble beginnings, the Company 
has enlarged into a well-established Public Listed Company boasting a strong portfolio of assets, market composition 
and people connected by shared values as well as common goals. The Group’s core business aspiration has expanded 
tremendously over the years due to our on-going endeavour to be the preferred scheduled waste recycling company in 
the region. As of today, Tex Cycle is entrusted by the Malaysian Department of Environment (“DOE”) to treat 31 types 
of scheduled waste codes within the country, compared to the singular licensed scheduled waste code at its inception. 
Up-to-date, Tex Cycle has over 5,300 registered customers, with the numbers steadily increasing.

Key Highlights For 2018

Market Market Capitalization :  RM 

Business

Revenue RM  37.1 million

Profit Before Tax RM 10.0  million

Profit after tax (PAT) RM 7.7million

Basic Earnings Per Share 3.05 sen

Net Tangible Assets per share RM0.40

OUR APPROACH TO DRIVING SUSTAINBILITY

Our approach to sustainability is based on our core values of excellence, unity, integrity, humility and building 
relationship, supported by policies and procedures at Group level. We consistently embed sustainability into the core 
of our business. The following value-added sustainability framework forms the basis of Tex Cycle’s steps to strengthen 
our approach to sustainability.

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

1. As a Public Listed Company

	 •	 As a public listed company we are pre-emptive of the sustainability matters mainly on the Economic value 
		  creation for the shareholder and stakeholder;

	 •	 We plan to elevate sustainability in company governance, through engaging in direct board oversight and 
		  accountability over environmental and social issues, more diversity and special expertise on boards, and  
		  linking executive and other employee compensation to sustainability goals;

	 •	 We want to robust regular dialogues with key company stakeholders on sustainability challenges, including 
		  employees, investors, suppliers and consumers;

	 •	 We are in progress to open reporting on sustainability strategies, goals and accomplishments;

	 •	 We are in progress to develop systematic performance improvements to achieve environmental neutrality and 
		  other sustainability goals across the entire value chain, including operations, supply chains and products.
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2. As a service provider 

	 •	 We plan to give a quality service to all of the clients as they are part of our valued stakeholders.

GOVERNANCE OF THE SUSTAINABILITY

Being a Public Listed Company, Tex Cycle complies with the high standards of corporate governance (CG) practices 
and being closely monitored under the leadership of our Board of Directors, as guided by the Malaysian Code on CG 
2017.

In line with sustainability, The Board has the ultimate responsibility to ensure that the sustainability efforts are embedded 
in the strategic direction of the company. We have established a Corporate Sustainability Committee (CSC), to oversee 
the formulation, implementation and effective management of our sustainability matters in line with the strategies. The 
CSC is also supported by various working groups responsible for implementing the initiatives within the organization. 
The Managing Director will provide the Board on regular update relating to all key EES risks and opportunities 
(sustainability matters). 

The governance of our sustainability agenda is a process that is important to the Company as it enables the business 
to effectively embed sustainability. Good governance structures also ensure that we are consistently aligned to our 
principles and standards. Demonstrating its commitment from the top, the Company’s sustainability agenda is governed 
by a Corporate Sustainability Committee (CSC). 

ORGANISATION STRUCTURE FOR SUSTAINBAILITY

Corporate Sustainability
Committee

Respective
Stakeholders

Sustainability
Coordinator (PIC)

CSC working 
Group 1

CSC working 
Group 2

CSC working 
Group 3

CSC working 
Group 4

CSC working 
Group 5

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STRATEGIES AND DIRECTIONS

Despite the challenging operating environment, the Tex Cycle continues to practice prudence and stay focused on 
delivering quality growth, while being watchful of emerging risks. The Group is fully committed to uphold responsible 
financing which is reflected through its prudent infrastructure transformation as well as sustainability in its supply chain.

OUR MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS

1. Objectives & 
Scope

2. Identification and
Categorization of 

Sustainability
Issues

3. Stakeholder 
Engagement 4. Prioritization

5. Process Review
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Material
Factors

Description What Are The Risk What Are The Opportunities

Competition Tex Cycle is exposed
to competition within
the industry

Lesser chance to secure contracts will 
impact the Company’s business and 
performance

Innovative products and eco-
friendly system could be offered
to the clients as to improve on
our core value

Regional partnerships and
collaborations

Market
Stability

A w e l l - f a c i l i t a t e d
business, supported
t o g e t h e r w i t h a n
e f f e c t i v e a n d
balanced regulatory
f r a m e w o r k t h a t
provides adequate
l eve l s o f c l i en t ’s
p r o t e c t i o n w h i l e
facilitating business
e f f i c i e n c y a n d
i n n o v a t i o n , i s
imperative for the
continued growth and
development of our
business.

Any event – such as breaches in
regulation, lack of effective corporate
governance (CG) practices – that
undermines integrity or stability will
influence stakeholder confidence, and
possibly participation, in the market

Having a robust approach to
ensure the integrity and stability
o f the marke t se rves to
engender trust and confidence,
which in turn encourages
participation and growth

Fostering a strong CG and
sustainability culture will also
drive long-term value, both in
the market and within Bursa
Malaysia

•

•

•

•

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

1. Objectives& Scope

Tex Cycle undertook a materiality study within the top management and middle management to determine the objectives 
and scope of the sustainability reporting. Our scope and boundaries covers all our entities and operations in Malaysia.

2. Identification of Relevant Sustainability Matters

The process initiated with sustainability issues relevant to the Tex Cycle Technology Berhad and its stakeholders. 
In generating the list, the Group assesses the operating environment and emerging trends affecting our sector and 
conducted study across a broad range of references to identify the relevant sustainability issues. The references 
include Bursa Malaysia’s Sustainability Reporting Guide and Toolkits, and international standards such as the Global 
Reporting Initiative Standards on a segment basis. 

Moving forward in 2019, we plan to undertake a continues review of material factors and sustainability matters in order 
to ensure that our understanding of both the current and future risks and opportunities facing our markets is adequately 
addressed, as well as to gather stakeholder perspectives and ensure we are responding to their needs. As we update 
our material factors, we will continue to evolve our management approach to ensure that we are addressing them in 
a holistic and integrated manner. This may involve developing new policies and procedures, implementing various 
initiatives, measures and action plans, setting indicators as well as to establish a proper mechanism to capture, analyse 
and report sustainability data and information.

OUR MATERIAL FACTORS

As we monitor, manage and report on a wide variety of issues, key to our approach is focusing our resources on the 
material sustainability risks and opportunities that are associated with each material factor. Understanding our key 
priority allows us to set our time, resources and investment to the best use.

The materiality process involved several steps including:

	 •	 Identification of potential material topics by reviewing the partial segement of GRI aspects, benchmarking  
		  against key corporate peers and analyzing past reports, which reflects the feedback from customers, community  
		  representatives and employees generally.

	 •	 Inventory of aspects and topics most important to external stakeholders,  customers and their supply chain 
		  vendors, based upon requests, surveys and ongoing engagement during the reporting period.

The materiality factors are based on the priority of the organisation.

Key Materiality
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Materiality Selection

Combining the views from stakeholders and Tex Cycle’s Management from the preliminary materiality process, the 
materiality table has been derived to show the different levels of importance of the sustainability matters. The below 
factors will be further enhanced in the coming years.

Significance Material Factors 

ytilairetaM gniganaMlairetaM yhWsrotcaF

M
A
T
E
R
I
A
L
I
T
Y

V
e
r
y

I
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t

Compliance Compliance with laws and regulations
is one of our main requirements.

We provide adequate training and
resources to ensure we meet
compliance obligations.

Corporate Governance Corporate Governance is the basic
ingredient of our business model.

G o v e r n a n c e i s c o n d u c t e d
according to various regulations
and sub committees. The board
oversees the governance based on
quarterly review of management
reporting.

Local Environmental Impact It safeguards the environment impact. We moni tor and rev iew the
environmental compliance strategy
and performance.

diova ot ecrofkrow fo ytefas no tcapmIytefaS
workplace injuries and customers to
ensure safety of products.

We support the on-going training of
operational teams to ensure
understanding in recognising and
improving as well as maintaining
safe working conditions.

eht ni evititepmoc niamer ot lativ si tInoitavonnI
industry.

We transform waste into value by
instilling innovation in converting
various disposed waste into useful
and reusable products.

Customer Satisfaction It is important for us to benchmark our
self and to collaborate closely with
customers to achieve mutual success.

We conduct customer satisfaction
surveys to obtain customer ’s
feedbacks. Also visitation and
telephone calls  to their premises to
obtain feedback.
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Business Ethics/Code Maintaining business ethics is our core
values.

We proact ively promote and
p o s i t i v e l y r e i n f o r c e g o o d
behaviours to the employees.

Business Mix It offers a wider range/integrated
system of goods and services to
support the core services. This is  to
attract new consumers by aiming at a
different target market.

We have various waste codes and
continuous enhancement is our
p r e f e r e n c e i n o r d e r t o b e
competitive in the market.

S u p p l i e r S c r e e n i n g –
Environment

Impact of suppliers activities on
environment and society.

We choose to work with businesses
across our supply chain that
deploys good and sustainable
practice within the environments
and communities in which we and
they operate. 

Anti-Corruption This reduces risks of economic
imbalance and compliance with laws,
international charters and conventions.

On-going monitoring, briefing  and
review  of compliance throughout
the Group is carried out to make
sure that the company’s policies
and procedures as well as system
of internal controls are being
properly implemented.

Local Engagement Plans &
Programs

It is to strengthen cooperation with
l o c a l s t a k e h o l d e r s s u c h a s
governments and NGOs

We support the local communities
in which we operate.

Diversity Diverse cultural perspectives can
inspire creativity and drive innovation
as well as productivity.

We recruit employees with good
competency, skills and equality. 

Risk Management Risk management is essential to
mitigate adverse impacts on achieving
objectives.

We cont inuously rev iew the
organisation and maintain an up to
date risk profile, and have an
integrated r isk management
framework which is embedded into
the governance structure and
business operations.

Customer Privacy It is important to build customer trust
and loyalty.

We restrict customers’ data access
to only authorised employees by
set passwords to access the data.

Economic & Local Economic
Impact

It is to balance the economic & local
economic impact with regards to our
nature of business.

We take great initiative to address
these issues by gett ing our
respective HOD’s feedback on the
market scenario.

Executive Compensation It is crucial to maintain productivity and
retain high performing staff while
attracting new talent.

The employees are paid with
adequate compensations in line
with their performances.

Layoffs & Turnover High employee turnover can lead to
knowledge outflow and lower the return
on investment to the company in terms
of training and education of employees.

We engage and motivate our
people, providing the opportunity to
learn and grow supported through
structured training programmes and
development opportunit ies to
reduce employee turnover.

Social Media The use of social media boosts visibility
among potential customers and
improves awareness about our brand.

We engage social media to
promote our service and product.

Local Procurement It ensures the stable, sustainable
procurement and supply of resources
as well as creates opportunities for
economic con t r ibu t ion th rough
localization.

We always on a lookout for best
quality and good pricing to be
competitive
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Compliance Compliance with laws and regulations
is one of our main requirements.

We provide adequate training and
resources to ensure we meet
compliance obligations.

Corporate Governance Corporate Governance is the basic
ingredient of our business model.

G o v e r n a n c e i s c o n d u c t e d
according to various regulations
and sub committees. The board
oversees the governance based on
quarterly review of management
reporting.

Local Environmental Impact It safeguards the environment impact. We moni tor and rev iew the
environmental compliance strategy
and performance.

diova ot ecrofkrow fo ytefas no tcapmIytefaS
workplace injuries and customers to
ensure safety of products.

We support the on-going training of
operational teams to ensure
understanding in recognising and
improving as well as maintaining
safe working conditions.

eht ni evititepmoc niamer ot lativ si tInoitavonnI
industry.

We transform waste into value by
instilling innovation in converting
various disposed waste into useful
and reusable products.

Customer Satisfaction It is important for us to benchmark our
self and to collaborate closely with
customers to achieve mutual success.

We conduct customer satisfaction
surveys to obtain customer ’s
feedbacks. Also visitation and
telephone calls  to their premises to
obtain feedback.
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Business Ethics/Code Maintaining business ethics is our core
values.

We proact ively promote and
p o s i t i v e l y r e i n f o r c e g o o d
behaviours to the employees.

Business Mix It offers a wider range/integrated
system of goods and services to
support the core services. This is  to
attract new consumers by aiming at a
different target market.

We have various waste codes and
continuous enhancement is our
p r e f e r e n c e i n o r d e r t o b e
competitive in the market.

S u p p l i e r S c r e e n i n g –
Environment

Impact of suppliers activities on
environment and society.

We choose to work with businesses
across our supply chain that
deploys good and sustainable
practice within the environments
and communities in which we and
they operate. 

Anti-Corruption This reduces risks of economic
imbalance and compliance with laws,
international charters and conventions.

On-going monitoring, briefing  and
review  of compliance throughout
the Group is carried out to make
sure that the company’s policies
and procedures as well as system
of internal controls are being
properly implemented.

Local Engagement Plans &
Programs

It is to strengthen cooperation with
l o c a l s t a k e h o l d e r s s u c h a s
governments and NGOs

We support the local communities
in which we operate.

Diversity Diverse cultural perspectives can
inspire creativity and drive innovation
as well as productivity.

We recruit employees with good
competency, skills and equality. 

Risk Management Risk management is essential to
mitigate adverse impacts on achieving
objectives.

We cont inuously rev iew the
organisation and maintain an up to
date risk profile, and have an
integrated r isk management
framework which is embedded into
the governance structure and
business operations.

Customer Privacy It is important to build customer trust
and loyalty.

We restrict customers’ data access
to only authorised employees by
set passwords to access the data.

Economic & Local Economic
Impact

It is to balance the economic & local
economic impact with regards to our
nature of business.

We take great initiative to address
these issues by gett ing our
respective HOD’s feedback on the
market scenario.

Executive Compensation It is crucial to maintain productivity and
retain high performing staff while
attracting new talent.

The employees are paid with
adequate compensations in line
with their performances.

Layoffs & Turnover High employee turnover can lead to
knowledge outflow and lower the return
on investment to the company in terms
of training and education of employees.

We engage and motivate our
people, providing the opportunity to
learn and grow supported through
structured training programmes and
development opportunit ies to
reduce employee turnover.

Social Media The use of social media boosts visibility
among potential customers and
improves awareness about our brand.

We engage social media to
promote our service and product.

Local Procurement It ensures the stable, sustainable
procurement and supply of resources
as well as creates opportunities for
economic con t r ibu t ion th rough
localization.

We always on a lookout for best
quality and good pricing to be
competitive
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3. Our Stakeholders Engagement

Our interaction involves a large number of different stakeholder groups and this kind of engagement is important to 
ensure we can identify, prioritize and address material matters and be adopted in our business strategies. The business 
and functional units are empowered to interact with their respective stakeholders on their chosen platforms. All issues 
raised by stakeholders are brought to the attention of the Management Committee or Management Meetings by the 
respective business and functional units. On-going engagements where applicable are carried out on a regular basis 
as they are integral to our business development, relationships with stakeholders and commitment to sustainability.

Our key stakeholders are outlined on the below table, along with the forms of engagement approaches and key focus 
and objectives of engagement.

Engagement Approach Engagement Focus & Objectives

CUSTOMERS 

1. Customer satisfaction and complaint survey  

2. Creating strategic innovation  

3. Proper project management  

4. Project completed in compliance with standards, high 
quality and on time delivery  

5. Cost optimization  

6. Customers expectation and satisfaction  

7. Fulfil customer schedule and collection within the time 
frame given  

8. Long term relationship with customers (build good 
repo and  trust)  

9. Frequent collaboration on approval status of submitted 
documentation  

10. Explanation of procedures and regulations governing 
Scheduled Waste storage and transport.  

11. Exhibitions and presentations  

12. Awareness campaigns, held in tandem with 
Government initiatives  

13. Adoption of strategic innovations in technology and 
brand awareness 

14. Interacting and aiding new customers  

15. Optimizing cost management for customer created 
challenges 

16. Completion of collection cycle with full compliance to 
existing standards, regulations and time sensitive 
requirements  

17. Customer service

• Customer Feedback review  

• Quality Assessment System in Construction.  

• Progress meeting, updates and progress reports  

• Customer relationship management  

• Consultation meetings  

• One-to-one engagement  

• Policies  

• Engaging with  customers will help  to understand their 
expectations and needs and also identify new 
opportunities , improvement , weaknesses and 
challenges to improve our current work practice and 
work performance and at the same time protecting 
company reputation  

• Updated time assessments on on-going approval 
processes 

• Increasing visibility and understanding of evolving 
regulations and methodologies  

• Customer retention  

• Personal consumer engagement  

• Removing consumer unhappiness due to procedural 
misunderstandings  

• Brand loyalty through personal interactions  

• Increasing profitability  

• Market position
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EMPLOYEES 

1. Employees induction programs and appraisal  

2. Set targets/ KPI review  

3. Consultation & monitoring  

4. Safety Committee at factories  

5. Online portal (intranet), newsletters, emails  

6. Employee satisfaction surveys  

7. CSR event  

8. Meetings, feedback sessions and coaching  

9. Other employee engagement activities (such as annual 
dinner, festive celebrations, outdoor sports and 
volunteering work)  

10. Creating strategic innovation  

11. Career development and progression  

12. Knowledge and skills enhancement  

13. Fair remuneration  

14. Work-life balance  

15. Internal engagement activities  

16. Welfare meetings  

17. Operational meetings  

18. Assemblies and briefings  

19. Productivity  

20. Pleasant working Environment  

21. Employee self-development  

22. Career opportunities such as promotion  

23. On job training i.e. internal or external training or 
attend relevant courses  

24. Employee recognitions  

25. Rewards for outstanding achievement

• Career progression, employee development needs.  

• Safety at workplace  

• Employee engagement survey  

• Dialogue and engagement  

• Subsidized employee trips  

• Training and attachment programmes  

• Performance evaluation and management  

• Staff remuneration and benefits  

• Employee well-being  

• Periodic union meetings  

• Leadership engagement sessions  

• Job satisfaction  

• Work-life balance  

• Operational performance and issues  

• Talent management  

• High performance Culture  

• Welfare and benefits  

• Fun, healthy and safe working environment  

• Employee will be self-motivated  and every potential 
employee can achieved and utilize their full potential, 
with this we can assure that we can expect customer 
expectation and increase company mission and vision.

Engagement Approach Engagement Focus & Objectives
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SUPPLIERS 

1. Code of Ethics  

2. Request for Proposal  

3. Supplier Evaluations and selection  

4. Periodic review for new purchases  

5. Training and workshops  

6. Outreach programmes  

7. Creating strategic innovation  

8. Timely payment  

9. Professional and transparent procurement process  

10. Intellectual capital (system & process)  

11. Specific knowledge and skills  

12. Meetings, capacity building sessions and business 
alliance meetings  

13. Site visits  

14. Contracts  

15. Rate, promote and increase the performance of 
suppliers  

16. Ensure continual improvement  

17. Trust and ethics  

18. Responsible procurement  

19. Safety, health and environmental procurement  

20. Proper PPE 

21. Hazardous work (welding) by contractors or 
subcontractors  

• Sound payment practices and vendor performance  

• Supplier assessment review  

• Subcontractors assessment 

• Regular engagement with suppliers and subcontractors 
to understand their needs.  

• One-to-one engagement  

• Contractors forum  

• Code of conduct and business ethics  

• Corporate integrity pledge  

• Procurement process, terms and practices  

• Strategic partnerships  

• Working alliance  

• Compliance of business conduct  

• 2 way communication with our  suppliers to achieved 
our sales target  

• We encourage our suppliers to work openly and 
collaboratively with us to improve our work 
performance and product (rags) quality.  

• We encourage our suppliers to work safely and 
collaboratively with us to improve our safe work 
performance

Engagement Approach Engagement Focus & Objectives
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REGULATORS 

1. Compliance with local authorities, governmental 
bodies/agencies such as SIRIM, DOE, DOSH, local 
enforcement authority such as MPK, JPJ and SPAD 
and Bomba with their requirements and certification 
bodies (ISO) requirements  

2. Reporting of energy savings initiatives.  

3. Meetings and briefings  

4. Site visits  

5. Round table sessions  

6. Outreach programmes  

7. Policies  

8. Regulatory compliance training  

9. Regular dialogue  

10. Creating strategic innovation  

11. Authorization and license to operate  

12. Participation in Government and Regulator events  

13. Regulatory and technical association  

14. Face-to-face meetings  

15. Collaboration activities  

16. Conformance to legislation and license requirements

• Comply with all the requirements  

• Special industrial tariffs  

• Regular engagements and  

• Invitations for site visits  

• Town hall meetings  

• Interpretation of laws/legislations/guidelines  

• Continuous engagement through formal and informal 
events 

• Constructive feedback sessions  

• Participation in surveys, forums & reporting  

• Direct consultation  

• Corporate Integrity Pledge  

• Best practices  

• Branding and reputation  

• Participation  

• Establishing and maintaining relationships with the 
regulators. Companies may provide stakeholders with 
expertise by participating in industry consultations and 
conferences

COMMUNITY 

1. Educating community about the risk from work  

2. Update the neighbourhood about the danger from work 
(odor)  

3. Educating community the nature of our business and 
the risk involved  

4. Participation in company’s safety & environmental 
month activities  

5. Communication with the community regarding the 
processes in the plant

 

Engagement Approach Engagement Focus & Objectives

• We are building positive relationship with the 
communities around the work place and focus on 
supporting the communities to our relevant operations

• Day to day participation with the community 
surrounding area that can build trust and better 
understanding and supportive from the community 
itself  towards our business  

• Participation in conference  

• Public booth  

• Posters
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MEDIA 

1. Road show  

2. Company website

• Media is the most important element for business 
success and it is the most powerful tools to promote 
our services and compete with our fellow competitors 

NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION 

1. Environmental, Safety and Health concerns • Collaborating with NGO’s to improve our services

ECONOMIC SHAREHOLDERS & THE 
INVESTMENT COMMUNITY 

1. Financial  and Economic impact and performance  

2. Business development

• Through company annual meeting and directors 
meeting

GENERAL PUBLIC 

1. Responsible for corporate governance  

2. Social responsibility communications  

3. Dealing with public complaint  

• Company website  

• Improve company performance and reputation by fully 
utilizing available knowledge and technology in used 
to reduce the risks of environmental in a cost efficient 
and sustainable way

TALENT 

1. Recruiting talent  

2. Training and development new  and existing talent  

3. Retaining talent  

4. Developing leadership talent  

5. Creating talented ethical culture  

6. Training planning  

7. Open communication in both ways  

8. Survey or interviews with stake holders  

9. Provide mentoring, coaching & support to employees  

10. Peer to peer feedback  

11. Provide sufficient tools/equipment for the employee to 
perform optimally

• Improve company performance and reputation by fully 
utilizing available knowledge and technology in used 
to reduce the risks of environmental in a cost efficient 
and sustainable way  

• Improve business performance  

• Quality feedback to the management  

• Growth opportunity

Engagement Approach Engagement Focus & Objectives
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Customers

Tex Cycle renders Customers as an important channel to promote environmental preservation and protection of which 
it addresses through the services it offers. Regular engagement is required to reach fair pricing, ensuring best quality of 
service and assurance that their trust in us on waste management is maintained at all times. A common concern raised 
through this engagement is attractive pricing and best service which is promptly addressed by the higher Management 
and Sales Representatives.

Customers are also welcomed periodically to audit the process flow of the recycling and recovery activities in our plant. 

Through exhibitions and initial visits, Customers are provided with brochures explaining the activities, products and 
services, environmental programs and further information on Scheduled Waste Management and its regulations. Tex 
Cycle also connects with Customers through joint activities on their EMP projects. Tex Cycle believes that Customer’s 
trust and confidence in us and our processes are enhanced through our transparency.

Employees

Tex Cycle has always given focus to Employees, one of the most important stakeholder groups “internal” to the core 
operation of the business and its’ most important investment. The Management rates the engagement with Employees 
as valuable and is based on relationship-building from the very beginning. Tex Cycle’s Management deals with its 
Employees with trust, mutual respect and understanding to develop and build interactions. This established relationship 
is the basis to our engagement with our Employees.

Engagement of our workforce, the people of Tex Cycle is important and a vital part of our success. Focus on the people 
and the workplace culture is placed at the top of their list and believes that good performance by our Employees 
should always be recognised and appraised. Tex Cycle continually invests in its Employees and aids in their growth by 
providing the right trainings, build connection to the business through various environmental programs, give rewards 
in various ways for their contribution, create career development opportunities, initiate safe working environment and 
offer physical & financial support where needed.

Suppliers

Tex Cycle also values relationships with its Suppliers as vital to the success of its operations. In our Supplier 
Engagement we aim to receive valuable benefits from our Suppliers. We acknowledge that they are important to the 
business operation as through them we have access to best people, best resources, and first access to innovation, 
latest technological advances, favourable terms and priority allocation of resources in times of scarcity. Having in hand 
the best Supplier can create a vital strategic advantage for the business.

We achieve this through mutual understanding and trust in regular dealing with them best prices are obtained for quality 
goods and services through continued support to Suppliers. Their key concern is that we continue supporting them 
in business for the long term. This concern is addressed through ad-hoc meetings and agreements with major and 
significant Suppliers where mutual value is achieved for both parties.

Regulators

Regulators act as the backbone to Tex Cycle. As its core business operation revolves around the Environment, Regulators 
and their compliances play an important part in ensuring protected interest of all. Regulators whom Tex Cycle closely 
engages with are the Regulatory Bodies such as DOE, DOSH, JPJ, local authority and BOMBA. Environmental issues 
and green matters are the usual highlights in their engagement and occasionally, our facility is also used as learning 
ground for new regulatory officers as well as a site for visit by the regulatory bodies for international visitors. Tex Cycle 
as one of the pioneers in the Management of Scheduled Waste has been also been recently invited by DOE to assist 
in the development of occupational skills in the field of Scheduled Waste Treatment System.

Community

Being in the Industry of Scheduled Waste Management, Tex Cycle’s daily business operations matters to the Community 
as the hazards of the improper handling of toxic wastes may pose serious consequences to the people. And so, 
responsible daily operations matters most in this Community Engagement of Tex Cycle. Through various projects, 
collaborations, exhibitions and programs, Tex Cycle brings awareness on ways to create a better Environment to the 
Community.
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4. Prioritization of Material Sustainability Matters

Tex Cycle has undertaken a stakeholder prioritization and engagement process to engage with its stakeholders. These 
include ongoing efforts to engage with stakeholders in the usual course of business through the day-to-day operations, 
as well as specific engagements carried out to seek stakeholders’ feedback. The outcome of these engagements was 
considered in the course of the Group’s materiality assessment.

As part of the process in conducting the materiality assessment of sustainability matters, the Group has conducted the 
specific engagement process as follows:

	 •	 To determine the key stakeholders with whom the Group should engage, the Group carried out assessments 
		  to identify key stakeholders based on each stakeholder’s influence and dependence on the Group.
	 •	 To gain an insight into these key stakeholders’ concerns, interests and expectations, the Group conducted  
		  discussions including on-going sessions throughout the year to gauge stakeholders’ concerns pertaining to the 
		  list of sustainability matters identified.
	 •	 Where applicable, Tex Cycle also took into account feedbacks from other stakeholder groups, gathered through 
		  various channels and through the on-going engagements during the course of conducting its business  
		  operation.

5. Process Review

The materiality process is undertaken as a key component of the Tex Cycle journey towards identifying the material 
sustainability matters. The SMC has reviewed and approved the processes and outcome of the materiality process 
including the Group’s materiality which guides the Group in addressing and managing its material sustainability matters 
in its business operations. Selected materiality are illustrated below 

ECONOMICS

WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad group of companies is committed to achieve the highest possible ethical standards 
in all of its practices. To achieve these means it encourages freedom of speech. All of us at one time or another has 
concerns about what is happening at work. Usually these concerns are easily resolved. However, when they are about 
unlawful conduct, financial malpractice or dangers to the Company or the environment, it can be difficult to know what 
to do.

Employees may be worried about raising such issues or may want to keep the concerns to themselves, perhaps feeling 
that it is none of their business or that it is only a suspicion. Employees may feel that raising the matter would be disloyal 
to colleagues, managers or to the Company. Employees may decide to say something but find that they have spoken 
to the wrong person or raised the issue in the wrong way and are not sure what to do next.

The Company has introduced this policy to encourage all employees to release any information that is evidence of 
illegal, immoral conduct or malpractices in the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICS 

The Group is committed to conduct its businesses and operations with integrity, openness and accountability and to 
also conduct its affairs in an ethical responsible and transparent manner. The Group has a code of Ethics and Conduct 
that set out the standards and ethical conduct expected of all employees and Directors of the Group.

The Ethics Conduct provides commitment to ethical values through key requirements relating to conflict of interest, 
confidential information, insider information, protection of the Group’s assets and compliance with law and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE 

Tex Cycle, guided by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, has been proactive in promoting good corporate 
governance and ensures that the principles and best practices of good governance are applied throughout the Group. 
Details of our corporate governance framework and practices are elaborated in the Corporate Governance Report 
available in Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
 
An integral part of good corporate governance, a comprehensive Risk Management framework enables Tex Cycle 
to proactively identify, communicate and manage risks and exposures in an integrated, systematic and consistent 
manner. In driving risk awareness, decision-making and business processes are put through prudent risk assessment. 
Fraud and corruption risk have been identified as material to ensure sustainability. 

The Board regards risk management as an integral part of the Group’s business operations and has oversight over this 
critical area through the Audit Committee (AC). The AC, supported by the External Auditors and Internal Auditor who 
provides an independent assessment of the effectiveness of the Group’s financial Risk and on Controls. 

OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
 
Sustainability in supply chain has been increasingly recognized as an important aspect in corporate responsibility. In 
making responsible sourcing decisions, Tex Cycle has started to explore putting in place an appropriate approach to 
consider suppliers’ economic, environmental and social (“EES”) credentials in the lifecycle of supply chain.

In the emplacement of new suppliers, the Group has begun to incorporate sustainability – related criteria in assessing 
the suppliers’ business practices such as workplace relations and, occupational health and safety. For existing vendors 
and suppliers, the Group in the process of sending out surveys to selected suppliers for them to share and affirm their 
commitment towards EES.

Tex Cycle is cognizant that there is still much to improve on managing sustainability in supply chain, and will continue 
to collaborate with its suppliers and vendors to work towards enhanced sustainability practices with respect to EES 
matters.

COMMITMENT TO QUALITY 

Tex Cycle has the policies, procedures and best practices in place to deliver products and services of outstanding 
quality. Furthermore, regular reviews, process improvements and quality control assessments are ensuring that our 
processes remain in compliance and are continually enhanced. 

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Customer satisfaction and engagement was identified as one of the most important material issues in the marketplace 
dimension across all our divisions. Knowing exactly what customers expect from us improves our bottom line and 
strengthens our brands and reputation in the long term. The feedback generated provides insights into customer 
expectations that enable us to develop and deliver better products and services.

BUSINESS CONDUCT

We strive to be environmentally responsible and encourage all our stakeholders to do the same. Consequently, they 
need to use sustainable materials whenever they are cost-effective.

SAFETY AND HEALTH

It is one of our key priorities to maintain a safe and healthy work environment for our workforce. Our Safety and 
Health Policy goes beyond the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994 to ensure that our talent 
work under safe conditions. Our operations are governed by an internally established occupational safety, health and 
environmental management system, which is compliant with the international standards of ISO14001. We also believe 
in providing a comfortable and conducive working environment for our employees.

Tex Cycle is committed to protect the safety, health and welfare of all people and the environment. Our safety, health 
and environmental objectives have equal status with our other primary business and the management is responsible 
for implementing them.
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We promise to:

1. Create a safe and healthy working environment for our employees.
2. Obey all laws and regulations that apply to our business.
3. Act upon all unsafe work practices and conditions immediately
4. Reduce, Reuse and recycle wastes before disposal
5. Conserve energy, minimize the use of resources and prevent pollution.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Towards a Greater Planet

We are mindful of the environmental impact of our activities and maintain full compliance with all the environmental 
regulations.  We take responsibility to managing our environmental impacts seriously. Tex Cyclewill continue to develop 
effective environment initiatives to protect the environment.

The industry we are in have extensive direct and indirect impacts on the environment and aligning ourselves with the 
goals of sustainable of sustainable development.

Tex Cycle has been in the industrial recycling business for nearly two decades and as the leading recycling company 
in the region, we feel an obligation to be a steward for the environment.

1.   We are concerned with suitable development and continual protection as an integral part of the organization  
       process development.
2.   We commit to continual improvement and strive to prevent pollution and works towards reducing waste and 
       consumption of resources that can affect the environment.
3.    We make efforts to ensure all our activities comply with environment regulation. Any non-compliance would be 
       tackled in the shortest time possible.
4.    We set objectives and targets on a continual basis on environment impact assessment findings and review them 
        annually.
5.    Provide documentation of environmental Management System and make employees and all other members  
        working at the site aware of them.
6.     We communicate our environmental Policy to all employees and make it available to the public upon request.

Environmental Issues and the Preventive / Control Measures

Many areas are constantly monitored according to legal requirement, regulations and Company policies. The major 
factors are air pollution & noise, health risk, chemical spillage, effluent from processes, segregation of solid waste and 
disposal of Scheduled Waste.

As international concerns on Global Warming and Climate Change is becoming more serious and important, so are the 
regulations, standards, requirements of local Government are made sterner with frequent round table discussions and 
following amendments. Many Non-Profit Organizations are also increasing their effort in the protection and preservation 
of the Environment. These changes and amendments are also constantly updated into Tex Cycle’s requirements and 
closely monitored and adhered to.

Use of Life Cycle Assessment (LCA) Methodology to Quantify Impacts on the Environment

The LCA analysis provides the opportunity to improve business performances by prioritizing capital investment.    
This allows Tex Cycle to stay competitive in the Scheduled Waste Industry. The LCA analysis with a thorough audit 
exposes areas where we can optimize resources, improve energy consumption and reduce emission of pollution, 
waste generation method, waste characteristics and processes for managing waste and associated costs. The LCA 
analysis also provided an overview of the energy and water usage patterns which assists us to reduce the impact of 
our operations to the environment.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT



Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad
(642619-P)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 38

In addition, the (LCA) analysis provides insight to the following:

Provide a complete picture of how activities interact with the environment.
Identify major environmental impacts and the hot spot emissions contributing to these impacts.
Identify inefficient processes and improve the system in order to minimize waste.
Compare the environmental benefits and setbacks of products and services.
Contribute understanding of the overall consequences of activities, decision and choices.
Obtain information for environmental performance improvements.

Monitoring and Control Parameters

The responsibility of ensuring quality environment without pollution, healthy & comfortable surroundings within Tex Cycle 
is shared by Management and Employees. Every employee is constantly encouraged and reminded to communicate 
the slightest discomfort in the environment where they work in. The effectiveness of the quality in working environment 
is monitored according to ISO 14001 and Environment Quality Act (EQA) 1974 and Occupational Safety & Health Act 
(OSHA) 1994 guidelines.

Pollution Control Monitoring – Air Emission

The Air Emission Monitoring was carried out by UiTM – A & A Laboratory in December 2018. The monitoring results and 
the Conclusion summary which has been certified by the accredited lab are as below:

PARAMETER Unit Results Regulation
13

Wet
scrubber

CAR 2014

Oxides of Nitrogen as Nox
mg/
m

Complied
700

Chlorine as CI2
mg/
m

Complied
32

Hydrogen Chloride as HCI
mg/
m

Complied
200

Hydrogen Sulphide as H2S
mg/
m

Complied
7.6

Hydrogen Fluoride as HF
mg/
m

Complied
50

Oxide of sulphur as SOx
mg/
m

Complied
500

Mercury as Hg
mg/
m

Complied
3

Arsenic as As
mg/
m

Complied
1

Cadmium as Cd
mg/
m

Complied
3

Lead as Pb
mg/
m

Complied
5

Antimony as Sb
mg/
m

Complied
76

Ammonia as NH3
mg/
m

Complied
76

Benzene
mg/
m

Complied
5

Formaldehyde
mg/
m

Complied
20

Zinc as Zn
mg/
m

Complied
-
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Conclusion:

The wet scrubber of Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd. had complied with Regulation 13 of the Environmental Quality (Clean 
Air) Regulation, 2014.

Pollution Control Monitoring – Boundary Noise

The Boundary Noise Monitoring for Tex Cycle was carried out by UiTM – A & A Laboratory in December 2018. The 
monitoring results and the Conclusion summary which has been certified by the accredited lab are portrayed below:

Sampling Points Limit
(dB)

LAeq
(dBA)

Compliance Against DOE’s guideline Schedule of 
Permissible Sound Levels (Schedule 1)

Garden (N1) Day 56.9 70 • Complied

Night 49.4 60 • Complied

Production Area 
(N2)

Day 52.2 70 • Complied

Night 47.5 60 • Complied

Receiving Area 
(N3)

Day 51 70 • Complied

Night 49.8 60 • Complied

Treatment Plant 
(N4)

Day 54.7 70 • Complied

Night 49.9 60 • Complied

Legend

Garden		  : Front Entrance/ Production Area
Production Area	 : Main Production Area
Receiving Area	 : Loading/ Unloading/ Waste Storage Area
Treatment Plant	 : Production/ Recycling Area

Conclusion:

According to the Schedule 1 (Maximum Permissible Sound Level by Receiving Land Use for Planning and New 
Development) of the Planning Guidelines for Environmental Noise Limits and Control under the category of ‘Designated 
Industrial Zones’ the LAeq must not exceed 70dB(A) for the day time.

From the data obtained, it was found that the noise level at N1, N2, N3 and N4 had fulfilled the Department of 
Environment (DOE) guidelines’ requirement.
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Treated Wastewater Quality Analysis Year 2018

No. Parameter JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC Std. B Std. A

°

Units

Our Waste Water Monitoring analysis as required by Schedule 5 of the Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) 
Regulations, 2009 is carried out on a monthly basis by accredited laboratories namely UiTM – A & A Laboratory and 
SGS (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd. The monitoring results summary above for Tex Cycle has been certified by the accredited 
labs as portrayed above.
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WATER MANAGEMENT & CONSUMPTION 

We promote the water saving practices among employees and adopting water-efficient technologies and equipment 
wherever possible. The water consumed at our head office is obtained from the municipal water supply. We have taken 
small steps to control the water usage to be in line with the sustainability efforts, namely:

•    Slow the flow. Adjusting water pressure/outflow for toilets, wash basins, pantry, throughout our head office building.
•    Seek the Leak. Conducting checks and fixing leaks immediately, where possible.

The Water usage below is presented for the Head Office.The date presented below is representative of our first attempt 
to consolidate the water and electricity consumption statistics in the head office. 

)MR( 8102)MR( 7102)MR( 6102tnemnorivnE

180,32698,11653,11eciffO daeH -  noitpmusnoC retaW latoT

      Total Electricity Consumption – Head Office 359,540 493,962 531,343

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

We understand that the energy management is essential for combating climate change and for lowering an organisation’s 
overall environmental footprint. Our electricity supply is from the local supply and we aim to minimize the energy usage 
in our head office by implementing the following efforts:

•    A lighting schedule across key areas in our head office to switch off lights during certain hours of least use.
•    Maintenance and replacement of electrical equipment and light fittings to maximize energy efficiency
•    Campaign to remind all staff  to switch off the lighting, water dispenser, air conditioning, or
•    Other electrical appliances in office and pantry when they are not required.

WASTE MANAGEMENT  
  
Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad  acknowledges that the environmental impact of paper usage is significant. The 
Group’s approach to waste management is to avoid unnecessary paper consumption and waste generation, where 
possible and appropriate, in order to reduce the wastage. Tex Cycle has always looked at ways to reduce paper usage, 
so that less waste. Generally the group practises the following on the paper management:

•    Reducing paper – by encouraging avoiding printing and photocopying and emphasising on paperless and electronic  
    mode. In addition to this, practise double sided printing or reduce the size to have the best economical usage of  
     papers.
•    Reusing – by printing on the other side of the printed papers
•    Recover Recycle – recycle the papers by having proper recycling bins

The efficiency of Tex Cycle in using wastes as its raw material has led to a huge reduction to producing only 3% of final 
generated residue classified as waste through our upgraded and latest machineries and processes. The remaining 
97% wastes are reused, recovered or recycled accordingly to gain further benefits from it.

STORAGE AND COLLECTION OF RECYCLABLES

Tex Cycle has also come out with initiative for storage and collection of wastages and recyclables. This initiative 
objective includes:

•    To provide dedicated area and storage for collection of non-hazardous material for recycling
•    To facilitate the reduction of scheduled waste generated that is hauled to generate energy. 
•    To designate a dedicated area where on-site sorted waste materials can be stored in separate skids for collection  
      facilities.
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Table below shows the types of items recycle/ reused/ disposal at site.

Colour Items
Orange Plastic & Aluminium Cans

Blue Paper
Brown Glass

Managing Environmental Emergencies 

Tex Cycle’s environmental impact risks are carefully and thoroughly identified from the processes and products/ 
materials used throughout the plant. Risks that may exist while transporting are also identified. Appropriate procedures 
and environmental operating instructions are in place to ensure fast and effective response if any of the potential 
environmental emergencies that have been outlined arises. All Employees are trained by ERT Team on Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOP) for emergency situations with frequent emergency mock drills.

The ERT members provide emergency route plans/ maps with safety indications of first aid boxes, fire extinguishers, 
emergency routes, spillage kits, eye washes and etc which are placed around the plant and this map is placed in 
every department for reference. The emergency procedures and vital information are constantly communicated to all 
Employees, Customers and Contractors.

Programs for Tex Cycle Employees on Environmental Emergencies

•    Mock spillage exercise at Customer’s premise
•    Mock spillage exercise for Tex Cycle Employees
•    Training on maintenance of trucks and tips on safe driving
•    Forklift Safety Awareness was specially arranged for Drivers complete with certification
•    Briefing on LPG use, nature of gas, leakage and action
•    Causes of fire, safety tips, extinguishers and practical training by BOMBA
•    Training by St. John Ambulance on methods, mock emergency medical conditions, treatments and procedures
•    In-house training by NIOSH to obtain Contractor Safety Passport
•    Training on proper usage of PPE, benefits and hazards on non-PPE by a PPE Supplier
•    Briefing on chemical use, nature of chemicals, handling by CCM
•   Gotong-royong Telok Gong village together with the local people in support of Tex Cycle’s Environmental 
	 Month

SOCIAL 

The Importance of Community 

The Group is committed to promote social responsibilities as an integral part of the Group whilst pursuing business 
growth to enhance shareholders and stakeholders value. Management recognises that for long term sustainability, its 
strategic orientation will need to cater beyond the financial parameters. 

As we look back on 2018, we are proud of these values for safety, quality, integrity, diversity, innovation and sustainability 
have shaped our on-going commitment to corporate social responsibility and have challenged us to reach even higher 
to ensure we are a responsible corporate citizen, employer of choice,  and a positive contributor to the economy during 
economic downpour.
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A strong commitment to social responsibility programs can protect and enhance a company’s brand. As the word gets 
out about a company’s good works, it can help create a positive working environment and attract desirable employee 
a strong commitment to corporate social responsibility programs.

The Company manage to organise several activities to sustain its corporate social responsibilities (CSR) to the 
environment, employees and community. Among the main programmes initiated were Quality, Health, Safety, Security 
and Environmental (QHSSE) campaign, Sport and Recreational activities and welfare events.  

The social reporting for Tex Cycle is available to the public and can be obtained through various means. Primarily, the 
following are used:

•    Brochures on products, services, activities and environmental objective
•    Exhibition and roadshows on environmental awareness and community projects
•    Annual Report that summarize Financial Report and Corporate Responsibility (CR) activities
•    Sustainability Report (Environmental Report) according to ACCA guidelines
•    Website provides more information on activities, products, community services and events

Our Approach
 
Our initiatives in the community are concentrated on:

1.   Workplace
      
     (a)   Education and Individual Development	

     (b)   Sports and Recreational Activities

2. Community;

3. Safe Workplace Practices;

4. Leadership & Commitment;

1. Workplace

a. Education and Individual Development

Employees of Tex Cycle are appreciated for their ongoing contributions to the company throughout the year as they are 
capable of furthering the Organization’s success. To retain its people, Tex Cycle provides them with benefits and aims 
to create a work environment that can encourage and enable them to be responsible humans. Tex Cycle has identified 
and gratified Employees who’ve been with the Management through evolving challenges that we’ve faced and continue 
facing as a growing and developing Company. Some of the continuous benefits to our Employees are listed below:

•	 Eligible Employees are given education scholarships to pursue higher studies in fields related to their jobs
•	 Employee of the quarters & Employee of the year awards
•	 Company’s share distribution
•	 Family Day gathering and activities / Recycling Day
•	 Staff Recreation
•	 Competition on Environmental, Safety and Health issues after training
•	 Recycling Campaign
•	 Award given to the section/area which complies with the audit checklist
•	 Promotions / bonus
•	 Incentives for full attendance
•	 Safety, Health & Environmental Month
•	 Competition and activities involving staff members and their family
•	 Recognition of staffs with long service
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•	 Employees children are given financial assistance for school necessities
•	 Adequate insurance coverage
•	 Annual Medical Health Check for Employees
•	 Heart Disease and Diabetic Talk
•	 First Aid Training
•	 Stress Management Talk
•	 Distribution of Festive Goodies

b. Sports and Recreational Activities

In addition to encouraging continued participation, Tex Cycle prides itself on developing programmed and projects in 
partnership with the community that promotes a series of benefits beyond the traditional aspirations of improved health 
and wellbeing. 

It’s our culture and belief that sport and recreation can be a vehicle for positive social change. By participating in sport 
can improve the quality of life of individuals and communities, promote social inclusion, improve health, counter anti-
social behaviour, raise individual self-esteem and confidence, and widen horizons.

We establish partnership with a range of organisations and agencies, to demonstrate the extent to which sports can 
contribute as well as to assist the organisations to achieve its objectives. We promote the following elements for the 
wellbeing of the individuals and community:

•	 Brings people together, providing opportunities for social interaction.
•	 Empowers, inspires and motivates individuals.
•	 Improves mental health.
•	 Reduces pollution – promotes use of active modes of transport like walking and cycling.
•	 Provides a vehicle for inclusion, drawing together people of different races, religions and cultures.
•	 Creates opportunities for, and promotes, volunteering.
•	 Contributes to higher levels of self-esteem and self-worth.
•	 Helps to sustain the environment through protecting open space and natural areas.

2. Community

Tex Cycle is dedicated to support the community by reaching out to the community around us. During the financial 
year, the Group had made monetary donation to various organizations like charities, sports activities and religious 
establishments. These contributions were in line with the Group’s commitment to support and keep abreast with 
society’s evolving needs.

A major focus of our community initiatives is in education. Each year we provide internships to deserving Malaysians to 
take part in the internship programme whereby we provide practical training to the undergraduates where opportunities 
of employment are given to them upon completion of their studies. The training provided them with valuable experiences 
and knowledge besides the opportunity to fulfil their university requirements.

Being in the Industry of Scheduled Waste Management, Tex Cycle’s daily business operations matters to the Community 
as the hazards of the improper handling of toxic wastes may pose serious consequences to the people. And so, 
responsible daily operations matters most in this Community Engagement of Tex Cycle. Through various projects, 
collaborations, exhibitions and programs, Tex Cycle brings awareness on ways to create a better Environment to the 
Community.
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Tex Cycle gives a very special focus to young children as they are the future generation of what we have to offer. Thus 
early education and awareness to this group of community on environmental protection, preservation, waste reduction 
and 4R’s are constantly exposed and cultivated in them through sessions, briefings, talks as well as sponsorships.
Young adults who are furthering their education in the Environmental and related studies often visit Tex Cycle to gain 
more knowledge on ways of reducing waste and recycling in the industrial point of view.

Another focus of Tex Cycle besides environmental issues in the Community at large is the health and financial concern 
for the less privileged groups. Tex Cycle is the main sponsor of a Dialysis Centre in the Klang Valley with the collaboration 
of an NGO. It faithfully continues to provide the less fortunate with the much needed medical requirement with annual 
financial aids to the centre so that they may carry on with their lives. Tex Cycle also distributes its profits generously on 
a continuous basis to other charitable organizations with the aim to lessen poverty and extend help to the needy and 
the less fortunate not only with monetary contribution but also with sponsorship of basic necessities.

Tex Cycle is pleased to have reached this significant milestone with regular, consistent and relevant Stakeholders 
Engagement with all of the above groups. Tex Cycle believes that the powerful combination of our Stakeholders 
will continue bringing its assets, its people and its vision together to deliver sustainable value to all its Stakeholders 
environmentally and profitably.

3. Safe Workplace Practices

Tex Cycle is committed to providing a safe work environment and ensuring team members are properly trained in all 
aspects of their work. Therefore, the company’s, Health, Safety, Security and Environmental programme is designed to 
integrate HSSE initiatives into all aspects of business operations.

4. Leadership & Commitment

Top management  ensure that the requirements of the management system, including the policies and objectives, 
are consistent with the strategic context and direction of our organisation, and that the policies and objectives are 
established whilst ensuring that the human and financial resources needed for implementing the Management System 
are available. 

We continue to strive to adhere to stringent occupational safety and health practices, providing a safer working 
environment for our workforce.

Our commitments are:

a. Services - Global Positioning System (GPS) is installed inside all Tex Cycle’s trucks therefore providing  
	 assurance to community and enforcement officers on the location and logistic of the scheduled waste. It  
	 provides higher esteem and integrity to the Scheduled Waste Management industry and an accountability of 
	  the ‘cradle to grave’ system for the waste contractors.

b. Trained Personnel - Tex Cycle staffs are trained internally on SOP on emergency situations and cross training  
	 with Customers on mock emergency exercises that help provide an opportunity for Tex Cycle’s staff to access  
	 their own knowledge against Customer’s method of training.

c. School Programs - Tex Cycle encourages students especially from upper secondary schools to visit and 
	 participate in Environmental programs. Students will have the opportunity to understand the process of 
	 scheduled waste recycling and recovery, hands-on JAR test in the wastewater area, hands-on group activities on  
	 creating products from household waste, understanding the benefits of recycling and initiate 4R activities in  
	 their own school.

d. Community Awareness - Any participating community member who are keen on environmental awareness  
	 programs are welcomed. Adult groups are given a detailed presentation on the history, processes and relevant  
	 information on Tex Cycle, followed by a plant tour and finally, a Q&A session which provides an alternative  
	 perspective on understanding the concept of recycling and awareness towards Scheduled Waste Management.  
	 We encourage community to be responsible for their own environmental health and not completely depend on

	 the Government for enforcement.
e. Local University - We support the universities by providing research funds and required information for the  

	 research related with the industry and accept final year students for internship.
f.   Customer EMP - We support Customers’ EMS, ISO14001 certification and environmental program by assisting  

	 customers with their regulation and compliance issues.
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               g.    Department of Environment (DOE) - Tex Cycle has participated in the Selangor State and National Environmental  
	 week (MASM) exhibition, bringing Scheduled Waste Management awareness to community within Selangor 
	 and the whole of Peninsular Malaysia. In collaboration with Selangor DOE, an environmental camp during the  
	 State Environmental Week was jointly organized.

5. Management Review for HSSE Policies & Procedures

The Management Review process requires that the HSSE policies and procedures is reviewed by Management at 
planned intervals to ensure continued system effectiveness and efficiency.

The details of amendments were made accordingly.

Awards Achieved Prior 2017

ISO 14001 – Tex Cycle was first awarded with the ISO 14001 certification in March 2003 and has been recertified to 
date.

Prime Minister Hibiscus Awards

Tex Cycle was the winner of the year 2004 “AnugerahAlamSekitar” Award. The Industry Environmental Award for SME 
is the highest award given out by the Selangor State Government.

•	 Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2005/2006 (Notable / SMI Special Award)
•	 Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 Selangor Government
•	 Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 SME Special Award
•	 Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2006/2007 Exceptional Achievement in Environmental Performance
•	 Prime Minister Hibiscus Award 2008/2009 for Notable Achievement in Environmental Performance

Malaysian Canadian Business Council

•	 Malaysian Canadian Business Council (MCBC) Silver Award in Industrial Excellence in Professional Services 
	 Award 2006
•	 Malaysia Canada Business Council (MCBC) Company of the Year Award under Business Excellence Awards 
	 2008
•	 Malaysia Canada Business Council (MCBC) Talisman Malaysia Limited Award Industry Excellence for  
	 Environment under Business Excellence Awards 2008

ACCA

•	 ACCA – MaSRA First Time Reporting 2006
•	 ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards for Transparency (MaSRA) 2009 (shortlisted)
•	 ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards (MaSRA) 2011 – (shortlisted) National Award for 
	 ManagementAccounting
•	 Practice Solution Award 2008 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management  
	 Accounting(NAfMA)
•	 Practice Solution Award 2009 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management 
	 Accounting(NAfMA)
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•	 Practice Solution Award 2010 under Non-listed SME Category from National Award for Management  
	 Accounting(NAfMA)
•	 ACCA Malaysia Sustainability Reporting Awards (MaSRA) 2014 – Shortlisted

Star Biz ICR Malaysia

•	 Corporate Responsibility Award 2008 for Environment Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion  
	 from Star Biz ICR Malaysia
•	 Corporate Responsibility Award 2009 for Marketplace Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion 
	 from StarBiz ICR Malaysia
•	 Corporate Responsibility Award 2010 for Marketplace Category for market capitalization be low RM1billion 
	 from StarBiz ICR Malaysia

KPMG Malaysia

•	 KPMG Shareholder Value Award 2010 – Winner for Infrastructure Award Achieved In 2014

Looking Ahead 

For several years we continuously publish our Sustainability Statement under the category of CSR, and although we 
have made some development towards formalising sustainability within our business, we recognise that we still have 
room for enhancement, both in terms of initiatives undertaken and our reporting structure. As we continue on our 
sustainability journey, our ultimate goal is to build a sustainable business for generations to come. To achieve this, we 
will continually keep abreast of developments in our industry, actively and regularly engage our stakeholders, build 
upon our existing sustainability framework, and seek to further embed sustainable practices within our businesses so 
as to improve our overall sustainability performance. 

Moving forward, we will enhance the materiality factors and metrics and targets to measure issues that are material to 
our business and move towards benchmarking our progress against international standards of reporting. 

As we look to the future, it is our hope that we will continue to introduce new and exciting quality for our customers, 
enrich our local communities, create value for our stakeholders, and be an organisation that people will be proud to 
associate.

SHE Month

•     Trainings for drivers – Safety & Spillage Trainings
•     Environmental Movie Night  
•     BOMBA training for Emergency Response Team 

Instructions are in place to ensure fast and effective response to the emergency situation. The production staff and 
drivers are trained on the standard operating procedures for these emergency situations and also carry out emergency 
mock drills.

The ERT members meet occasionally to discuss on ways to improve the safety situation in the organization and they 
are reminded on the specific duties during an emergency. The ERT team members will also provide feedback on the 
emergency drills carried out and together as team, will try to improve the emergency drills in the following year.
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The emergency route plan with safety indications on the map such as first aid boxes, fire extinguisher, emergency 
route, spillage kit, eye wash and etc are placed around the plant and in every department for the staff reference. The 
emergency numbers to call in an emergency are communicated to all staff especially ERT members and are placed in 
each department’s notice board.

Customers and contractors are also briefed on the emergency route and plan before entering into the production floor. 
The staff also have the opportunity to train with our customers on the cross training program on emergency spillage 
exercise. Tex Cycle staff will be able to cross examine the experience and knowledge they have gained from their own 
trainings.
                                                                                                                  
The following activities have been implemented in Tex Cycle where all staffs participate in resource conservation 
activities:

•     Product Submission 
•     Gotong Royong 
•     Poster &  Product Judgement by DOE
•     Futsal league
•     Badminton Tournament – 06.10.2018
•     First Aider training - ST. JOHN’S training on First Aid, CPR, bleeding, fracture, shock, responsibility, do’s and don’ts 
      of a first aider.
•     Poster Submission 
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The Board of Directors of the Group is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the financial year ended 
(“FYE”) 31 December 2018.

MEMBERSHIP

The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the directors and shall consist of not less than 
three (3) members, a majority of whom shall be Independent Directors. All members of the Audit Committee should be 
Non-Executive Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from among their members who shall be an Independent 
Director. No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.

At least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:-

(a) 	 must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
(b)	 if he/she is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he/she must have at least three (3) years’ 
	 working experience and:
	
	 • he/ she must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act, 
	   1967; or
	 • he/ she must be a member of one (1) of the association of accountants specified in Part II of the First  
	   Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967; or
	 • fulfils such other requirement as prescribed by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

The Audit Committee of the Group comprises the following members:

Chairman
Ravindran Markandu
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Members
Razali Bin Jantan (Resigned on 9 April 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Chan Jee Peng (Appointed on 8 October 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee comprises three (3) Non-Executive Directors during FYE 31 December 2018, all of whom 
are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Ravindran Markandu is a Fellow Member of 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. 

The composition of the Audit Committee and the qualification of the members comply with Paragraph 15.09 (1) of the 
ACE Market Listing Requirement of Bursa Securities (“ACE LR”)

Subsequent to the resignation of Encik Razali Bin Jantan on 9 April 2018, the Nominating Committee and the Board of 
Directors had on 8 October 2018 appointed Mr. Chan Jee Peng as the Independent Non-executive Director as well as 
a member of the Audit Committee.

AUTHORITY

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its Terms of Reference and shall 
have unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group, both the internal and external auditors and to 
all employees of the Group. The Audit Committee is also authorised by the Board to obtain external legal or other 
independent professional advice as necessary in the discharge of its duties.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are available on Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad’s website at http://
texcycle.com.my/texcycle/terms-of-reference-of-audit-committee/. 
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MEETINGS AND MINUTES

Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times a year, and will normally be attended by the Chief Financial Officer, 
Financial Controller and other senior management, if necessary. The presence of external and/or internal auditors 
will be requested, if required. Other members of the Board and senior management may attend meetings upon the 
invitation of the Audit Committee. Both the internal and/or external auditors may request a meeting if they consider it to 
be necessary. The Audit Committee shall meet with the external and internal auditors at least twice a year without the 
presence of executive members of the Board.

The Secretary to the Audit Committee shall be the Company Secretary. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall 
report on each meeting to the Board.

The Audit Committee has met with the external and internal auditors without executive board members present at least 
twice a year. 

During the year, the Audit Committee held a total of five (5) meetings. The Chief Financial Officer, Financial Controller, 
internal auditors and external auditors, have been invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings to present their audit 
plans and their subsequent findings.

The details of attendance of the Audit Committee members are as follows:

      Committee Members							       Meeting Attendance

      Ravindran Markandu							       6/6
      Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo						      6/6
      Chan Jee Peng (Appointed on 8 October 2018)				   1/1
      Razali Bin Jantan (Resigned on 9 April 2018)				    2/2

Responsibilities and Duties

In fulfilling its primary objectives, the Audit Committee undertakes, amongst others, the following responsibilities and 
duties:-

a) 	 To discuss with the external auditors, prior to the commencement of audit, the audit plan which states the 
	 nature and scope of audit;
b) 	 To review major audit findings arising from the interim and final external audits, the audit report and the 
	 assistance given by the Group’s officers to the external auditors;
c)	 To review with the external auditors, their evaluation of the system of internal controls, their management letter 
	 and management’s responses;
d) 	 To review the following in respect of internal audit:-
	 •	 adequacy of scope, functions and resources of the firm of internal auditors (that was engaged to 
		  undertake the internal audit function) and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
	 •	 the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process and, where necessary, ensure 
		  that appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
	 •	 the major findings of internal audit investigations and management’s response, and ensure tha 
		  appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
	 •	 review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function; and
	 •	 review and approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit 
		  function.
e) 	 To review the quarterly reporting to Bursa Securities and year-end annual financial statements of the Group 
	 before submission to the Board, focusing on:-
	 •	 compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirements;
	 •	 any major changes in accounting policies;
	 •	 significant and unusual items and events; and
	 •	 incidences of fraud and material litigation, if any.
f) 	 To review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situations that may arise within the Group 
	 including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management’s integrity;
g) 	 To consider the nomination and appointment of external auditors, as well as the audit fee;
h) 	 To review the resignation or dismissal of external auditors;
i) 	 To review whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the external auditors are not suitable 
	 for reappointment; and
j) 	 To promptly report to Bursa Securities if it is of the view that a matter reported by it to the Board has not been  
	 satisfactorily resolved resulting in a breach of the ACE LR.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function (“IAF”) is outsourced to a professional Internal Audit firm, Smart Focus Group 
which adopts internal audit standards and best practices based on the International Professional Practices Framework, 
endorsed by the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. The IAF team is headed by an Associate Director - Advisory, 
who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Internal Auditors and was assisted by three staff during the financial year 
under review.
 
None of the internal audit personnel has any relationship or conflict of interest that could impair their objectivity and 
independence in conducting their internal audit functions. IAF provides independent assessment on the effectiveness 
and efficiency of internal controls utilizing a global audit methodology and tool to support the corporate governance 
framework and an efficient and effective risk management framework to provide assurance to the Audit Committee 
 
Details of the Groups’ internal control system and risk management framework are set out under Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control in this Annual Report.
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committees’ activities during the financial year under review comprised the following:-

Quarterly Financial Statements and Audited Financial Statements

•	 reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company prior to submission to the Directors for their perusal 
	 and approval. This was to ensure compliance of the financial statements with the provisions of the Companies 
	 Act, 2016 and the applicable approved accounting standards as per Malaysian Accounting Standards Board; 
	 and

•	 reviewed the unaudited financial results before recommending them for Board’s approval, focusing particularly 
	 on:-

	 -  Any change in accounting policies
	 - Significant adjustments arising from audit
	 - Compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements

External Auditors

•	 reviewed the external audit plan, outlining the audit scope, audit process and areas of emphasis based on the 
	 external auditors’ presentation of audit plan;
•	 reviewed the external audit review memorandum and audit planning memorandum and the response from the 
	 Management;
•	 consideration and recommendation to the Board for approval of the audit fees payable to the external auditors; 
•	 reviewed the performance and effectiveness of the external auditors in the provision of statutory audit services 
	 and recommend to the Board for approval on the re-appointment of external auditors; and
•	 reviewed and evaluated the factors relating to the independence of the external auditors.

At the Audit Committee Meeting held on 13 November 2018, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board for 
approval of the audit fee of RM93,000.00 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Internal Auditors

The Group outsources its Internal Audit Function to a professional services firm, namely Smart Focus. The Internal 
Auditors were engaged to conduct regular review and appraisals of the effectiveness of the governance, risk 
management and internal control process within the Company and the Group.

The Internal Audit Report directly to the Audit Committee, the appointed Internal Auditors are given full access to all 
the documents relating to the Company and Group’s governance, financial statements and operational assessments.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The internal control and risk management activities carried out during the financial year are as follows:-

•	 reviewed the internal audit plan for adequacy scope and coverage and risk areas;
•	 reviewed risk management report and internal audit reports;
•	 reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management, operational and compliance processes;
•	 reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of corrective actions taken by the Management on all significant 
	 matters raised; and
•	 monitored and reviewed fraud cases.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

At each quarterly meeting, the Audit Committee reviewed the recurrent related party transactions (“RPT”) and conflict 
of interest situation that may arise within the Company and its Group including any transaction, procedure or course of 
conduct that raises questions of Management integrity.

The Audit Committee reviews the RPT and conflict of interest situation presented by the Management prior to the 
Company entering into such transaction. The Audit Committee also ensure that the adequate oversight over the controls 
on the identification of the interested parties and possible conflict of interest situation before entering into transaction.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad (“TEX CYCLE” or “the Company”) is committed 
to uphold the high standards of corporate governance throughout TEX CYCLE and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) 
with the ultimate objective of realising long-term shareholder value while taking into account the interest of other 
stakeholders. This corporate governance overview statement sets out the extent to which the Company has applied 
the practices encapsulated in the Principles of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) except where 
stated otherwise. 

Details of the Group’s application of each practices set out in the MCCG are disclosed in the Corporate Governance 
Report, which is available on the Group’s website at www.texcycle.com.my .

PRINCIPLE A – BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

I. Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the oversight and overall management of the Company and has developed corporate 
objectives and position descriptions including the limits to management’s responsibilities, which the management are 
aware and are responsible for meeting.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to itself for decision, which includes the overall Group strategy 
and direction, investment policy, major capital expenditures, consideration of significant financial matters and review of 
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

The Board understands the principal risks of all aspects of the business that the Group is engaged in recognising that 
business decisions require the incurrence of risk. To achieve a proper balance between risks incurred and potential 
returns to shareholders, the Board ensures that there are in place systems that effectively monitor and manage these 
risks with a view to the long term viability of the Group.

The principal roles and responsibilities assumed by the Board are as follows:

a.	 Reviewing and providing guidance on the Company’s and the Group’s annual budgets, development of risk 
	 policies, major capital expenditures, acquisitions and disposals;
b. 	 Monitoring corporate performance and the conduct of the Group’s business and to ensure compliance with best  
	 practices and principles of corporate governance;
c.	 Identifying and implementing appropriate systems to manage principal risks. The Board undertakes this  
	 responsibility through the Audit Committee;
d. 	 Reviewing and ensuring the adequacy and soundness of the Group’s financial system, internal control systems and  
	 management information system and that they are in compliance with the applicable standards, laws and  
	 regulations;
e. 	 Ensuring a transparent Board nomination and remuneration process including management, ensuring the skills  
	 and experiences of the Directors are adequate for discharging their responsibilities whilst the caliber of the  
	 Independent Non-Executive Directors bring independent judgment in the decision making process;
f. 	 Ensuring a proper succession plan is in place;
g.	  Monitoring major litigation;
h. 	 Approving all financial reports to be published and related stock exchange announcements;
i. 	 Monitoring other material reporting and external communications by the Group;
j. 	 Approving the dividend policy and payment of dividends;
k. 	 Appointing external auditors (subject to shareholders’ approval); and
l. 	 Considering and reviewing the social, ethical and environmental impact of the Group’s activities and determining, 
	 monitoring and reviewing standards and policies to guide the Group in this regard.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company play a key role in providing unbiased and independent 
views, advice and contributing their knowledge and experience toward the formulation of policies and in the decision-
making process. The Board structure ensures that no individual or group of individuals dominates the Board’s decision-
making process. Although all the Directors have equal responsibility for the Company and the Group’s operations, the 
role of the Independent Directors are particularly important in ensuring that the strategies proposed by the Executive 
Directors are deliberated on and have taken into account the interest, not only of the Company, but also that of the 
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and the community
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OVERVIEW STATEMENT

The Board had appropriately delegated specific tasks to three (3) Board Committees; namely Audit Committee, 
Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees have its own terms of reference and 
has the authority to act on behalf of the Board within the authority as lay out in the terms of reference and to report to 
the board with the necessary recommendation.

To ensure balance of power and authority, accountability and independent decision making, the roles of the Chairman 
and the Managing Director are distinct and separated.

The Executive Chairman, Mr. Ho Siew Choong was appointed after taking into account his vast experience in areas 
of business management such as Human Resource, Finance, Marketing, Research and Development, Sales and 
Distribution. The Chairman is responsible for leadership, ensuring effective functioning of the Board and providing 
oversight over the operations of the Group.

The Managing Director, Mr. Periasamy A/L Sinakalai supported by the Executive Directors, is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the operations of the Group, implementation of the Group’s policies, business direction and 
development of the Group.

The Company has formalised and adopted a Board Charter which sets out a list of specific roles and functions which 
are reserved to the Board and other matters that are important for good corporate governance. The Board Charter 
is accessible through the Company’s website at http://texcycle.com.my/texcycle/board-charter/ and will be reviewed 
annually to ensure it remains consistent with the Board’s objectives, responsibilities and practices

The Board has formalised a Whistle-blowing Policy, with the aim to provide an avenue for raising concerns related to 
possible breach of business conduct, non-compliance of laws and regulatory requirements as well as other malpractices. 
The details of the Whistle-blowing Policy are available for reference at the Company’s website at http://texcycle.com.
my/texcycle/whistle-blowing-policy/.

The Board is supported by qualified and competent Company Secretaries who are responsible for ensuring that the 
Company’s constitutions, procedures, policies and regulations are complied with. Also ensuring that, all obligations 
required by the regulatory and under the Listing requirements are fulfilled in a timely manner. The Board is regularly 
updated and advised by the Company Secretaries on any new statutory and regulatory requirements in relation to 
their duties and responsibilities. The Board recognises that the Company Secretaries is suitably qualified and capable 
of carrying out the duties required. The Board is satisfied with the service and support rendered by the Company 
Secretaries in discharge of their functions.

Board Meetings are scheduled for every quarter with additional meetings to be convened as and when required. During 
the financial year under review, the Board met a total of five (5) times. The attendance of the Directors who held office 
during the financial year is set out below:

The Board is satisfied with the level of time commitment given by the Directors of the Company towards fulfilling their 
duties and responsibilities. This is evidenced by the attendance record of the Directors as set out herein above.

Names of Directors

Executive Directors
Ho Siew Choong
Periasamy A/L Sinakalai
Ho Siew Cheong
Ho Siew Weng

Non-Executive Directors
Razali Bin Jantan (Resigned on 9 April 2018)
Ravindran Markandu 
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo
Chan Jee Peng (Appointed on 8 Oct 2018)

Attendance at meeting

5/5
5/5
4/5
5/5

2/2
5/5
5/5
1/1

Percentage of Attendance

100%
100%
80%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
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Although the Board does not have a policy requiring each Director to attend a specific number and types of training 
sessions each year, to keep abreast of industry developments and trends, the Directors are encouraged to attend 
various external professional programmes deemed necessary to ensure that they are kept abreast on various issues 
facing the changing business environment within which the Group operates, in order to fulfil their duties as Directors. Any 
Director appointed to the Board is required to complete the MAP within four (4) months from the date of appointment.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors have attended several relevant courses as below:

Directors

Ho Siew Choong

Periasamy A/L Sinakalai

Ho Siew Weng

Ho Siew Cheong

Ravindran Markandu

Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo

Chan Jee Peng 
(Appointed on 8 Oct 2018)

Seminar / Conference / Workshop

Setting the Stage for a New Malaysia and Dana Malaysia Talk

Environmentally Sound Management of Mercury Waste Generated from Oil & 
Gas Industries in Malaysia

Risk First Approach and Market Outlook

Forex Outlook

Inaugural Town Hall Session: Re Industry with YB Puan Yeo Bee Yin

Investment Forum 2018 What is Next

Waste Management and Waste to Energy Asia Summit 2018 Malaysia Focus

Setting the Stage for a New Malaysia and Dana Malaysia Talk

SEDA Renewable Energy (RE) Focus Group Discussion – Waste to Energy 
Sector

Inaugural Town Hall Session: Re Industry with YB Puan Yeo Bee Yin

Sustainability Report Training by Smart Focus

Case Study Workshop for Independent Directors

Sustainability Report Training by Smart Focus

Accountants of Today: Charting Tomorrow’s Future

Going Concern – ISA 570 (Revised)

Audit Quality Enhancement Programme for SMPs 2018

II. Board Composition

The Board currently consists of seven (7) members, comprising the Executive Chairman, Managing Director, two (2) 
Executive Director, and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors. Based on the annual review of the composition 
of the Board carried out by the Nomination Committee, the Board is satisfied that its current size and composition 
reflects an appropriate balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors which is adequate for the scope and nature 
of the Group’s business and operations. 

Nonetheless, the Company is engaging with various parties including some retiring officers from the government to join 
the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors to meet the requirement under Practice 4.1.
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The Board reviews and assesses the independence of directors annually based on the criteria set by the Nomination 
Committee. One of the assessment criteria is the ability of the individual director to exercise objectivity in the discharge 
of his or her responsibilities in the interest of the Company. During the financial year, a self-declaration was conducted at 
each Board meeting where all Directors declared the nature of their interest in the Company, whether direct or indirect, 
or any circumstance which may potentially affect their independence. The Board had also carried out independence 
assessment of its Non-Executive Directors in terms of their relationship and dealings with the Company and the Board 
is of the view that all the Non-Executive Directors remain independent. 

The Board is of the view that throughout their tenure, the Independent Directors had demonstrated independence in 
character and judgement, and had always looked out for the best interest of the Company without fear or favour. The 
Independent Directors had provided independent view based on their experience and knowledge that allow for diverse 
and objectives perspectives on the Group’s business and direction. The Board believes that the length of service on 
the Board did not impair the objectivity of these Independent Directors. Moreover, the Independent Directors had made 
significant contributions to the Board in view of their sufficient breadth of understanding of the Group’s activities and 
corporate history that will continue to add value to the Board. 

The Company currently does not have a policy to limit the tenure of its independent directors to nine (9) years. 
Nevertheless, pursuant to Practice 4.2 of the MCCG, the Company will seek its shareholders’ approval to retain its 
Independent Director at the forthcoming AGM. 

III. Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee is authorised by the Board to establish a formal and transparent procedure for 
developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors. The 
remuneration of Directors shall be the ultimate responsibility of the full Board after considering the recommendations 
of the Remuneration Committee. 

The Remuneration Committee was established to assist the Board in developing remuneration policies and procedures 
that enable the Group to attract, motivate and retain qualified Directors and key Senior Management personnel. Full 
details of the functions and duties of the Remuneration Committee are stated in its Terms of Reference which is available 
on the Company’s website at http://texcycle.com.my/texcycle/terms-of-reference-of-remuneration-committee-meeting/. 

During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee had carried out the following activities: 

(a)	 reviewed and assessed the performance and the remuneration package of the Executive Directors;
(b)	 reviewed and assessed the Directors’ fees and benefits payable for the financial year ended 2018; 
(c)	 reviewed and assessed the performance and the remuneration package of the key Senior Management;
(d)	 reviewed and updated its Terms of Reference; and
(e)	 reviewed the Board Remuneration Policy.
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The composition and range of remuneration package received by the Directors during the financial year is as follows:

(i)	 Received from the Company

Fees and
meet ing
al lowances
(RM)

Salaries &
other
emoluments
(RM)

Bonuses
(RM)

EPS,
SOCSO
& EIS
(RM)

Benef i t -
in-Kind
(RM)

Total  (RM)

Execut ive Directors

Non-Execut ive Directors

1.

2.

3.

4.

Ho Siew Choong

Periasamy
A/L Sinakalai

Ho Siew Weng

Ho Siew Cheong

60,000

-

-

-

5.

6.

7.

8.

37,500

36,000

9,000

9,000

151,500

10,500

11,800

3,100

3,500

47,500

48,000

47,800

12,100

12,500

199,000

-

-

-

-

-

66,000

4,900

4,200

3,500

6,000

4,900

4,200

3,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total:

Ravindran 
Markandu

Alagasan A/L
Varatharajoo

Chan Jee Peng

Razali Bin Jantan 
(Resigned on 9 
April 2018)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Fees
(RM)

Salaries &
other
emoluments
(RM)

Bonuses
(RM)

EPS,
SOCSO
& EIS
(RM)

Benef i t -
in-Kind
(RM)

Total  (RM)

Execut ive Directors

Non-Execut ive Directors

1.

2.

3.

4.

Ho Siew Choong

Periasamy
A/L Sinakalai

Ho Siew Weng

Ho Siew Cheong

5.

6.

7.

Total:

Ravindran 
Markandu

Alagasan A/L
Varatharajoo

Chan Jee Peng
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(ii)	 Received from the Subsidiaries Companies

Please refer to page 125 of the Annual Report 2018.

Please refer to page 125 of the Annual Report 2018.
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PRINCIPLE B – EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

I. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Group comprises the following members:

Chairman
Ravindran Markandu 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Members
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo
Independent Non-Executive Director 

Chan Jee Peng (Appointed on 8 October 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Razali Bin Jantan (Resigned on 9 April 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman of the Board. The Audit Committee Report is set out 
separately in this Annual Report. Full details of the Audit Committee’s duties and responsibilities are stated in its TOR 
which is available on the Company’s website.

The Board, through its Audit Committee maintains a formal and transparent relationship with its External Auditors. The 
Audit Committee ensured that the External Auditors work closely with the Internal Auditors to enhance the effectiveness 
of the overall audit process. The Audit Committee assessed the performance and effectiveness of the External Auditors 
annually, considering amongst others, their qualifications, effectiveness of the audit process, quality of service and their 
independence.

In the course of their audit, the External Auditors highlighted to the Audit Committee matters pertaining to the financial 
reporting. Private meetings between them were held twice during the financial year without the presence of the 
Management and Executive Directors, to discuss any issues that may require the attention of the Audit Committee. 

The full details of the role of the Audit Committee in relation to the External Auditors are set out in the Audit Committee 
Report of this Annual Report.

II. Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Board is fully aware of its overall responsibility of continually maintaining a sound system of internal control, which 
covers not only financial controls but also operational and compliance controls as well as risk management, and the 
need to review its effectiveness regularly in order to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. 
The internal control system is designed to identify the risks to which the Group is exposed and mitigate the impacts 
thereof to meet the particular needs of the Group.

As an effort to enhance the system of internal control, the Board together with the assistance of external professional 
Internal Audit firm will undertake to review the existing risk management process in place within the various business 
operations, with the aim of formalising the risk management functions across the Group. This function also acts as a 
source to assist the Audit Committee and the Board to strengthen and improve current management and operating 
style in pursuit of best practices.

PRINCIPLE C – INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

I. Communication with Stakeholders 

The Company is committed to ensure that timely, accurate and complete information about the Company is provided 
equally to its shareholders, stakeholders and to the general investing public. Timely information is critical towards 
building and maintaining the Group’s corporate credibility, market integrity and promotes investor confidence. 

The Company also actively engages all its stakeholders through various platforms including the announcements via 
Bursa LINK, disclosures on Bursa Malaysia’s website and engagement through the investor relation function. 
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II. Conduct of General Meetings

General meetings are the important platform for the shareholders to exercise their rights in the Company, either in AGM 
or Extraordinary General Meetings.

Shareholders are invited to the general meetings through a notice of meeting that specify the venue, day and hour of 
the meeting, as well as the business of the meeting. The notice of meeting together with the annual report is sent to 
the shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, so as to maximise their attendance and to provide sufficient time 
for them to consider the business to be discussed at the meeting. Concurrently, the notice of AGM is advertised in a 
nationally circulated English daily newspaper. In order to facilitate informed decision by the shareholders, notice of 
meeting is also accompanied by explanatory notes on the items of business to further explain the nature of business 
of the meeting. 

All the directors present themselves at the previous AGMs.  The Audit Committee Chairman, the Nomination Committee 
Chairman and the Remuneration Committee Chairman were being informed that questions relating to the Committee 
under their purview will be addressed by them accordingly. 

The Company conducts a poll voting on each resolution tabled during the general meetings to support shareholders 
participation. As the number of shareholders of the Company is not large, the Company currently conducts a manual 
poll voting instead of electronic poll voting. With the poll voting, each shareholder present in person or represented 
by proxy at the general meeting will be entitled to vote on a one-share, one-vote basis. At least one (1) scrutineer is 
appointed to validate the votes cast at the meeting. 

This Corporate Governance Overview Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors 
dated 21 March 2019. 
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The Board, through the Nominating Committee, ensures that it recruits to the Board only individuals of sufficient calibre, 
knowledge and experience to fulfil the duties of a director appropriately.

The Nominating Committee consists of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and its Chairman is an 
Independent Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board.

The Nominating Committee comprise of the following during the financial year ended 31 December 2018:

Chairman
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo
Independent Non-Executive Director

Members
Ravindran Markandu
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Chan Jee Peng (appointed on 8 October 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Razali Bin Jantan (resigned on 9 April 2018)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Objectives
The primary objective of the Nominating Committee is to act as a committee of the Board to assist in discharging the 
Board’s responsibilities in: -

(a)		  assessing each of the existing directors’ ability to contribute to the effective decision making of the Board;
(b)		  identifying, appointing and orientating new directors;
(c)		  reviewing the mix, skills, experience and other qualities (including gender, age and ethnicity) the Board requires  
		  for it to function independently and efficiently;
(d)		  membership of the Audit and Remuneration Committees and any other Board Committees as appropriate, in 
		  consultation with the Chairmen of those committees;
(e)		  assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Board Committees, assessing 
		  the performance of independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive Officer/ 
		  Managing Director; 
(f)		  identifying and recommending directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation in accordance with  
		  the Company’s Articles of Association; and
(g)		  Identifying and recommending a nominee for appointment as Senior Independent Director.

Composition
The Terms of the Nominating Committee provides that the Board shall appoint members to the Nominating Committee 
from amongst its members. The Nominating Committee shall comprise exclusively of Non-Executive Directors with at 
least three (3) members. Majority of the members of the Nominating Committee shall be independent. The Chairman 
of the Nominating Committee shall be an Independent Non-Executive Director appointed by the Board.

In the absence of the Nominating Committee Chairman, the remaining members present shall elect one of them to 
chair the meeting.

Meeting and Quorum
The Nominating Committee shall meet whenever there is a need for the Committee to perform its function, and at 
least once every year in carrying out an annual review of the Board, its Committees and the contribution of individual 
directors to the Company. A member may at any time and the Secretary shall on the requisition of a director summon 
a meeting of the Nominating Committee. The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Nominating Committee shall be 
two (2) members.

Questions arising at any meeting of the Nominating Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes and a determination 
by a majority of members shall for all purposes be deemed a determination/ decision of the Nominating Committee.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
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In the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote PROVIDED THAT 
two (2) members form a quorum. The Chairman of the meeting at which only such a quorum is present, or at which only 
two (2) members are competent to vote on the question at issue, shall not have a casting vote.

Reporting procedures
Minutes of the Nominating Committee’s meetings shall be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting (who 
should normally be the Company Secretary), and such minutes shall be available for inspection at any reasonable time 
on reasonable notice by any director. 

Minutes of meetings of the Nominating Committee shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the 
Nominating Committee and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by directors, members or dissenting 
views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes of such meetings shall be sent to all members of the Nominating 
Committee for their comment and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after such meetings. 

Without prejudice to the generality of the duties of the Nominating Committee set out in these Terms, the Nominating 
Committee shall report back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and recommendations, 
unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its ability to do so.

Responsibilities
The functions and responsibilities of the Nominating Committee are as follows:

•	 To make recommendations to the Board with regard to any appointment of directors considering their skills,  
	 knowledge, education, qualities, expertise and experience; professionalism; integrity, time commitment,  
	 contribution, boardroom diversity including gender, age and ethnicity diversity and other factors that will best 
	 qualify a nominee to serve on the Board, and for the position of Independent Non-Executive Directors, the ability 
	 to discharge such responsibilities/ functions as expected;
•	 To consider, in making its recommendations, candidates for directorships proposed by the Group Managing  
	 Director/ Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and within the bounds of practicability, by any other senior executive or 
	 any other director or shareholder;
•	 To assist the Board to review regularly the Board’s structure, size and composition and the required mix of skills 
	 and experience and other qualities including core competencies which Non-Executive Directors shall bring to the  
	 Board;
•	 To assess the effectiveness of the Board, any other committees of the Board and the contributions of each  
	 individual director, including the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, as well as the Group  
	 CEO (where these positions are not Board members), based on the processes and procedures laid out by the 
	 Board; and to provide the necessary feedback to directors in respect of their performance;
•	 To ensure proper documentation of all assessments and evaluations so carried out;
•	 To recommend to the Board, the directors to fill the seats on any committees of the Board. In making its 
	 recommendations, the Committee shall also consider, within the bounds of practicability, candidates proposed by  
	 any director, Chief Executive/ Senior Executive or shareholder;
•	 To propose to the Board the responsibilities of Non-Executive Directors, including membership and Chairmanship 
	 of Board Committees;
•	 To recommend to the Board for continuation or discontinuation in service of directors as an Executive Director or 
	 Non-Executive Director;
•	 To recommend to the Board, directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election;
•	 To evaluate training needs for directors annually;
•	 To arrange induction programmes for newly appointed directors to familiarize themselves with the operations of 
	 the Group;
•	 To recommend to the Board the engagement of services of such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil the 
	 Board’s responsibilities; and
•	 To carry out other responsibilities, functions or assignments as may be defined by the Board from time to time.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
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Activities of Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee met once during the financial year and all members of the Nominating Committee attended 
the meeting to deliberate on the following:

•	 Review the current Board structure, size and composition with an aim to achieving a balance of views on the 
	 Board.
•	 Review and assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the various Board Committees as well as the 
	 contribution of each individual director.
•	 Review the level of independence of Independent Directors.
•	 Discuss the character, experience, integrity and competence of the directors, Managing Director or Chief Financial 
	 Officer and to ensure that they have the time to discharge their respective roles effectively.
•	 Discuss on the annual retirement by rotation and re-election of directors at the forthcoming Annual General 
	 Meeting.
•	 Adopting the new performance evaluation form for the directors.
•	 Discuss the retention of Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Ravi Markandu, who has served on the Board 
	 for a cumulative period of more than 9 years.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT
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Introduction
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires listed companies to maintain a sound system of internal control 
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.  Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Listing Requirements 
requires Directors of listed companies to include a statement in their Annual Reports on the state of their internal 
controls. Set out below is the Board’s Risk Management and Internal Control Statement.

Board Responsibility
The Board committed to ensure the existence of an appropriate risk management framework and sound, efficient 
and effective system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The system 
is designed to provide reasonable assurance of effective operations and compliance with laws and regulations. The 
Board ensures the effectiveness of the system through periodic reviews. As there are limitations that are inherent 
in any system of internal control, this system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risks that may impede 
the achievement of the Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable but not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system of internal control covers, inter alia, financial, operational 
and compliance controls and risk management procedures.

Control Environment 
The Group has an organisation structure that is aligned to business requirements. The internal control mechanism is 
embedded in the various work processes at appropriate levels in the Company. The Board is accountable for ensuring 
the existence and effectiveness of internal control and provides leadership and direction to senior management on the 
manner the Company controls its businesses, the state of internal control and its activities. In developing the internal 
control systems, consideration is given to the overall control environment of the Company, assessment of financial and 
operational risks and an effective monitoring mechanism. 

Internal Audit
The Board is fully aware of the importance of the internal audit function and has engaged an independent professional 
firm namely Smart Focus Group to provide independent assurance to the Board and Audit Committee in providing an 
independent assessment on the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.

The IA Firm adopts a risk based approach and prepares its audit  plan based on the risk profiles from the risk assessment 
of the business units of the Group. Scheduled internal audits are carried out based on the annual audit plan approved 
by the Audit Committee. On a half yearly basis the IA Firm presents the Audit Committee with the internal audit reports.

During the year under review, Internal audit reviews were carried out by the Internal Audit team to address the related 
internal control weaknesses. Significant weaknesses identified during the reviews together with the improvement 
measures to strengthen the internal controls were reported accordingly.

The main elements in the system of internal control framework included:

•	 An organisational structure in the Group with formally defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authority;
•	 Documentation of written policies and procedures for certain key operational areas;
•	 Quarterly review of financial results by the Board and the AC; 
•	 Active participation and involvement by the Managing Director (“MD”) and the Executive Directors in the day-to- 
	 day running of the major businesses and regular discussions with the Senior Management of smaller business  
	 units on operational issues; 
•	 Review of internal audit reports and findings by the AC; and
•	 Monthly review of Group management accounts by MD, Executive Directors and Management.

The Internal Audit (“IA”) also periodically reports on the activities performed, key strategic and control issues observed 
by Internal Audit to the AC in order to preserve its independence. The AC reviews and approves IA’s annual budget, 
audit plan and human resources requirements to ensure the function maintains an adequate number of internal auditors 
with sufficient knowledge, skills and experience. IA adopts the International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing of The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the definition of Internal Auditing, Code of Ethics, Practices 
and Framework in order to ensure standardisation and consistency in providing assurance on the adequacy, integrity 
and effectiveness of the Group’s overall system of internal controls, risk management and governance. IA has aligned its 
current internal audit practices with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO 
– USA Standard) and The Criteria of Control Board (COCO - Canadian Standard)’s Internal Controls – Integrated 
Framework. Using this framework, all internal control assessments performed by IA are based on the internal control 
elements, scope and coverage. IA continues to adopt the risk-based audit plan to ensure the programmes carried out 
are prioritised based on the Group’s key risks and core or priority areas. Input from various sources inclusive of the 
Enterprise Risk Management Framework, business plan, past audit issues, external auditors, Management and Board 
are gathered, assessed and prioritised to derive the annual audit plan.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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In 2018, reviews in various areas involving Manufacturing Operations, Information Technology, Finance, Procurement  
Human Resources, Research & Development and Subsidiaries were conducted.  There were 3 reports issued, Internal 
Audit Review, Follow-up Review and Risk Management profiling  reports.  The Internal Audit function has reviewed the 
state of internal control on various operations within the company based on the information provided by the management 
and line managers. namely,

•	 Governance
•	 Plant Operations 
•	 Sales and marketing
•	 IT security management
•	 Procurement management 
•	 Accounting and financial activities
•	 Trading Management 
•	 Human Resources  management 
•	 Warehouse Management 
•	 Safety Management 

All reports from the internal audit reviews carried out were submitted and presented to the AC with the feedback and 
agreed corrective actions to be undertaken by Management. Subsequently, the progress of these corrective actions 
were monitored and verified by IA on a regular basis and submitted to the AC. IA committed to equip the internal 
auditors with sufficient knowledge, skills and competencies to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Quality Assurance 
The IA develops and maintains a quality assurance and improvement programme that covers all aspects of internal audit 
activities. The quality assurance programme assesses the effectiveness of IA processes and identifies opportunities for 
improvement via both internal and external assessment.  It has its own peer reviewer mechanism to ensure consistently 
good quality output of every audit engagement. The team leader is well experience to manage the internal audit 
assignments.  

Information and Communication
While the Management has full responsibility in ensuring the effectiveness of internal control, which it establishes, the 
Board of Directors has the authority to assess the state of internal control as it deems necessary. In doing so, the Board 
has the right to enquire information and clarification from Management as well as to seek inputs from the AC, external 
and internal auditors, and other experts at the expense of the Company.

Risk Management 
The Board has an established ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks 
encountered by the Company in accordance to the Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies on Statement 
on Risk Management and Internal Control. Risk management is an integral part of the business operations and this 
process goes through a review process by the Board. Discussions have been conducted during the year involving 
different levels of managements to identify and address risks faced by the Group. These risks were summarized and 
included in the Group’s risk management report. The Group has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the significant risks faced by the Group throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of 
approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report by the Management. This is to ensure that all high risks are 
adequately addressed at various levels within the Group.

The Board regards risk management as an integral part of the Group’s business operations and has oversight over this 
critical area through the AC. The AC, supported by the Internal Auditor, provides an independent assessment of the 
effectiveness of the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) framework and reports to the Board. The Group’s 
ERM framework is in line with the international standards (COSO and ISO Standards) and involves systematically 
identifying, analysing, measuring, monitoring and reporting on the risks that may affect the achievement of its business 
objectives. This framework helps to reduce the uncertainties surrounding the Group’s internal and external environment, 
thus allowing it to maximise opportunities and minimise adverse incidences that may arise. The major risks to which the 
Group is exposed to are strategic, operational, regulatory, financial, market, technological, products and reputational 
risks. 

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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The ERM process is based on the following principles:
•	 Consider and manage risks enterprise-wide;
•	 Integrate risk management into business activities;
•	 Manage risk in accordance with the Risk Management framework;
•	 Tailor responses to business circumstances; and
•	 Communicate risks and responses to Management

All identified risks are displayed on a 1 to 3 risk matrix based on their risk ranking to assist Management in prioritising 
their efforts and appropriately managing the different classes of risks. The Board and Management drive a pro-active risk 
management culture and regular risk awareness and coaching sessions are held to ensure that the Group’s employees 
have a good understanding and application of risk management principles. There is no dedicated ERM department, 
however the Executive Director and Head of Finance (HOF) who works closely with the Group’s operational managers 
are continuously to strengthen the risk management initiatives within the Group so that it responds effectively to the 
constantly changing business environment and is thus able to protect and enhance shareholder value.

The Board recognises the importance of ERM in enhancing shareholder value while upholding a high standard of 
corporate governance. Combining a strong and sustained commitment from the Board and Senior Management with a 
clear direction and oversight from all levels of leadership, the Group embraces a holistic risk management approach to 
achieve its business targets with minimal surprises.

Risk management policies and practices form part of Tex Cycle’s overall strategies to chart positive growth in 
today’s rapidly evolving business environment. The Board continues to ensure that risk management is effectively 
institutionalised and its risk maturity level is elevated. This is achieved via a multitude of ERM initiatives clustered 
into key strategic areas, as part of the Group’s efforts to ensure smooth ERM practice on the ground coupled with 
continuous tracking and monitoring of risks and controls. It also strengthens its risk culture and practice, harmonise its 
risks and risk appetites at the operational level wherever possible.

Risk Structure/Accountability and Responsibility
Further improving Tex Cycle’s risk governance, ERM structures have been established at each department and 
subsidiary. The aim is for a risk culture to be internalised through risk ownership and to drive ERM implementation at 
the functional level. ERM Resource Persons also known as Head of Department (HOD) / Risk Coordinators (RCs), are 
appointed at each business unit, and act as the single point of contact to liaise directly with the Group‘s HOF in matters 
relating to ERM, including the submission of reports on a periodic basis. In addition, they are responsible for assisting 
their Heads of Department to manage and administer the business units’ risk portfolios, which include arranging, 
organising and coordinating ERM programmes.

Assurance From The Management
The Board has also received reasonable assurance from the MD, Head of Finance, and other Department Heads 
that the Group’s risk management and internal control system are operating adequately and effectively, in all material 
aspects, based on the risk management model adopted by the Group.

Conclusion
Pursuant to Paragraph 15.23 of the Listing Requirements, the External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31 
December 2018 and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that this 
statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and 
integrity of the system of internal control. 

The Board is pleased to report that there were no major internal control weaknesses identified during the year, nor have 
any of the reported weaknesses resulted in material losses or contingencies requiring disclosure in the Group’s Annual 
Report. The Board is of the view that the existing system of the internal control is adequate. Nevertheless, Management 
continues to take measures to strengthen the control environment. This statement is based on the consideration of the 
audit work performed by both the External Auditors and the Internal Auditors on financial and non-financial matters.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
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TEX CYCLE TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad (“Tex Cycle Technology” or “the Company”) is an investment holding Company which 
was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad on 27 July 2005. Today, Tex Cycle Technology is the 
holding Company of Tex Cycle Sdn. Bhd., Metro Koats Technology Sdn. Bhd., Metro Envy Sdn. Bhd., Tex Cycle (P2) 
Sdn. Bhd. , TC Chemical Sdn. Bhd. and TC Champ Sdn. Bhd. The Company is primarily engaged in an environmentally 
friendly Waste Management Business which provides professional services preferred by companies from the various 
industries in accordance with Environmental Quality Act. Conversely, we also supply specialized products for the Defense 
industry and further endow chemical products for related industries. Our systems and procedures are technologically 
advanced and upgraded frequently. This allows us to offer one-stop solution to our valued Customers with economical 
products and services in total compliance.

The Group’s Corporate Structure and Principle Activities

METRO ENVY SDN. BHD.

Metro Envy was incorporated on 16 January 2004 and the principal activity is rental of investment property.

TC CHEMICAL SDN. BHD.

TC Chemical was incorporated on 22 June 2009. The principal activity of the Company is trading of chemical and other 
related products.

CORPORATE PROFILE
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TC CHAMP SDN. BHD.

TC Champ was incorporated on 1 November 2018. Its intended principal activity is trading and manufacturing, including 
import and export of food and feed additive, supplement and other related products.

METRO KOATS TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD.

Metro Koats Technology Sdn Bhd was incorporated in 1995. The principal activity is manufacture and marketing of 
chemical products.

TEX CYCLE SDN. BHD.

We choose to act on the worldwide effort of Waste Management and live the 4R motto ‘Reduce, Reuse, Recover 
and Recycle’ which was then still vague to the world. Today, Tex Cycle Sdn Bhd (TCSB), the subsidiary of Tex Cycle 
Technology (M) Bhd is one of the most established and a pioneer Recycler of Scheduled Waste in the region. It owns 
its fully licensed facility in the Klang Valley which provides complete services that includes analysis, transportation, 
collection, treatment, delivery and disposal of Scheduled Waste as approved by the Department of Environment. The 
basis and core of our business which is protecting the Environment, preserving it for the future generation and in the 
process creating value for stakeholders is much preferred by our Customers. Our systems are in accordance with ISO 
14001 which assures complete professional services and products in total compliance.

TEX CYCLE (P2) SDN. BHD.

Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd. (TCP2SB) was incorporated on 4 June 2007 and commenced operation at the end of the 
second quarter of 2014. Being the second plant to Tex Cycle Sdn Bhd, the principal activity of the Company is similar 
but is now capable of recovery and recycling of Scheduled Waste in a wider volume and variation. Tex Cycle Sdn Bhd 
and Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn Bhd is referred as ‘Tex Cycle’ in this reporting.

Organization Chart
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RESPONSIBILITIES

The members of the Environmental Committee within Tex Cycle’s Organization have specific roles to ensure the 
following: -

Director

•   Supports the Managing Director on Environmental Management.

Managing Director

•   Appoints the Environmental Management Representative (EMR).
•   Establish the EC Organization.
•   Participates, accesses and approves the Environmental Policy, Manual and Procedures.
•   Ensures smooth running of the Environmental Management Operation.
•   Evaluates the appropriateness of the EMS in the Management Review.
•   Chairs the Environmental Management Review.
•   Active in the R&D contribution, ideas and activities carried out in Tex Cycle.
•  Ensures that Environmental Management System requirements are established, implemented and maintained in 
    accordance with ISO 14001 standards.

Environmental Management Representatives (EMR)

•   Co-ordinate & liaise for initiation of Environmental Activities.
•   Provide information to all members regarding environmental issues.
•   Plan, co-ordinate and control Environmental Management System including internal audits to ensure compliance.
•   Support the Managing Director on Environmental Management.
•   Provide report to the Managing Director on EMS performance.
•   Promote Environmental Awareness Activities among the staff.
•   Plan and co-ordinate the Environmental Education and Training requirement.
•   Centralize the control of the environmental documents and records.
•   Establish a proper document control system and filing of environmental data.
•   Check and control the data changes or revision and co-ordinate with the respective section.
•   Liaise with local environmental bodies with regards to environmental issues.
•  Ensure execution of the Environmental Management Operations and compliance of Management Operation to 
    ISO14001.

Section Head

•   Support and involve in all EMS activities.
•   Establish relevant EMS documentation.
•   Check and control the data changes or revision and co-ordinate with the respective section.
•   Carry out certain EMS training and education program.

Employees

•   Will maintain Tex Cycle’s Environmental Management System in compliance to ISO 14001 requirements.
•   Comply with all Environmental and Other Legal Requirements in all areas of operation. 

ISO 14001 Internal Auditors

•   Carry out ISO 14001 internal audits once a year or when required. Report observations and non-conformance based 
    on the requirements of ISO 14001.

CORPORATE PROFILE
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Environment Management Systems Approval Certifi cate

CORPORATE PROFILE
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VISION

Tex Cycle envisions being The Preferred Scheduled Waste Recycler in Malaysia. It aims to achieve this vision through 
practice of sustainability in every aspect of the business with Persistence and Commitment, Determination and Passion. 
It further aspires to one day being able to achieve zero-waste through maximization of resources.

MISSION

Tex Cycle is committed in doing its part by engaging in continued ways and means to reduce all possible threats to 
the Environment. It embraces all relevant national and international efforts and inspires awareness on environmental 
Protection to the Community at large.

Tex Cycle believes in sharing our resources with our most important Stakeholder, our Employees who are given utmost 
priority. We pursue our mission with continuous commitment in ensuring that our Employees work in a safe environment 
and return to their families safely.

Being in a competitive marketplace, it is essential for our professional teams to manage our Customer’s satisfaction 
efficiently and proactively. We uphold this with loyal and professional assistance which is provided in engaging our 
exceptional services and reliable products at all times.

Tex Cycle embarks on continuous Research and Development in striving to do business profitably and responsibly 
by seeking up-to-date Technologies and modern state-of-the-art equipments and upgrading its operations for more 
effectiveness and efficiency in all that it does.

Tex Cycle addresses Corporate Responsibility to the future generation through various projects, collaborations, 
exhibitions and awareness programs to instil the importance of caring for the environment. Tex Cycle also readily 
extends assistance in whichever way possible to the less fortunate.

By sincerely pursuing these visions, missions as well as responsible and transparent corporate conduct, innovation and 
prudent investment, Tex Cycle is able to increase value for all its shareholders.

CORPORATE VALUES

•    Adhering to all regulations wherever we operate.
•    Practicing high ethical standards and sincerity in our business.
•    Protecting the environment and community in all our actions.
•    Respecting diversity and individual growth of Employees.
•    Creating higher value through technology, creativity and innovation.
•    More than meeting the expectations of Customers and Shareholders and building mutually profitable relationships.

TEX CYCLE’S GROWTH STRATEGY

The Board of Directors and its principal shareholders are committed toward the growth of the Company.
This aim is being achieved through:
•    Growth in human capital;
•    Growth in infrastructure;
•    Growth of its core business;
•    Developing strategic partnerships;
•    Vertical integration;
•    Business diversification and
•    Moulding the environment in which we operate.

CORPORATE PROFILE
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The following disclosures are made in accordance with Part A of Appendix 9C of the Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad:-

Employee Share Scheme

During the year 2017, the Company has establishment an Employees’ Share Scheme (“ESS”) of up to 10% of the total 
number of Shares (excluding treasury shares) at any point in time during the 5 years duration of the scheme to the 
eligible executive directors and employees of Tex Cycle and its subsidiaries which are not dormant. 

The first ESS amounting to 1,460,000 units of ordinary shares had been allocated and distributed on 11 January 2018 
with the following details:

Shares granted to:- 

New Issuance of Share

The Company has proposed special Bumiputera issue of up to 40,260,000 new shares representing 12.50% of 
the enlarged total number of Shares to the Bumiputera investors to be identified and/or approved by the Ministry of 
International Trade and Industry (“MITI”) at RM0.75 per share. There was no acceptance by the placees identified 
and/or approved by the Ministry of International Trade and Industry (“Bumiputera Investors”) and as such, no new Tex 
Cycle Shares were placed out to the Bumiputera Investors pursuant to the Special Bumiputera Issue. On 23 May 2018 
The Company notified the Equity Compliance Unit of Securities Commission Malaysia (“SC(ECU)”) that Tex Cycle is 
deemed to have complied with the Bumiputera equity condition imposed by the SC(ECU) in relation to the approval 
granted to Tex Cycle for its listing proposal, thus marking the completion of the Special Bumiputera Issue.

Status of Utilisation of Proceeds 

There were no corporate proposals involving the raising of funds during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Share Buy-back

During the year, the Company purchased 1,404,100 units of its own shares through purchases on Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad. The total amount paid for acquisition of the shares was RM876,408 and it has been deducted from 
equity. The repurchased shares were financed by internally-generated funds and the average price paid for the shares 
was RM0.62 per share. The repurchased shares are held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127 of the 
Companies Act, 2016.The shareholders of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General 
Meeting held on 16 May 2018, renewed their approval for the Company’s plan to repurchase its own shares.

Directors and Senior Management

Other Employees of the Group

Total

Unit of Shares

1,023,200

436,800

1,460,000

%

70

30

100
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Month

March 2018
April 2018
May 2018
June 2018
Sep 2018
October 2018
November 2018
December 2018

    Number of
    shares

104,000
385,400
52,600
27,100

127,800
269,700
226,900
287,600

Highest
Price
(RM)

0.76
0.69
0.69
0.69
0.67
0.63
0.60
0.58

Lowest
Price
(RM)

0.69
0.67
0.67
0.68
0.60
0.58
0.57
0.56

Average
Price
(RM)

0.74
0.68
0.68
0.68
0.64
0.60
0.59
0.58

  Value of
  shares
  (RM’000)

77
263

36
19
82

179
134
166

Details of the Company’s repurchased issued shares from the open market are as follows:

As at 31 December 2018, the cumulative total number of shares repurchased was 2,966,650 (2017: 1,945,700). Of 
the total 256,189,496 (2017: 256,189,496) issued and fully paid ordinary shares as at 31 December 2018, 2,966,650 
(2017: 1,945,700) are held as treasury shares by the Company. 

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities

There was no exercise of Options or Convertible Securities or conversion of warrants during the financial year ended 
31 December 2018.

American Depository Receipt (“ADR”) or Global Depository Receipt (“GDR”) Programme

The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programmes during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Imposition of Sanctions/Penalties

There were no material sanctions or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or management 
by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Non-Audit Fees

The amount of non-audit fees paid and payable to external auditors by the Group for the financial year ended 31 
December 2018 amounted to RM28,000.

Variation in Results
 
There was no material variance between the financial results and the profit forecast or unaudited results previously 
made for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Profit Guarantee

There was no profit guarantee given by the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Material Contracts

There were no material contracts outside the ordinary course of business entered into by the Company and its 
subsidiaries involving Director’s and major shareholder’s interest which were still subsisting at the end of the financial 
year ended 31 December 2018 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year.

Profit Forecast Variance

There was no profit forecast issued in respect of the financial result ended 31 December 2018.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE 
INFORMATION
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements prepared for each financial year to give a 
true and accurate view of the state of the Group and the Company of the results and cash flows of the Group and the 
Company for the financial year then ended. 

In ensuring the preparation of these financial statements, the Directors have observed the following criteria:

	 •	 Overseeing the overall conduct of the Company’s business and that of the Group;
	 •	 Identifying principal risks and ensuring that an appropriate system of internal control exists to manage these 
		  risks;
	 •	 Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of Internal Controls System and Management Information System in the 
		  Company and within the Group;
	 •	 Adopting suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
	 •	 Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
	 •	 Ensuring compliance with application Approved Accounting Standards in Malaysia.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting and other records which are closed with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and ensuring that the financial statements comply with the 
Listing Requirements, the provisions of the Companies Act 2016 and applicable Approved Accounting Standards in 
Malaysia.  The Directors are also responsible for taking such reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group 
and to minimise fraud and other irregularities.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT



ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad

75

The page is purposely left blank.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Corporate Information

Report of the directors

Statement by directors

Declaration by the officer primarily
responsible for the financial 
management of the company	

Independent auditors’ report

Statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income					   
	
Statements of financial position

Statements of changes in equity

Statements of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

77

78-82

83

83

84-87

88

89-90

91-92

93-95

96-157



ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad

77

DIRECTORS Ho Siew Choong (Executive Chairman)
Periasamy A/L Sinakalai (Managing Director)
Ho Siew Cheong (Executive Director)
Ho Siew Weng (Executive Director)
Ravindran Markandu (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Chan Jee Peng (Independent Non-Executive Director)
(Appointed on 8 October 2018) 
Razali Bin Jantan (Independent Non-Executive Director)
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

The information on the name, place of incorporation, principal activities, and percentage of issue share capital
held by the holding company in the subsidiary is as disclosed in Note 13 to the Financial Statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Company and of its
subsidiaries during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULT

The results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
RM RM

803,978130,747,7raey laicnanif eht rof tiforP

In the opinion of the Directors, the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial
year have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature. 

DIVIDENDS

The amount of dividends paid and declared since the end of the previous financial year were as follows:

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 RM
First single tier interim dividend of RM0.0060 per share declared on 13 June 2018 and

paid on 18 July 2018 1,533,722

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2018. 

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those as
disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up shares capital of the Company during the financial year.

There were no new issuance of debentures by the Company.

During the financial year, the Company purchased 1,508,100 units of its own shares as disclosed in Note 19 to
the Financial Statements. The total amount paid for acquisition of the shares was RM953,588 including
transaction costs and has been deducted from equity. The repurchased transactions were financed by
internally generated funds and the average price paid for the shares was RM0.63 per share. 

TREASURY SHARES

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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On 11 January 2018, the Company utilised 1,460,000 units of its treasury shares for distribution of 1,460,000
units of shares for employees share grant plan. 

As of 31 December 2018, the Company held 2,966,650 treasury shares out of its 256,189,496 issued ordinary
shares. The treasury shares are held in accordance with Section 127(6) of the Companies Act, 2016.

EMPLOYEES SHARE SCHEME

At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 October 2017, the Company’s shareholders approved the
establishment of employees share grant plan and employees share option scheme under the employees share
scheme for the eligible Directors and employees of the Group.

During the financial year, 1,460,000 unit of shares are granted for employees share grant plan. 

No employees share option are granted for the employees share option scheme during the financial year.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable steps:

(a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making
of allowance for doubtful debts and had satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been
written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(b) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise in the ordinary course of business
including the value of current assets as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the
Company had been written down to an amount which the current assets might be expected so to
realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(a) which would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of allowance for doubtful debts
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company misleading; or

(c) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

(d) not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements which would render any amount stated in
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liability of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

No contingent or other liability have become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of
twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially
affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the
results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the succeeding financial year.

TREASURY SHARES (CONT’D)
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors of the Company who held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

Ho Siew Choong (Executive Chairman)*
Periasamy A/L Sinakalai (Managing Director)*
Ho Siew Cheong (Executive Director)*
Ho Siew Weng (Executive Director)*
Ravindran Markandu (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Chan Jee Peng (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Appointed on 8 October 2018)
Razali Bin Jantan (Independent Non-Executive Director) (Resigned on 9 April 2018)

* Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

The interests in the Company of those who were Directors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, are as follows:

Number of ordinary shares
Balance

as of
1.1.2018 Bought Sold

Balance
as of

31.12.2018

Interest in the Company

Ho Siew Choong
453,594,21-*000,641453,943,21tceriD
839,700,601--839,700,601)1 etoN( demeeD
053,453-001,64052,803)2 etoN( tceridnI

Periasamy A/L Sinakalai
741,032,01)000,005,1(*000,641741,485,11tceriD
839,700,601--839,700,601)1 etoN( demeeD
054,074,2-007,365,1057,609)2 etoN( tceridnI

Ho Siew Cheong
744,375,6-*000,641744,724,6tceriD
839,700,601--839,700,601)1 etoN( demeeD

Ho Siew Weng
593,025,3-*000,641593,473,3tceriD
839,700,601--839,700,601)1 etoN( demeeD
052,695--052,695)2 etoN( tceridnI
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT’D)

The interests in the Company of those who were Directors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, are as follows (cont’d):

Number of ordinary shares
Balance

as of
1.1.2018 Bought Sold

Balance
as of

31.12.2018

Interest in the Company (cont’d)

Ravindran Markandu 
005,273-000,51005,753tceriD
005,4--005,4)2 etoN( tceridnI

Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo
000,05-000,5000,54tceriD

Note 1: Deemed interest by virtue of his interest in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the
Companies Act, 2016.

Note 2: Indirect interest by virtue of his spouse’s/children’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology
(M) Berhad pursuant to Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act, 2016.

* Employees share grant plan

Other than as disclosed above, the other Director in office at the end of the financial year did not hold shares or
had beneficial interest in the shares of the Company or its related companies during or at the beginning and
end of the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors of the Company has received or become
entitled to receive any benefit (other than the benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received
or due and receivable by Directors as disclosed in Note to the Financial Statements) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which he is a member, or with
a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement subsisted to which the Company was a party
whereby Directors of the Company might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 6 to Financial Statements.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

There were no indemnity given to or insurance effected for any Directors and officers of the Company in
accordance with section 289 of the Companies Act, 2016.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND SUBSEQUENT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Significant events during and subsequent to the financial year are disclosed in Note 32 to the Financial
Statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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AUDITORS

The total amount of fees paid to or receivable by the Auditors, Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia, as
remuneration for their services as auditors of the Company and of its subsidiaries for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 are amounted to RM40,000 and RM58,000 respectively.

There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for the auditors of the Company.

The Auditors, Messrs Grant Thornton Malaysia, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

.......................................................................           )
)GNOOHC WEIS OH

)
)

    
)    
)

)
)    
)    

                           )
                           )

                           )

.......................................................................           )
PERIASAMY A/L SINAKALAI                     )

Telok Gong
21 March 2019

DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

)
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 88 to 157 are drawn up in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the financial year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

         HO SIEW CHOONG            

Telok Gong
21 March 2019

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, Geraldine Hii Siaw Wei, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Tex Cycle
Technology (M) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the
financial statements set out on pages 88 to 157 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by )
the abovenamed at Petaling Jaya in )
the Selangor Darul Ehsan this day of )

.............................................................

............................................................. .............................................................

........….…. )9102 hcraM 12
         GERALDINE HII SIAW WEI

       (MIA No: 26872)

 Before me:

PERIASAMY A/L SINAKALAI       
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad, which comprise the
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018 of the Group and of the Company, and the
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 88 to
157.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”),
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF TEX CYCLE 

TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

srettam tidua yek eht desserdda tidua ruo woHsrettam tidua yeK

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) for
trade receivables

The Group has material amounts of trade
receivables. The adequacy of assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables require the use of
estimates and judgements of the management. The
Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
trade receivables.

We have challenged the management’s estimates
in provision rate used to provide ECL allowance on
trade receivables. This includes reviewing the
ageing of receivables and testing the integrity of
ageing. We also checked the recoverability of
outstanding receivables through examination of
subsequent cash receipts and tested the operating
effectiveness of the relevant control procedures
that management has put in place.

Investment property

The Group owns an investment property carried at
fair value. The fair value of the Group’s investment
property was estimated by the Directors.

The determination of the fair values involves
significant judgement and estimation, particularly in
selecting the appropriate valuation methodology and
in determining the underlying assumptions, which
increase the risk of error or potential management
bias.

We have obtained the valuation based on
Directors’ estimation in concluding the fair value of
investment property during the financial year.

We have evaluated the basis of valuation and also
the input to derive the fair value of the investment
property.

There are no key audit matters in relation to financial statements of the Company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and
of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with MFRSs, IFRSs and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit is in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material mis-
statement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estim-
ates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
tions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going con-
cern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ob-
tained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are re-
sponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely respons-
ible for our audit opinion.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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We communicated with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified
during our audit.

We also provided the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significant in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

1. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266
of the Companies Act, 2016, in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to
any other person for the content of this report.

2. The financial statements of the Company as at 31 December 2017 were audited by another firm of
Chartered Accountants whose auditors’ report dated 15 March 2018 expressed a qualified opinion on
those financial statements on fair value of investment property. 

MIL HOP IOOAISYALAM NOTNROHT TNARG
))J( 91/01/7803 :ON()7370 :FA .ON(

TNATNUOCCA DERETRAHCSTNATNUOCCA DERETRAHC

Kuala Lumpur
21 March 2019

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

000,000,8000,025,1017,491,63846,460,73 5 euneveR

--)063,065,41()267,606,41(selas fo tsoC

000,000,8000,025,1053,436,12688,754,22tiforp ssorG

557,71547,011738,405,4077,060,2emocni rehtO

)480,496()099,494()260,560,9()908,707,01(sesnepxe evitartsinimdA

Selling and distribution costs (1,264,269) (1,209,726) - -

)034,91()662,652()417,414()152,775,2(sesnepxe rehtO

142,403,7984,978586,944,51723,969,9snoitarepo morf tiforP

--)663,15()734,21(stsoc ecnaniF

142,403,7984,978913,893,51098,659,96xat erofeb tiforP

Income tax expense 7 (2,209,859) (2,551,075) (181) -

142,403,7803,978442,748,21130,747,7 raey laicnanif eht rof tiforP

Total comprehensive income for the 
financial year, net of tax 7,747,031 12,847,244 879,308 7,304,241

Earnings per share
- Basic and diluted (sen) 8 3.05 5.07

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 44,053,301 41,339,827 - -
Prepaid lease payments 10 21,022,016 21,366,000 - -
Investment property 11 16,110,000 15,871,700 - -
Goodwill on consolidation 12 583,937 583,937 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 13 - - 11,732,682 10,579,282

282,975,01286,237,11464,161,97452,967,18stessa tnerruc-non latoT

Current assets
--941,712383,91141seirotnevnI

Trade receivables 15 9,174,263 12,880,494 - -
Other receivables 15 955,480 799,291 1,000 17,850
Investment in unit trusts 16 20,803,331 12,126,870 2,747,223 1,095,117
Amount owing by subsidiaries 17 - - 11,114,762 14,119,276

-081859,537,2568,995,1elbarevocer xaT
Cash and bank balances 18 5,503,608 5,825,805 523,857 340,471

417,275,51220,783,41765,585,43039,551,83stessa tnerruc latoT

Total assets 119,925,184 113,747,031 26,119,704 26,151,996

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of 

the Company
059,816,52409,652,62059,816,52409,652,6291latipac erahS
)183,030,1()325,864,1()183,030,1()325,864,1(91serahs yrusaerT

Retained earnings 20 76,807,997 71,245,553 801,263 1,455,677

Total equity 101,596,378 95,834,122 25,589,644 26,044,246

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 21 186,149 185,136 - -

--879,951,21801,827,0122 snaol mreT
Deferred tax liabilities 23 2,831,000 1,852,457 - -

--175,791,41752,547,31seitilibail tnerruc-non latoT

Current liabilities
--419,591813,81142selbayap edarT
057,23203,54894,367,2973,108,242 selbayap rehtO

Amount owing to subsidiaries 17 - - 484,758 75,000
Finance lease liabilities 21 120,276 166,058 - -

--356,625767,884,122snaol mreT
--512,36908,45elbayap xaT

057,701060,035833,517,3945,385,4seitilibail tnerruc latoT

Total liabilities 18,328,806 17,912,909 530,060 107,750

Total equity and liabilities 119,925,184 113,747,031 26,119,704 26,151,996

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONT’D)
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
142,403,7984,978913,893,51098,659,9xat erofeb tiforP

  Adjustments for:
--487,103- stbed luftbuod rof ecnawollA  

  Amortisation of prepaid lease 
--364,152489,343    stnemyap

  Allowance for doubtful debts no 
--)673,602(-deriuqer regnol

  Reversal of allowance for expected 
---)090,269(sessol tiderc

391,555,1ffo nettirw stbed daB  
  Compensation claim from 

--)964,617,3(-noitisiuqca yroslupmoc
  Depreciation of property, 

--696,589,2260,990,3tnempiuqe dna tnalp
)000,000,8()000,025,1(-- emocni dnediviD  

  Fair value loss/(gain) on investment 
034,91662,652)861,55(243,778stsurt tinu ni

  Fair value gain on investment 
---)003,832(ytreporp

  Gain on disposal of property, plant 
--)203,85(-tnempiuqe dna

  Dividend income from investment in 
)745,41()445,46()370,781()358,394(stsurt tinu

  Loss/(Gain) on disposal of
-)828,34()638,97( 180,99stsurt tinu ni tnemtsevni   

  Interest expenses
--242,7718,11seitilibail esael ecnaniF  -
--421,44026snaol mreT  -
)802,3()233,2()835,11()307,21(emocni tseretnI  

  Unrealised loss on foreign 
--023,8-egnahcxe

  Expenses on employees share 
---004,351,1nalp tnarg

Operating profit/(loss) before 
working capital changes 15,390,443 14,682,186 (494,949) (694,084)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
(CONT’D)

Change in working capital: 
--441,5667,79seirotnevnI 
--)471,936,2(362,264,2selbaviecer edarT 
614,51058,61732,834)981,651( selbaviecer rehtO 
--885,98)695,77( selbayap edarT 
)001,02(255,21288,977188,73   selbayap rehtO 

Cash generated from/(used in) 
)867,896()745,564(368,553,31865,457,71snoitarepo

--)663,15()734,21( diap tseretnI
--- 385,782,1 dnufer xaT
-)163()291,920,2()212,193,1( diap xaT

Net cash from/(used in) operating 
)867,896()809,564(503,572,11205,836,71seitivitca

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from disposal of 

--960,470,7-ytreporp tnemtsevni
802,3233,2835,11307,21deviecer tseretnI

Proceeds from disposal of
--203,85-tnempiuqe dna tnalp ,ytreporp

Purchase of property, plant and   
equipment A (5,702,536) (12,199,186) - -

Additional of prepaid lease
--)686,428,7(-stnemyap

Net additional of investment in unit 
)000,001,1()000,008,1()177,449,4()130,951,9(stsurt

Repayment from/(Advances to) 
)627,261,4(272,414,3--seiraidisbus

Dividend received from a 
000,000,8000,025,1--yraidisbus

Net cash (used in)/from  investing 
284,047,2406,631,3)437,428,71()468,848,41(seitivitca

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONT’D)
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ynapmoCpuorG
Note 2018 2017 2018 2017

RM RM RM RM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
)355,758,1()227,335,1()355,758,1()227,335,1(diap sdnediviD

--913,931,9808,798snaol mret fo nwodwarD
--)973,704()465,763,1(snaol mret fo tnemyapeR

Repayment of finance lease 
--)028,441()967,451(seitilibail
)005,21()885,359()005,21()885,359(kcabyub serahS

Net cash (used in)/from financing 
)350,078,1()013,784,2(760,717,6)538,111,3(seitivitca

NET CHANGES IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS (322,197) 167,638 183,386 171,661

--)023,8(-etar egnahcxe ni segnahc fo tceffE
At beginning of financial year 5,825,805 5,666,487 340,471 168,810

At end of financial year 18 5,503,608 5,825,805 523,857 340,471

NOTE TO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS:

A. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment during the financial year are financed by:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

--681,991,21635,207,5hsaC
Finance lease arrangements 110,000 300,000 - -

5,812,536 12,499,186 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONT’D)
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and listed
on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding.

The information on the name, place of incorporation, principal activities, and percentage of issue
share capital held by the holding company in the subsidiary is as disclosed in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Company and
of its subsidiaries during the financial year.

The registered office of the Company is located at Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at Lot 8942, Jalan Telok Gong, 42000
Pelabuhan Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company were authorised for issuance by the
Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 21 March 2019.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.  

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible to by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial market takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to their fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to their fair
value measurement is unobservable. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value
hierarchy as explained above. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is the Company’s functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest RM except when otherwise stated.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.4 MFRSs

2.4.1 Adoption of new or revised MFRSs

The accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are consistent with those of the
prior financial year except for the new and revised MFRSs and IC Interpretations approved by
Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) and applicable for current financial year.
Application of the new and revised MFRSs and interpretations has no material impact on financial
statements of the Group and of the Company except as those explanations as disclosed in Note 4 to
the Financial Statements. 

2.4.2 Standards issued but not yet effective 

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, MASB has approved certain new
standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards which are not yet effective, and
have not been early adopted by the Group and the Company.

The management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
and the Company’s accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The initial application of the new standards, amendments and interpretations are not
expected to have any material impact to the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
except as mentioned below:-

2.4.2.1 MFRS 16 Leases

MFRS 16, Leases becomes mandatory with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The new Standard replaces the guidance in MFRS 117, Leases, IC Interpretation 4 Determining
Whether an Arrangement Contains A Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases – Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving The Legal Form of A Lease.

•
•

•

2.2 Basis of measurement (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018
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Essentially, the new Standard requires all lease arrangements (“right of use assets”) to be
recognised on the statement of financial position. The structure of the statement of profit or loss will
change as the previous lease expense will be replaced by a depreciation charge on the right of use
assets and the interest expense on the corresponding lease liability. The related cash flows will be
divided into a repayment of the lease liability and interest portion, thus changing the structure of the
cash flows. 

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease arrangements of
RM909,330 from its investment property. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.4 MFRSs (cont’d)

2.4.2.1 MFRS 16 Leases (cont’d)

Accordingly, there will not be material impact to the Group gearing ratio, results of operations,
operating cash flows and earning before income tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”). 

The Group will apply MFRS 16 for the first time using the modified retrospective method which the
comparative amounts for the financial year prior to the first adoption of the new Standard will not be
restated.

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements for the Group and the Company requires the use of certain
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Accounting estimates and judgements are being constantly
reviewed against historical experience and other factors, such as expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, because of uncertainty in
determining future events and its impact, actual result could differ from the estimates reported. 

2.5.1 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful life. However,
significant judgement is involved in estimating the useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment which are subjected to technological development and level of usage. Therefore, residual
values of these assets and future depreciation charges may vary. 

2.5.2 Classification between investment property and owner-occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independent of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. The Group accounts for the portions separately if the portions could be sold separately (or
leased out separately under a finance lease). If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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2.5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable amount, management estimates expected future
cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present values of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash
flows, management makes assumptions about future operating results. In most cases, determining
the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to market risk and the
appropriate adjustment to asset-specific risk factors. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill
recognised by the Group. Further details of the carrying values, key assumptions applied in the
impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

2.5.4 Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables under MFRS 9 Financial
instruments

Credit losses are the difference between all contractual cash flows the Company is due and the cash
flows that it actually expects to receive. An expected credit loss is the probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses which requires the Company’s judgement. The expected credit losses are discounted
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for grouping of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
such as geography, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance. 

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every quarterly reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of customers’ actual default rate in the future. 

The carrying amount of the Group’s receivables at the end of the reporting date is disclosed in Note
15 to the Financial Statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d) 

2.5.5 Impairment of loans and receivables under MFRS 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience of assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

2.5.6 Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements where active market quotes are not available. 
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In estimating the fair value of financial asset or financial liability, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Management makes maximum use of market inputs, and uses
estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market
participants would use in measuring the financial assets and financial liabilities. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, management uses its best estimate about the assumptions that market participants
would make. These estimates may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the end of the reporting date. 

The Group measures its investment property at fair value being recognised in statement of profit or
loss respectively. The Directors of the Group estimate the fair value based on the valuation report
done by Group in prior years to determine fair values adjusted for recent transaction prices in the
market of properties with similar condition and location.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various
assets and liabilities are disclosed in the Notes 11, 16 and 27 to the Financial Statements.

2.5.7 Income taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the capital allowances and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied to financial statements for the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the audited financial statements of the Company
and all its subsidiaries controlled by the Company made up to the end of the financial year. Control is
achieved when the Company has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of hold-
ings of the other vote holders;
potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings

Consolidation of subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.     

•

•
•
•

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d) 
2.5.6 Fair value measurement and valuation processes (cont’d)
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.2 Business combinations

Acquisitions of the subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At acquisition date,
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with MFRS 112 Income Taxes and
MFRS 119 Employee Benefits respectively;
liabilities or equity instruments related to the share-based payment arrangements of the acquire
or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with MFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

3.3 Revenue recognition – MFRS 15 and MFRS 118

3.3.1 Revenue recognition under MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group and the Company applied five-step model revenue recognition under MFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers effective 1 January 2018. The adoption of this standard results in
changes in the accounting policy for revenue recognition, and has no material financial impact from the
MFRS 118 Revenue applied previously.

The Group and the Company recognise revenue from contracts with customers for goods or services
based on the five-step model as set out in this Standards:

i. Identify contracts with a customer. A contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria that must
be met.

ii. Identify performance obligations in the contract. A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer either a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

iii. Determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group and the Company expect to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised
goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

•

•

•

3.1 Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
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3.3.1 Revenue recognition under MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)

The Group and the Company recognise revenue from contracts with customers for goods or services
based on the five-step model as set out in this Standards (cont’d):

iv. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. For a contract
that has more than one performance obligation, the Group and the Company allocate transac-
tion price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of considera-
tion to which the Group and the Company expect to be entitled in exchange for satisfying
each performance obligation.

v. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group and the Company satisfy a performance obliga-
tion. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset.

The Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation and recognise revenue over time if the
Group’s and the Company’s performance:

i. Do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Company and have an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to-date; or

ii. Create or enhance an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

iii. Provide benefits that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes as the Group and
the Company perform.

For performance obligations where any one of the above conditions not met, revenue is recognised at
a point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group and the Company satisfy a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods
or service, it creates a contract based on asset on the amount of consideration earned by the
performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of
revenue recognised, this give rise to a contract liability.

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. The followings describe the
performance obligation in contracts with customers:

3.3.1.1 Render of services and sales of goods

All revenue is recognised at a point in time, which is typically on service rendered. A service is
rendered and goods are sold when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset. All the contracts
are completed at the adoption date. The revenue is recognised net of any related rebates, discounts
and tax. The Group and the Company shall disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with
customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by economic factors as disclosed in Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

3.3.1.2 Dividend income

 Dividend income from investment is recognised when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

3.3.1.3 Interest income

 Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis using effective interest method in profit or loss.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.3 Revenue recognition – MFRS 15 and MFRS 118 (cont’d)
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3.3.1.4 Rental income

 Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

3.3.2 Revenue recognition under MFRS 118 Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group
and to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised.

3.3.2.1 Render of services

Revenue from waste collection is recognised when the service is rendered to the customers.

Revenue from render of services and sale of goods are measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates and taxes.
Revenue is recognised when the service is rendered and significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated
costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

3.3.2.2 Dividend income 

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the Group’s and the Company’s right to
receive payment is established.

3.3.2.3 Interest income

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis using effective interest method in profit or loss.

3.3.2.4 Rental income

 Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

3.4 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are included in profit or loss for the year. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the year
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income. For such non-monetary items,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.3 Revenue recognition – MFRS 15 and MFRS 118 (cont’d)

3.3.1 Revenue recognition under MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018



Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad
(642619-P)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 104

3.5 Income tax expenses

Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax but exclude taxes arising from business
combinations and items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income. Current and
deferred tax are recognised as expenses or income in the profit or loss.

3.5.1 Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the financial
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous financial years. Tax payable (recoverable) for current and prior
financial years is recognised as liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable). 

3.5.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using liability method for temporary differences between carrying amount of
an asset or liability in the statements of financial position and its tax base at reporting date. However,
deferred tax on temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination is not
recognised because they affect neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they are reversed, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Where investment property are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 3.10 to the Financial Statements, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on the sale of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and held with the objective to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rate enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets or liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised. 

3.5.3 Indirect tax

Supply of goods and services in Malaysia and other jurisdiction is subject to Goods and Services Tax
(“GST”).

The net amount of such taxes recoverable from, or payable to, the relevant authorities is included as
part of “other receivables” or “other payables” in the statements of financial position.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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3.5 Income tax expenses (cont’d)

3.5.3 Indirect tax (cont’d)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of such taxes. If such taxes
incurred on the purchase of assets is not recoverable from the authorities, such taxes incurred are
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset.

During the financial year, GST reset at standard rated of 0% with effective on 1 June 2018.

3.6 Employee benefits

3.6.1 Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as expenses in the
financial year, in which associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and of the
Company. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are
recognised when employees’ entitlement to future compensated absences increases. Other short
term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised as and when it
occurred.

3.6.2 Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plan under which the Group and the
Company pay fixed contributions into separate entities of funds and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contribution if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. 

Such contributions are recognised as expenses in profit or loss as incurred. As required by law,
companies in Malaysia make such contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”). 

3.6.3 Employees share grant plan

Eligible employees of the Group and of the Company received remuneration in the form of share
grant as consideration for services rendered. The cost of these equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the grant at the date on which the grant are
granted.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if,
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets and any other
costs directly attributable to bring the asset to working condition for its intended use, cost of replacing
component parts of the assets, and the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of the assets after their use. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Freehold land and capital work-in-progress are not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of the various assets over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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Land and buildings 1% - 2%
%02 - %01noitavoner dna sgnittif dna erutinruf ,tnempiuqe eciffO
%02 - %01noitallatsni lacirtcele dna tnempiuqe yrotcaF

Motor vehicles 20%
Computers 20% - 40%

Capital work-in-progress consists of buildings and plant and machinery under construction/
installation for intended use as production facilities. The amount is stated at cost and includes
capitalisation of interest incurred on borrowings related to property, plant and equipment under
construction/installation until the property, plant and equipment are ready for their intended use.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until it is completed and ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimates
accounted for prospectively.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss. 

Property, plant and equipment under finance lease arrangements

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease arrangements are capitalised in the
financial statements and the corresponding obligations treated as liabilities. Finance charges are
allocated to profit or loss to give a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining finance lease
liabilities.

Assets held under finance lease arrangements are depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the arrangements.

3.8 Leased assets

3.8.1 Finance leases

Property, plant and equipment acquired under lease arrangements which transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group and to the Company are classified as finance leases.
The leased asset is measured at fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments at inception. Initial direct costs are added to the amount recognised above.
Leased asset is accounted in accordance with accounting policy applicable to that asset. 

Leased payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Outstanding obligation
due under finance lease arrangements after deducting finance expenses are included as liabilities in
the financial statements. Finance charges on finance lease arrangements are allocated to profit or
loss over the period of respective agreements.

Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as investment property if held to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
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3.8.2 Operating leases

Leases where the Group and the Company do not assume substantially all the risk and benefits of
ownership are classified as operating lease, except for property interest held under operating lease,
the leased assets are not recognised on the statements of financial position. Property interest held
under an operating lease, which is held to earn rental income or capital appreciation or both, is
classified as investment property and measured using fair value model.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on straight-line basis over the
lease period. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total
lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as prepaid land lease
payments. The payments are amortised over the lease terms which are between 49 to 74 years.

Where the Groups acts as lessor in an operating lease arrangement, rental income from operating
leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Lease incentives
provided are recognised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

3.9 Prepaid lease payments

Leases of land where title is not expected to pass to the lessee at the end of the lease term are
classified as operating leases as land normally has an indefinite useful life.  The upfront payments
made on entering into or acquiring a leasehold land that is an operating lease represents prepaid
lease payments which are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease term except for leasehold
land classified as investment property (see below).

3.10 Investment property

Investment property, comprising long-term leasehold land and building, is held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the Group and the Company.

Investment property is stated at fair value and changes in fair value will be recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The deferred tax impact arising from changes in fair value will also
be recognised in profit or loss.

On disposal of an investment property, or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, it shall be derecognised from the statements of
financial position. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.11 Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of subsidiary companies
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary companies at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an
asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGU”) expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.  If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

3.8 Leased assets (cont’d)
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.11 Goodwill on consolidation (cont’d)

The growth rates and changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on expectations of future
changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
directors for the next two years and extrapolates cash flows for the following three years based on
estimated growth rate of 14.00% (2017: 5.88%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets excluding goodwill to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group and the Company estimate the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instruments of another entity.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from a value-in-use calculation. The key 
assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and 
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates the 
discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the CGU.
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3.13.1 Financial assets under MFRS 9 Financial instruments

At initial recognition, financial assets are classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group and the Company have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the Compa-
ny initially measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVT-
PL, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group and the Company have applied the practical expedient are measured at the trans-
action price determined under MFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instru-
ment level. 

The Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it man-
ages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified into the following categories:

(i)    Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets measures at amortised cost if both of the conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flow; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

(i)        Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade receivables,
most of the other receivables, amount owing by subsidiaries and cash and bank balances.

•

•

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using effective interest method 
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset 
is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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(ii)       Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial asset held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separate embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statements of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statements of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group
and the Company had no irrevocably elected to classify FVTOCI. Dividends on listed equity in-
vestments are also recognised in the statements of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivate if: the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
FVTPL. Embedded derivatives measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the FVTPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not
accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at FVTPL.

The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows and all financial assets,
except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to review for impairment:

(i)        Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of financial assets which are held
for trading or those designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. All
derivative financial instruments (including separated embedded derivatives) which are
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term and contingent consideration in
a business combination fall into this category, except for those that are financial guarantee
contracts or those designated and effective as hedging instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do
not include exchange differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange differences,
interest and dividend income on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other income or other expenses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-cur-
rent. Financial assets which are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current
whereas financial assets which are not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as
current or non-current based on the settlement date.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

3.13.2 Financial assets under MFRS 139 Financial instruments (cont’d)
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(ii)       Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Gains and losses from
loans and receivables are recognised in profit or loss through amortisation process or upon
derecognition or impairment. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial
in subsequent measurement.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates
later than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as non-current.

Financial assets included in loans and receivables are cash and bank balances, amount owing
by subsidiaries, trade and most of the other receivables.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

3.13.3 Impairment of financial assets under MFRS 9 Financial instruments
The Group and the Company assess on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instrument not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all cash flows that the Group and the Company
expect to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period (including
extension grant) over which the Group and the Company are exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events with-
in 12 months after the reporting date: and
Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the terms, irrespective of the timing of the default to which ECL
model applies.

For trade receivables, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group and the Company have
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking factors specific to the debtors and economic environment.

For all other financial instruments, the Group and the Company recognise a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

ECLs are re-measured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group and the Company recognise an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that are measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (recycling).

•

•

3.13.2 Financial assets under MFRS 139 Financial instruments (cont’d)
The Group and the Company categories financial instruments as follows and all financial assets, 
except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to review for impairment (cont’d) 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

3.13.3 Impairment of financial assets under MFRS 9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group and the Company
determine that the debtor does not have any assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off.

3.13.4 Impairment of financial assets under MFRS 139 Financial instruments

All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as investment in subsidiaries) are
assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. 

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss. The Group and
the Company consider factors such as significant delay in payment, default or the probability of
insolvency of the loan and receivables to determine whether there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has occurred. If such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.

When loan and receivables becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. For
certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets not impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the
Company’s past experience with industry group, increase in cases of delayed payments and
observable changes in economic conditions.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease is related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

3.13.5 Financial liabilities under MFRS 9 Financial instruments

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, or derivatives financial instruments. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables net of directly attributable transaction cost.

The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities include trade and most of the other payables,
amount owing to subsidiaries, finance lease liabilities and term loans. 
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The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

(i) Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities including term loans, amount owing to subsidiaries, and trade and
most of the other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group and the Company have unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a lost it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as deferred income and is
amortised to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or when
there is no specified contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the
guarantee. When settlement of a financial guarantee contract become probable, an estimate
of the obligation is made. If the carrying value of the financial guarantee contract is lower than
the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation amount and accounted for as a
provision.

3.13.6 Financial liabilities under under MFRS 139 Financial instruments

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(i) Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities including finance lease liabilities, term loans, amount owing to
subsidiaries, and trade and most of the other payables are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group and the Company have unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract which requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial guarantee contracts are recognised as income in profit or loss over the
period of the guarantee. If the specified debtor fails to make payment to the holder of the
financial guarantee contract when it is due and the Group and the Company, as the issuer, is
required to reimburse the holder for the associated loss, the liability is measured at the higher
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

3.13.5 Financial liabilities under MFRS 9 Financial instruments
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3.13.7 Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset have expired or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of
the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. If the Group
and the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group and the Company recognise its retained
interest in the asset and associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group and the
Company retain substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred assets, the
Group and the Company continue to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.13 Financial instruments – MFRS 9 & MFRS 139 (cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial liability when their contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

3.13.8 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of fi-
nancial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabil-
ities simultaneously.

3.14 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (determined on the “first-in, first-out” basis) and net
realisable value. The cost of recycled products comprises the original purchase price plus cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location. The cost of work-in-progress and
finished goods comprises the cost of raw materials, direct labour and a proportion of production
overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less selling and
distribution costs and all other estimated costs to completion. 

Write-down to net realisable value and inventory losses are recognised as an expense when it
occurred and any reversal is recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which it occurs.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and bank balances which are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and are not subject to risk of significant changes in value.

3.16 Equity and reserves 

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Ordinary shares are
equity instruments and they are contracts evidencing residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.16 Equity and reserves (cont’d)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the articles of association of
the Company grant the Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised directly as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are not accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an
appropriation of retained earnings, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Retained earnings include all current and prior financial years retained earnings.

All transactions with owners of the Company are recorded separately within equity.

3.17 Provisions

Provisions are made when the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period, and are discounted to a present value where the effect is
material.

At the end of each reporting period, provisions are reviewed by the directors and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate. The provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that the Group and
the Company will be required to settle the obligations.

3.18 Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an inflow or an outflow of economic benefits will occur, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the asset or the obligation is not recognised in the statements of
financial position and they are disclosed as a contingent asset or contingent liability, unless the
probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible assets or obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent assets or contingent liabilities unless the probability of inflow or
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

3.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group and the Company in connection
with the borrowing of funds. They are recognised as expenses in the profit or loss in the period
incurred. However, borrowing costs directly attributable to finance the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets and it
ceases or is suspended when the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use is completed or interrupted. 
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3.20 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group and to the Company and they could
be:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company, or the Group; and

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)   The entity and the Group are members of the same group.
(ii)  The entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group.
(iii) Both the Group and the entity are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) The Group is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the

same third entity.
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefits of employees of either

the Group or an entity related to the Group.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a

member of the key management personnel of the entity.
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a party, provides key management

personnel services to the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Group and
its related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

3.21 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses related to transactions with
any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Executive Directors to determine the resources to be allocated to the segment and to
assess its performance.

Segment results that are reported to the Executive Directors include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprised
mainly of corporate assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the financial year to acquire property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and capital work-in-progress. 

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group and the Company have adopted MFRS 9 on 1 January 2018. MFRS 9 introduces new
requirements which have resulted in changes in accounting policies for recognition, classification and
measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets, while the hedge accounting
requirements under this Standard are not relevant to the Group and to the Company. 

The Group and the Company have applied MFRS 9 retrospectively on the initial application date in
accordance with the transitional provision and the comparative information was not restated.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.1 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

4.1.1 Classification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets
Under MFRS 9, at initial recognition, financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost. The
classification above depends on the Group’s and the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the terms of contractual cash flows. Based on the assessment, the financial assets
held by the Group and the Company as at 1 January 2018 are reclassified to the following categories and
remeasured accordingly as follows:

The effect of remeasurement will be adjusted against the retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

* LAR - Loans and receivables
^ FVTPL - Fair value through profit or loss

Note:

(1) Trade receivables, other receivables, amount owing by subsidiaries and cash and bank balances
that were previously classified as loans and receivables are now reclassified to amortised cost. The
Group and the Company intend to hold the assets to maturity to collect contractual cash flows and
these cash flows consist solely of payments of principal and interest on the principal amount out-
standing.

(2) Investment in unit trusts is classified as fair value through profit or loss. The Group and the
Company manage the financial asset with the objective of realising cash flows through the sale of
the asset. There is no change in the classification of this financial asset.

Financial assets:
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Investment in
unit trusts

Amount owing
by subsidiaries

Cash and bank
balances

(1)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(1)

LAR*

LAR*

FVTPL^

LAR*

LAR*

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

FVTPL

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

12,880,494

799,291

12,126,870

-

5,825,805

(650,865)

-

-

-

-

12,229,629

799,291

12,126,870

-

5,825,805

-

17,850

1,095,117

14,119,276

340,471

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,850

1,095,117

14,119,276

340,471

Note

Group Company
Measurement category Carrying amount as at 1 January 2018 Carrying amount as at 1 January 2018
Original

(MFRS 139)
New

(MFRS9)
Original

(MFRS 139)

RM RM RM RM RM RM

Remeasured
New

(MFRS9)
New

(MFRS9)
Original

(MFRS 139) Remeasured
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4.1.1 Classification and measurement of financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities

MFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in MFRS 139 for the classification of financial
liabilities.

However, under MFRS 139 all fair value changes of liabilities designated as FVTPL are recognised in
profit or loss, whereas under MFRS 9 these fair value changes are generally presented as follows:

the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
is presented in other comprehensive income; and
the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.

The Group’s and the Company’s assessment did not identify any requirements to reclassify financial
liabilities at 1 January 2018 and it has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL and it has no
intention to do so.

4.1.2 Impairment of financial assets

MFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on impairment that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. The ECL model is forward-looking and eliminates the need
for a trigger event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The Group applied the simplified approach and calculated expected credit losses based on lifetime
expected credit losses on all trade receivables. The Group established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience with trade receivables of similar credit risk characteristics,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the category of debtors and the economic environment.

Group
RM

Trade receivables 
080,464,1931 SRFM rednu 7102 rebmeceD 13 ta secnawolla LCE
568,0568102 yraunaJ 1 ta desingocer tnemriapmi lanoitiddA

549,411,29 SRFM rednu 8102 yraunaJ 1 ta secnawolla LCE

•

•

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.1 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)
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4.1.3 Effect on initial impact

The following table is a reconciliation of the carrying amounts on the impact of adopting MFRS 9 as at
1 January 2018:

Original
weN)931 SRFM(

Carrying
amount as at
31 December

2017 Impairment

(MFRS 9)
Carrying

amount as at
1 January 2018

RM RM RM
Group
Trade receivables

475,443,41-475,443,41ecnalab gninepO
Increase in allowance for expected credit 

)549,411,2()568,056()080,464,1(sessol

926,922,21)568,056(494,088,21selbaviecer edart latoT

Retained earnings
355,542,17-355,542,17ecnalab gninepO

Increase in allowance for expected credit 
)568,056()568,056(-sessol

886,495,07)568,056(355,542,17sgninrae deniater latoT

Deferred tax liabilities
754,258,1-754,258,1ecnalab gninepO

Deferred tax related to allowance for 
)947,081(*)947,081(-sessol tiderc detcepxe

807,176,1)947,081(754,258,1seitilibail xat derrefed latoT

*   The above are the deferred tax impact of recognising the additional allowance for impairment under
MFRS 9. However, the Group only recognises the tax impact during the financial year which includ-
ed in Note 7 to the Financial Statements as part of the “over provision in prior year”.

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.1 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)
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4.2 MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

MFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining how and when revenue is
recognised. Under MFRS 15, revenue is recognised when control of the goods or services transfers to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group and the Company expect
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. 

The Group provides waste recovery and recycling services, rent recycled products to manufacturing
companies, trade chemicals and other products and receives rental income from third party. The
Group sells to customers solely based on purchase orders. 

4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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4. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

4.2 MFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (cont’d)

The Company received dividend income from its subsidiaries.

Revenue is recognised for these arrangements over time or at a point in time depending on the
Group’s evaluation of when the customer obtains control of the promised products or services. The
Group has reviewed its performance obligations, customer contracts and evaluated the impact of
MFRS 15 based on the amount and timing of revenue recognition.

All revenue is recognised at a point in time, which is typically on delivery or render of services. An
asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset. All the contracts are
completed at the adoption date. The revenue is recognised net of any related rebates, discounts and
tax.

In conclusion, the adoption of MFRS 15 has no significant impact on the substance of the principles
applied by the Group and the Company to the amount and timing of revenue recognition. The revenue
recognition principles and delivery terms applied by the Group and the Company remain generally
unaltered. No adjustment to the opening balance of unappropriated profits has been made as there
are no changes in timing of the revenue recognition. 
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit from operations is arrived at after the following charges/(credits):

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Allowance for doubtful debts - 301,784 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts 

--)673,602(-deriuqer regnol on
Amortisation of prepaid lease 

--364,152489,343stnemyap
Bad debts written off 1,555,193 - - -
Compensation claim from 

--)964,617,3(-noitisiuqca yroslupmoc
Depreciation of property
                                                                 3,099,062 2,985,696 - -
Directors’ remuneration                                   3,080,537 2,387,570 199,000 229,400
Dividend income from

investment in unit trusts (493,853) (187,073) (64,544) (14,547)
Fair value gain in investment 

---)003,832(ytreporp
Fair value loss/(gain) on 

investment in unit trusts 877,342 (55,168) 256,266 19,430
Gain on disposal of property, 

plant and equipment - (58,302) - -
Gain arising from insurance 

claim on loss of property, 
--)997,02(-tnempiuqe dna tnalp

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of
investment in unit trusts 99,081 (79,836) (43,828) -

Interest expenses:
                                                                       11,817 7,242 - -

--421,44026snaol mreT -
)802,3()233,2()835,11()307,21(emocni tseretnI

Realised loss on foreign 
--406,62352,1egnahcxe

Reversal of expected credit 
losses allowances (962,090) - - -

--617,747,6065,338,7stsoc ffatS
Unrealised loss on foreign 

--023,8-egnahcxe
Expenses on employees 

share grant plan 1,153,400 - - -

plant and equipment

- Finance lease liabilities
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT’D)

Directors’ remuneration

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017

                                      RM RM RM RM
Executive Directors:
Paid by the Company:

000,06000,06000,06000,06seeF  
002,52006,81002,52006,81stnemulome rehtO  

78,600 85,200 78,600 85,200
Paid by the subsidiaries:
  Fees and other 

--443,978,1399,921,2stnemulome     
  Contributions to EPF 290,184 278,826 - -
  Share grant expenses 461,360 - - -

2,881,537 2,158,170 - -
Non-executive Directors:
Paid by the Company:

000,69008,29000,69008,29seeF  
002,84006,72002,84006,72stnemulome rehtO  

120,400 144,200 120,400 144,200

3,080,537 2,387,570 199,000 229,400

The number of Directors of the Group whose total remuneration during the financial year falls within
the following bands are as follows:

Number of Directors
2018 2017

Executive Directors:
44 000,051MR evobA  

Non-executive Directors:
33000,05MR woleB  

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Estimated tax payable:
--702,429,1354,631,1raey tnerruC

Under/(Over) provision in prior 
-181)421,16(368,49raey laicnanif

1,231,316 1,863,083 181 -
Deferred tax (Note 23):

--)511,03(000,136raey tnerruC
Under provision in prior financial 

--701,817345,743raey

978,543 687,992 - -

2,209,859 2,551,075 181 -
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Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% of the estimated taxable income for
the financial year.

A numerical reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the applicable
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

142,403,7984,978913,893,51098,659,9xat erofeb tiforP

Tax at the statutory income tax 
810,357,1770,112795,596,3456,983,2 %42 fo etar

Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 771,731 858,059 179,732 166,982
Pioneer business income (2,078,320) (1,774,630) - -
Income not subject to tax (170,844) (457,282) (390,809) (1,920,000)
Change in Real Property Gain Tax 

---281,265etaR
Deferred tax liabilities recognised 
upon expiry of pioneer status 339,850 - - -

Deferred tax assets not 
--)256,724()008,64(desingocer

Under/(Over) provision in prior 
financial year:

-181)421,16(368,49xat tnerruC -
--701,817345,743 xat derrefeD -

2,209,859 2,551,075 181 -

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd. (“TCP2”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted pioneer
status under the Promotion of Investment Act, 1967 for a period of 5 years from 28 January 2014 to 27
January 2019 by the Malaysian Industrial Development Authority for the recycling and recovery of
schedule wastes. By virtue of the TCP2’s pioneer status, 70% of the TCP2’s statutory business income
is to be exempted from income tax. Based on existing tax law, any dividends declared and proposed
out of tax-exempted profits will be exempted from income tax in the hands of the shareholder. 

As of 31 December 2018, TCP2 has tax-exempt income of approximately RM27,855,957 (2017:
RM19,196,291) in which is subject to agreement to tax authorities. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018



ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad

127

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

Deductible temporary differences 
000,415,1000,146,1tnempiuqe dna tnalp ,ytreporP -
)000,081,2()000,370,2(sessol ssenisub desilitunU
)000,663,5()000,504,5(ecnawolla latipac debrosbanU

(5,837,000) (6,032,000)

The unutilised business losses and unabsorbed capital allowance are subject to agreement by the tax
authorities.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the financial year as follows:

Group
2018 2017

Basic
442,748,21130,747,7)MR( raey laicnanif eht rof tiforP

Weighted average number of ordinary 
919,472,352722,831,452)tinu( eussi ni serahs

70.5  50.3)nes( erahs rep sgninrae cisaB

Diluted

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as the Group has no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares.

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

As mentioned in Note 3 to Financial Statements, the deductible temporary differences, unutilised
business losses and unabsorbed capital allowance which would give rise to deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unutilised business losses and unabsorbed capital allowance can be
utilised. As of the end of the reporting period, the estimated deductible temporary differences,
unutilised business losses and unabsorbed capital allowance for which the related deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in the financial statements due to uncertainty of their realisation are as
follows:
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group as of the end of the reporting period are motor
vehicles acquired under finance lease arrangements with net carrying amount amounting to
RM655,687 (2017: RM690,198).

As of the end of the reporting period, leasehold building with a net carrying amount amounting to
RM2,242,904 (2017: RM2,002,659) has been pledged as security for term loans disclosed in Note 22
in the Financial Statements. The Group is not allowed to pledge this asset as security for other
borrowings or to sell it to another entity.

The accumulated impairment loss was based on the review of the estimated recoverable amounts of
the assets of whose profitability were significantly below acceptable levels as determined by the
Group.

10. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

Cost
,22raey laicnanif fo gninnigeb tA 869,187 15,044,501

,7-noitiddA 824,686

,22raey laicnanif fo dne tA 869,187 22,869,187

Accumulated amortisation
,1raey laicnanif fo gninnigeb tA 503,187 1,251,724

Charge for the financial year 364,152489,343 

1raey laicnanif fo dne tA ,847,171 1,503,187

Net carrying amount 21,022,016 21,366,000

As of the end of the reporting period, the unexpired lease periods of the said leasehold land ranged
from 49 years to 74 years (2017: 50 years to 75 years).

As of the end of the reporting period, certain leasehold lands with carrying amount of RM13,422,025
(2017: RM13,607,401) have been pledged as security for term loan disclosed in Note 22 to the
Financial Statements. The Group is not allowed to pledge the said leasehold lands as security for other
borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group
2018  2017
  RM RM

Fair value:
003,922,91007,178,51raey laicnanif fo gninnigeb tA

)006,753,3(-lasopsiD
-003,832ytreporp tnemtsevni no niag eulav riaF

007,178,51000,011,61raey laicnanif fo dne tA

Investment property of the Group comprises a parcel of leasehold land with a building erected thereon.
The said land has a leasehold tenure of 99 years expiring on 25 May 2065.
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The fair value of the investment property of the Group was estimated at RM16,110,000 (2017:
RM15,871,700) based on Director’s estimation. The Directors assessed based on the last valuation
reports in prior years adjusted for recent transaction prices in the market of properties with similar
condition and location to derive fair value.

The following are recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties:

Group
2018  2017
  RM RM

442,940,1440,270,1emocni latneR
Direct operating expenses:

305,35582,25seitreporp tnemtsevni gnitareneg emocnI -

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is classified as a Level 3 fair value item for the
purposes of fair value hierarchy disclosures. The relevant information is as below:

Description

Fair value 
as of end of reporting

period
RM

Valuation
techniques

Significant
unobservable

inputs Range

The subject
  entitlement -
  long term 
  leasehold land 
  located in Jalan 
  Kuchai Lama

RM16,110,000
(2017:RM15,871,700)

Sales
  transaction 
  comparison
  based on
  similar 
  location and 
  condition

Estimated
  transaction 
  price per 
  square foot

RM295 - RM354 
  per square foot
  (2017: RM284
  - RM350 per 
  square foot)

12. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each unit are as follows:

Group
2018  2017
  RM RM

739,385739,385.dhB .ndS elcyC xeT

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is allocated, at acquisition date, to CGU that are expected
to benefit from that business combination.  Goodwill has been allocated to the recovery and recycling
services operations of the Group. 

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from value-in-use calculation. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. The Directors estimate discount rate using
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The growth rates and changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on expectations
of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the Directors for the next 2 years and extrapolates cash flows for the following 3 years based on
estimated growth rate of 14.00% (2017: 5.88%) per annum. The discount rate used is 4.75% (2017:
7.40%) per annum.

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (CONT’D)
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Sensitivity to change in assumption

With regards to the assessment of value-in-use of the CGUs, the Directors believe that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying values of the CGU to
materially differ from the recoverable amounts.

13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2018 2017
RM RM

At cost:
282,928,01282,928,01 serahs detouqnU

Employees share grant plan granted to the employees and
-004,351,1seiraidisbus fo srotceriD
)000,052()000,052(ssol tnemriapmi detalumuccA

11,732,682 10,579,282

Details of the direct and indirect subsidiaries, which are all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest and

voting rights held by
the Company

Name of companies 2018 2017 Principal Activities
% %

Direct subsidiaries:
 deludehcs fo gnilcycer dna yrevoceR001001.dhB .ndS elcyC xeT

waste.

Metro Koats Technology   Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Manufacturing and marketing of 
chemical products.

Metro Envy Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Rental of investment property.

TC Chemical Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Trading of chemicals and other 
products.

Indirect subsidiaries:
Held through Tex Cycle Sdn. Bhd.
Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd.   100 100 Recovery and recycling of scheduled 

waste.

Held through TC Chemicals Sdn. Bhd.
TC Champs Sdn. Bhd. 100 - Trading and manufacturing including 

import and export of food and feed 
additive, supplement and other 
related products.

Incorporation of a new subsidiary

On 1 November 2018, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, TC Chemical Sdn. Bhd. incorporated a
100% owned subsidiary in Malaysia with cash subscription of RM100,000, namely TC Champs Sdn.
Bhd.

12. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (CONT’D)
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14. INVENTORIES

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

383,911sdoog dehsiniF 217,149

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Trade receivables represent amounts receivable for provision of waste recovery and recycling
services, rental of recycled products and sales of goods. The credit period granted to customers
ranges from 24 hours to 150 days (2017: 24 hours to 150 days). 

15.1 Trade receivables under MFRS 9 Financial instruments

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to 12-
months expected credit losses (“ECL”). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision
matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors.

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

,01selbaviecer edarT 327,118 14,344,574
Less: ECL allowance (1,152,855) (1,464,080)

9,174,263 12,880,494

The closing balance of the ECL allowance as at 31 December 2018 reconciles with the trade
receivables loss allowance opening balance as follows:

2018 2017
RM RM

ECL allowance as at 1 January calculated
369,400,2080,464,1931 SRFM rednu 

Amounts restated through opening retained earnings 650,865 -

369,400,2549,411,2yraunaJ 1 ta sa ecnawolla LCE
487,103-raey laicnanif eht gnirud desingocer ecnawolla LCE

ECL allowance unused and reversed during
)673,602()090,269(raey laicnanif eht 
)192,636(-ffo nettirW

080,464,1558,251,1rebmeceD 13 ta sa ecnawolla LCE
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

15.1 Trade receivables under MFRS 9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Analysis of trade receivables as of the end of the financial year was:

Group

ECL Gross
ECL

allowance Net
% RM RM RM

31.12.2018
721,336,3222,94943,286,3%733.1mret nihtiW

Past due
068,723,2378,54337,373,2%339.1syad 03 ot 1 -
540,462,1132,23672,692,1%684.2syad 06 - 13 -
289,026144,91324,046%630.3syad 09 - 16 -
172,173857,31920,583%375.3syad 021 - 19 -
879,659885,16665,810,1%740.6syad 563 - 121 -

- More than 365 days 100.000% 930,742 930,742 -

10,327,118 1,152,855 9,174,263

1.1.2018
793,261,4104,45897,612,4%092.1mret nihtiW

Past due
712,739,2996,55619,299,2%168.1syad 03 ot 1 -
033,940,1117,62140,670,1%284.2syad 06 - 13 -
782,025223,61906,635%240.3syad 09 - 16 -
409,315433,91832,335%626.3syad 021 - 19 -
494,640,3620,102025,742,3%091.6syad 563 - 121 -

- More than 365 days 100.000% 1,741,452 1,741,452 -

14,344,574 2,114,945 12,229,629

15.2 Trade receivables under MFRS 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement

Group
31.12.2017

RM

,41selbaviecer edarT 344,574
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,464,080)

12,880,494

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
Group

31.12.2017
RM

369,400,2raey laicnanif fo gninnigeb tA
487,103 raey laicnanif eht rof egrahC

)673,602(deriuqer regnol on stbed luftbuod rof ecnawollA
Written off (636,291)

080,464,1raey laicnanif fo dne tA
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Analysis of trade receivables as of the end of the financial year was:

Group
31.12.2017

RM

897,612,4 deriapmi ron eud tsap rehtieN
Past due but not impaired
- 1 - 30 days 2,992,916
- 31 - 60 days 1,076,041
- 61 - 90 days 536,609
- 91 - 120 days 533,238
- 121 - 545 days 3,524,892
Past due and impaired

080,464,1syad 545 naht eroM -

14,344,574

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy customers with good
payment records with the Company. None of the Company’s trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Trade receivables amounting to RM8,663,696 that were due at the reporting date but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of default.
The Directors are of the opinion that the receivables are collectible in view of long term business
relationships with the customers. These receivables are unsecured. 

Financial assets that are impaired

The Group fully impaired all receivables due for more than 545 days (1½ years) based on certain
assumption used. It does not hold any collateral over these impaired balances. 

15.3 Other receivables consist of:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Non-trade receivables 25,604 600 - -
Refundable deposits 453,345 488,132 1,000 1,000

058,61-227,582972,322stnemyaperP
GST receivable 253,252 24,837 - -

955,480 799,291 1,000 17,850

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

15.2 Trade receivables under MFRS 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement
(cont’d)
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16. INVESTMENT IN UNIT TRUSTS

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Fair value:
At beginning of financial year 12,126,870 6,860,022 1,095,117 -

,72snoitiddA 518,320 16,083,529 1,800,000 1,100,000
Dividend income from investment 493,853 187,073 64,544 14,547
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of
 investment (99,081) 79,836 43,828 -
Fair value (loss)/gain (877,342) 55,168 (256,266) (19,430)

--)857,831,11()982,953,81(lasopsiD

At end of financial year 20,803,331 12,126,870 2,747,223 1,095,117

Investment in unit trusts is managed by a local financial institution, where approximately 69.8% to
99.8% of the unit trust’s net asset value will be invested in medium to long-term government bonds,
private debt securities and fixed income instruments. The balance shall be allocated to equity
instruments, cash deposits and short-term money market instruments.

Investment in unit trusts is valued with reference to the latest unit price as of the reporting date as
advised by the investment manager. As the fair value derived from quoted prices in active markets, the
fair value of the Group’s investment in unit trusts is classified as Level 1.

17. AMOUNT OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts owing by/(to) subsidiaries which arose mainly from advances and payments on behalf, are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) 4,946,330 5,770,970 523,857 340,471
United States Dollar (“USD”) 156,664 54,835 - -
Great Britain Pound (“GBP”) 400,614 - - -

5,503,608 5,825,805 523,857 340,471
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

Group and Company
Number of shares Amount

2018 2017 2018  2017
Unit Unit RM RM

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares:
At the beginning of financial 

003,970,71059,816,52000,397,071694,981,652raey
056,935,8  -694,693,58-seussi sunoB

Fair value gain on employees 
-459,736--nalp tnarg erahs

At end of financial year 256,189,496 256,189,496 26,256,904 25,618,950

Treasury shares:
  At the beginning of financial 

188,710,1183,030,1007,539,1055,819,2raey 
  Repurchased during the

005,21885,359000,01001,805,1raey laicnanif   
--058,279-seussi sunoB  

  Utilisation for employees share
-)644,515(-)000,064,1(nalp tnarg   

At end of financial year 2,966,650 2,918,550 1,468,523 1,030,381

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets. In respect of the Company’s treasury shares that are held by
the Company, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

During the financial year, the Company purchased 1,508,100 units of its own shares. The total amount
paid for acquisition of the shares was RM953,588 including transaction costs and has been deducted
from equity. The repurchased transactions were financed by internally generated funds and the
average price paid for the shares was RM0.63 per share. 

On 11 January 2018, the Company utilised 1,460,000 units of its treasury shares for distribution of
1,460,000 units of shares for employees share grant plan. 

As of 31 December 2018, the Company held 2,966,650 treasury shares out of its 256,189,496 issued
ordinary shares. The treasury shares are held in accordance with Section 127(6) of the Companies
Act, 2016.

20. RESERVES

ynapmoCpuorG

Distributable:
                                                               76,807,997 71,245,553 801,263 1,455,677

The Company is currently under the single tier income tax system and accordingly, the entire retained
earnings as of the end of the reporting period is available for distribution as dividend under the single
tier income tax system. Under this system, tax on a company’s profits is a final tax, and dividends dis-
tributed to shareholders will be exempted from tax.

Retained earnings

2018
RM

2017
RM

2018
RM

2017
RM
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21. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Group
2018
RM

Minimum lease payments
817,661886,131raey 1 nihtiW -
822,502066,691sraey 5 ot 2 neewteB -

328,348
)257,02()329,12(esnepsus ni stseretnI :sseL

491,153524,603seitilibail esael ecnanif fo eulav tneserP

Present value of finance lease liabilities
850,661672,021raey 1 nihtiW -
631,581941,681sraey 5 ot 2 neewteB -

306,425 351,194

It is the Group’s policy to acquire certain of its property, plant and equipment under finance lease
arrangements. The average term of finance lease is approximately 3 years. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, the effective borrowing rate ranged from 4.48% to 4.49% (2017: 4.49% to
4.66%) per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the inception of the finance lease.

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the financial institutions’ charge over the assets
under finance lease.

22. TERM LOANS 

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

Current
Secured:

356,625767,884,1snaol mreT

Non-current
Secured:

879,951,21801,827,01snaol mreT

12,216,875 12,686,631

371,946

2017
RM
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22. TERM LOANS (CONT’D)

The details of term loans are as follows:

seitiruceSetar tseretnIesopruP

Term loan      Working capital 4.48% (2017: 
4.66%) p.a

(i) A registered open all monies first party charge
stamped nominally over the leasehold land and
building as mentioned under Note 9 to the
Financial Statements; and 

(ii) A corporate guarantee by the Company.

Term loan 
(II)

(I)

Capital
expenditure

4.49% (2017: 
4.49%) p.a

(i) Two parcels of the leasehold land as mentioned
in Note 10 to the Financial Statements.

In 2012, the Group obtained a term loan amounting to RM6,000,000 from a licensed bank for working
capital purposes. The term loan bears interest at the bank’s base lending rate -2.2%. 

There is minimal interest expense for this secured term loan as this secured term loan is under flexi-
loan arrangement and the designated bank account balance has exceeded the outstanding term loan
amount throughout the financial year.

In 2018, the Group obtained a term loan amounting to RM10,000,000 from a licensed bank for capital
expenditures purposes. The term loan bears interest at effective cost of fund plus 1% per annum. The
total term loan’s interest expense has been capitalised in capital work-in-progress is amounted to
RM264,136 (2017: RMNil).

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements during the financial year relating to deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

564,461,1754,258,1raey laicnanif fo gninnigeb tA
299,786345,879)7 etoN( ssol ro tiforp ni desingoceR

754,258,1000,138,2raey laicnanif fo dne tA

The deferred tax liabilities are made up of tax effect on temporary differences arising from:

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

005,924,1000,080,2tnempiuqe dna tnalp ,ytreporP
759,935000,521,1ytreporp tnemtsevnI
)000,711()000,062(selbaviecer edarT

-)000,98(sessol ssenisub desilitunU
-)000,52(ecnawolla latipac debrosbanU

2,831,000 1,852,457
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

24.1 Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases. The credit period granted to the
Group for trade purchases ranged at 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days).

24.2 Other payables consist of:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Non-trade payables 1,775,413 1,546,328 1,802 -
Refundable deposits 320,267 319,700 - -

057,23005,34647,097781,595sesnepxe deurccA
--427,601215,011elbayap TSG

2,801,379 2,763,498 45,302 32,750

25. DIVIDENDS

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

In respect of financial year ended
31 December 2018:

First single tier interim dividend of 
RM0.0060 per share on 
256,189,496 ordinary shares 1,533,722 - 1,533,722 -

In respect of financial year ended 
31 December 2017:

First single tier interim dividend of 
RM0.0050 per share on 
170,793,000 ordinary shares - 844,353 - 844,353

Single tier interim dividend of 
RM0.0050 per share on 
170,793,000 ordinary shares - 1,013,200 - 1,013,200

1,533,722 1,857,553 1,533,722 1,857,553

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year, significant transaction undertaken with the subsidiaries are as follows:

Company
2018 2017
RM RM

000,000,8000,025,1yraidisbus a morf deviecer emocni dnediviD
Employees share grant plan granted to employees and Directors of

-004,351,1seiraidisbus
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Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel (excluding Directors whose remuneration are
disclosed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements) during the financial year is as follows:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Short-term employee benefits 1,033,645 353,600 - -
--234,24295,77FPE ot snoitubirtnoC

1,111,237 396,032 - -

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
Categories of financial instruments under MFRS 9 Financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (“FA”); 
(b) Financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
(c) Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“OFL”).

Carrying
amount FA FVTPL OFL

RM RM RM RM
Group
31.12.2018
Financial assets

--362,471,9362,471,9selbaviecer edarT
--949,874949,874selbaviecer rehtO

Investment in unit trusts 20,803,331 - 20,803,331 -
Cash and bank balances 5,503,608 5,503,608 - -

35,960,151 15,156,820 20,803,331 -

Financial liabilities
813,811--813,811selbayap edarT
768,096,2--768,096,2 selbayap rehtO

Finance lease liabilities 306,425 - - 306,425
578,612,21--578,612,21 snaol mreT

15,332,485 - -  

1.1.2018
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12,229,629 12,229,629 - -

--237,884237,884selbaviecer rehtO
Investment in unit trusts 12,126,870 - 12,126,870 -
Cash and bank balances 5,825,805 5,825,805 - -

30,671,036 18,544,166 12,126,870 -

Financial liabilities
419,591--419,591selbayap edarT
477,656,2--477,656,2 selbayap rehtO

Finance lease liabilities 351,194 - - 351,194
136,686,21--136,686,21 snaol mreT

15,890,513 - - 15,890,513

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

15,332,485
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Categories of financial instruments under MFRS 9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows (cont’d):

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost (“FA”); 
(b) Financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
(c) Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“OFL”).

Carrying
amount FA FVTPL OFL

RM RM RM RM

Company
31.12.2018
Financial assets

--000,1000,1selbaviecer rehtO
                       11,114,762 11,114,762 - -

Investment in unit trusts 2,747,223 - 2,747,223 -
Cash and bank balances 523,857 523,857 - -

14,386,842 11,639,619 2,747,223 -

Financial liabilities
203,54--203,54 selbayap rehtO

Amount owing to subsidiaries 484,758 - - 484,758

530,060 - - 530,060

1.1.2018
Financial assets

--000,1000,1selbaviecer rehtO
                                                             14,119,276 14,119,276 - -

Investment in unit trusts 1,095,117 - 1,095,117 -
Cash and bank balances 340,471 340,471 - -

15,555,864 14,460,747 1,095,117 -

Financial liabilities
057,23--057,23 selbayap rehtO

Amount owing to subsidiaries 75,000 - - 75,000

107,750 - - 107,750

Amount owing by subsidiaries

Amount owing by subsidiaries
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Categories of financial instruments under MFRS 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

(a) Loans and receivables (“L&R”);
(b) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); and
(c) Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“AC”).

Carrying
amount L&R FVTPL AC

RM RM RM RM
Group
31.12.2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12,880,494 12,880,494 - -

--237,884237,884selbaviecer rehtO
Investment in unit trusts 12,126,870 - 12,126,870 -
Cash and bank balances 5,825,805 5,825,805 - -

31,321,901 19,195,031 12,126,870 -

Financial liabilities
419,591--419,591selbayap edarT
477,656,2--477,656,2 selbayap rehtO

Finance lease liabilities 351,194 - - 351,194
136,686,21--136,686,21 snaol mreT

15,890,513 - - 15,890,513

Company
31.12.2017
Financial assets

--000,1000,1selbaviecer rehtO
                                                             14,119,276 14,119,276 - -

Investment in unit trusts 1,095,117 - 1,095,117 -
Cash and bank balances 340,471 340,471 - -

15,555,864 14,460,747 1,095,117 -

Financial liabilities
057,23--057,23 selbayap rehtO

Amount owing to subsidiaries 75,000 - - 75,000

107,750 - - 107,750

Amount owing by subsidiaries
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The operations of the Group and of the Company are subject to a variety of financial risks, including
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. The Group and the
Company have formulated a financial risk management framework whose principal objective is to
minimise the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to risks and/or costs associated with the financing,
investing and operating activities of the Group and of the Company.

27.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default in its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group and to the Company. The Group and the Company
adopt the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate standing to mitigate credit risk and
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit evaluation. Receivables are
monitored on an ongoing basis to mitigate risk of bad debts. For other financial assets, the
Group and the Company adopt the policy of dealing with reputable institutions.

27.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

Maximum exposure of the Group and of the Company to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at reporting date summarised below:

ynapmoCpuorG
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM

Classes of financial 
assets:

Trade receivables 9,174,263 12,880,494 - -
Other receivables 478,949 488,732 1,000 1,000
Investment in unit 

trusts 20,803,331 12,126,870 2,747,223 1,095,117
Amount owing by 

672,911,41267,411,11--seiraidisbus
Cash and bank 

balances 5,503,608 5,825,805 523,857 340,471

Carrying amount 35,960,151 31,321,901 14,386,842 15,555,864

The Group and the Company continuously monitor credit standing of customers and other
counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into
its credit risk controls. External credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other
counterparties may also be used.

The Group’s and the Company’s management considers that all the above financial assets
that are not impaired or past due for each of the reporting dates under review are of good
credit quality. None of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.1 Credit risk (cont’d)

27.1.2 Credit risk concentration

In respect of trade and most of the other receivables, the Group and the Company are not
subjected to significant credit risk exposure to a single counterparty or a group of
counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers in various industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about
customer default rates, management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are
past due but not impaired to be good.

27.1.3 Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in
Note 15 to the Financial Statements. Deposits with banks and investment securities that are
neither past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial
institutions with high credit ratings and have no history of default.

27.1.4 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note
15 to the Financial Statements.

27.1.5 Financial guarantees

The Company provides secured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries. The maximum exposure to credit risk is as disclosed in Note
22 to Financial Statement as at the reporting date. The Company monitors on an ongoing
basis the results of the subsidiaries and repayments made by the subsidiaries. As at the end
of the reporting period, there was no indication that the subsidiaries would default on
repayment.

27.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in
meeting its obligations as and when they fall due. The Group and the Company are exposed
to liquidity risk arising from payables, loans and borrowings and it maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents and bank credit facilities deemed adequate by management to ensure it
has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.2 Liquidity risk (cont’d)

27.2.1 Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity period

The following is a summary of the financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company
according to maturity period:

Within 
1 year

2 to 5
years

More than
5 years

Group RM RM RM
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities

261,762,6244,278,7821,161,2
--
-

-

-
813,811

Other payable

Total undiscounted financial 
261,762,6201,960,8100,201,5

Current Non-Current

131,688 196,660 -

2,690,867

2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Finance lease liabilitie

671,901,8855,191,8259,718,1
--
--

419,591
Other payable

Other payables

Total undiscounted financial 
671,901,8687,693,8853,738,4

Company
2018
Non-derivative financial liabilities

--
--

203,54
Amount owing by subsidiarie

Total undiscounted financial 

Financial guarantee*

166,718 205,228

2,656,774

484,758

1,508,728 6,896,607 3,921,540

--060,035

Term loans
Trade payables

Term loans
Trade payables

liabilities

liabilities

liabilities
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.2 Liquidity risk (cont’d)

27.2.1 Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity period (cont’d)

The following is a summary of the financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company
according to maturity period (cont’d):

* This exposure is included in liquidity risk for illustration only. No financial guarantee was
called upon by the holders as at the end of the reporting period.

The above amounts reflected the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities, which may differ from carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the financial year.

   Current
Within 
1 year

2 to 5
years

More than
5 years

RM

2017
Non-derivative financial liabilities

--
--

057,23
Amount owing by subsidiarie

Total undiscounted financial 
--057,701liabilities

Financial guarantee*

75,000

526,653 6,806,568 5,353,410

RM RM

27.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is caused by changes in market interest rate resulting in fluctuation in fair
value or future cash flow of financial instruments of the Group. The Group’s interest rate
management objective is to manage interest expenses consistent with maintaining an
acceptable level of exposure to interest rate fluctuation.

The Group’s borrowings at variable interest rates are exposed to the risk of change in cash
flow due to changes in interest rate. Investment in equity securities and short term receivables
and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Non-currentCompany (cont’d)

Other payables
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.3 Interest rate risk (cont’d)

27.3.1 Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group and the Company are exposed to changes in market interest rates through bank
borrowings at variable interest rates. Other borrowings are at fixed interest rates. The following
is interest rate profile of the significant interest-bearing financial instruments, based on
carrying amounts as at the reporting date:

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities

)491,153()524,603(seitilibail esael ecnaniF

)491,153()524,603( seitilibail laicnanif teN

Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities

)136,686,21()578,612,21(snaol mreT

)136,686,21()578,612,21(seitilibail laicnanif teN

The following illustrates the sensitivity of profit to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates of +/-25 (2017: +/-25) basis points (“bp”). These changes are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions. The calculations are
based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the financial
instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other
variables are held constant.

Group
Effect on profit 

for the financial year
RM RM

2018 (+/- 25bp)
2017 (+/- 25bp)

(30,542)
(31,717)

30,542
31,717
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.4 Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and bank balances denominated in
currency other than functional currencies of the Group’s respective entities. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily US Dollar (“USD”) and Great Britain Pound (“GBP”).

Carrying amounts of the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk are as follows:

27.4.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit or loss with regards to the Group’s
financial assets and the RM/USD and RM/GBP exchange rate assuming all other things being
equal.

A +/-5% (2017: +/-5%) change in the exchange rates at the reporting period is deemed
possible. Both of these percentages have been determined based on average market volatility
in exchange rates in the previous 12 months. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s
foreign currency financial instruments held at each reporting date and also takes into account
forward exchange contracts that offset effects from changes in currency exchange rates.

If the RM had strengthened against the USD and GBP then the impact would be as follows:

Effect on profit 
for the financial year

USD GBP
RM RM

Group
130,02338,78102
-247,27102

USD GBP
RM RM

Group

2018
156,664 400,614

156,664

54,835

54,835

400,614

2017
-

-

Cash and bank balances

Net exposure

Cash and bank balances

Net exposure
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

27.4 Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

27.4.1 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

If the RM had weakened against the USD and GBP and others, then the impact on profit for
the financial year would be the opposite.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the financial year depending on the volume
of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be representative
of the Group’s exposure to currency risk.

27.5 Other price risk sensitivity analysis

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price risk due to fluctuation in prices of
quoted securities under investments in unit trust. The movements in quoted price of these
securities are monitored continuously.

An increase or decrease of 1% (2017: 1%) in the prices of the quoted securities would result
in an increase or decrease of RM208,033 (2017: RM121,269) and RM27,472 (2017:
RM10,951) to the profit or loss of the Group and of the Company.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments refer to the amounts at which the instruments could be
exchanged or settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair
values have been arrived at based on prices quoted in an active, liquid market or estimated using
certain valuation techniques such as discounted future cash flows based upon certain assumptions.
Amounts derived from such methods and valuation techniques are inherently subjective and therefore
do not necessarily reflect the amounts that would be received or paid in the event of immediate
settlement of the instruments concerned.

On the basis of the amounts estimated from the methods and techniques as mentioned in the
preceding paragraph, the carrying amounts of the various financial assets and financial liabilities
reflected on the statements of financial position approximate their fair values. 

The methodologies used in arriving at of fair values of the principal financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Group and of the Company are as follows:

• Deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables, refundable deposits,
trade and other payables, accrued expenses and indebtedness with subsidiary: The
carrying amounts are considered to approximate the fair values as they are either within the
normal credit terms or they have short-term maturity period.

• Other financial assets: The fair value of investment in unit trusts is calculated based on net
asset value provided by the fund manager. 

• Finance lease liabilities: The fair value of finance lease payables is determined by
estimating future cash flows on a borrowing-by-borrowing basis, and discounting these future
cash flows using an interest rate which takes into consideration the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at year end for similar types of debt arrangements.
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• Term loans: As the term loans were obtained from licensed financial institutions at the
prevailing market rate, the carrying values of these financial liabilities approximates its fair
values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statements of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

Level 1 Total
RM RM

Group
31 December 2018

Financial asset at FVTPL:
133,308,02133,308,02stsurt tinu ni tnemtsevnI

31 December 2017

Financial assets at FVTPL:
078,621,21078,621,21stsurt tinu ni tnemtsevnI

Company
31 December 2018

Financial asset at FVTPL:
322,747,2322,747,2stsurt tinu ni tnemtsevnI

31 December 2017

Financial assets at FVTPL:
711,590,1711,590,1stsurt tinu ni tnemtsevnI

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

28. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments, which reflect the
Group’s internal reporting structure that are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segment and assessing its performance.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the following operating divisions:

Reportable Segments Descriptions

Investment holding Investment activities in investment property and unquoted
securities held by the Group on a long-term basis

Recovery and recycling 
  services

Provision of waste recovery and recycling services, and rental of
recycled products

Manufacturing Manufacturing and marketing of chemical products

stcudorp rehto dna slacimehc fo gnidarTgnidarT

ytreporp tnemtsevni fo latneRsrehtO

No information on geographical areas is presented as the Group operates solely in Malaysia.

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (cont’d)

The methodologies used in arriving at of fair values of the principal financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Group and of the Company are as follows (cont’d):
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Major customers

The followings are the major customer with revenue equal or more than 10% of the Group’s revenue:

Revenue
71028102tnemgeS

RM RM

- Customer A Recovery and recycling services 2,705,338 4,075,962

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s and the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value. The capital structure of the Group and of the Company comprises a mixture of
issued capital, retained earnings and external borrowings.

The Group and the Company manage their capital structure and make adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Guidance Note No. 3, the Group is required to maintain
consolidated shareholders’ equity equal to or not less than 25% of the issued and paid-up capital
(excluding treasury shares). The Group has complied with this requirement.

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following capital commitment in respect of the
purchase of property, plant and equipment:

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

000,005000,002rof detcartnoc dna desirohtuA
000,001000,051rof detcartnoc ton tub desirohtuA

350,000 600,000

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into a number of commercial property lease contracts on its investment
property. These lease contracts are non-cancellable and have remaining lease terms of between 1 to 3
years. The lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its
option to renew. The lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease
period.
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The future minimum rental receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating lease
commitments are:

Group
2018 2017
RM RM

Future minimum rental receivable:
440,270,1034,856raey 1 nihtiW
033,909009,052sraey 5 ot 2 neewteB

909,330 1,981,374

32. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING AND SUBSEQUENT TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(i) Employees’ Share Grant Plan under the Employees’ Share Scheme which was approved by
the shareholders of the Company on 4 October 2017 has been completed on 11 January
2018. A total of 1,460,000 shares under employees share grant plan have been granted to the
Directors and eligible employees of the Group and of the Company.

(ii) On 9 August 2016, Tex Cycle (P2) Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
obtained approval from Sustainable Energy Development Authority Malaysia to build and
operate a renewable electrical energy power plant with a capacity to supply 2 Megawatt per
hour of electricity to Tenaga National Berhad (“TNB”), a national grid provider, for a period of
16 years.

A power purchase agreement with TNB was signed on 2 February 2017 at a fixed tariff rate of
RM0.4766 per kilowatt-hour for 16 years.

On 17 January 2018, the said subsidiary has been granted with Energy Commission Public
License for the renewable electrical energy power generation. The renewable electrical energy
power plant is expected to begin operations in March 2019.

(iii) On 17 January 2019, a total of 2,000,000 shares under employees share grant plan have
been granted to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group and of the Company.

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The movements of liabilities to cash flows financing activities arising from is as follows:

196,459,3410,6917102 yraunaJ 1 fo sA
Cash flows:

913,931,9- nwodwarD  
)973,704()028,441( tnemyapeR  

Non-cash change:
-000,003stnemegnarra esael ecnanif rednu noitiddA  

136,686,21491,1537102 rebmeceD 13 fo sA
Cash flows:

808,798-nwodwarD  
)465,763,1()967,451(tnemyapeR  

Non-cash change:
-000,011stnemegnarra esael ecnanif rednu noitiddA  

578,612,21524,6038102 rebmeceD 13 fo sA

Term loans
RM

Group Finance
lease liabilities

RM

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
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SHARE CAPITAL

Total Number of Issued Shares : 253,222,846 Shares*
Issued Share Capital : RM25,322,284.60

serahS yranidrO:serahS fo ssalC
yb ro nosrep ni tneserp ,ynapmoC eht fo rebmem yrevE:sthgiR gnitoV

proxy, shall have on a show of hands, one (1) vote or on
a poll, one (1) vote for each share held

No. of Treasury Shares Held : 2,966,650

*Excluding a total of 2,966,650 shares bought back by the Company and retained as Treasury 
Shares.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

fo .oNsgnidloherahS fo eziS
Holders

% No. of
Shares

%

00.075883.232001 naht sseL
10.0257,8241.796000,1 ot 001
77.0004,259,132.04983000,01 ot 100,1
24.4003,972,1133.73163000,001 ot 100,01

100,001 to less than 5% of issued 
shares

125 12.93 135,941,749 53.91

45.14839,700,60101.01serahs deussi fo evoba dna %5
00.001699,012,55200.001769latoT

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

< -------Direct-------- > < -----Indirect------ >

Name of Directors  No. of Shares %  No. of
Shares

%

345.14*883,824,601559.4453,596,21gnoohC weiS oH
Periasamy A/L Sinakalai 10,430,147 4.071 108,478,388^ 42.343

973.14#839,700,601446.2744,377,6gnoehC weiS oH
#881,406,601254.1593,027,3gneW weiS oH
#

41.611

200.0###005,4641.0005,273 udnakraM nardnivaR
Alagasan A/L Varatharajoo 50,000 0.020 - -

---gneP eeJ nahC -

Notes:-

* Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act”), his spouse’s and his children's direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle
Technology (M) Berhad by virtue of Section 59 of the Act.

^ Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Act, his spouse's and his child’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad by virtue
of Section 59 of the Act.

 # Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Act.

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT
1 APRIL 2019
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## Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Act
and his spouse’s  direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad by virtue of Section 59
of the Act.

###Deemed interested by virtue of Section 59 of the Act via his spouse’s direct shareholdings in Tex
Cycle Technology (M) Berhad.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS PER REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

< -------Direct-------- > < -----Indirect------ >

Name of Shareholders  No. of Shares %  No. of Shares %
Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. 106,007,938 41.379 - -

345.14*883,824,601559.4453,596,21gnoohC weiS oH
Periasamy A/L Sinakalai 10,430,147 4.071 108,478,388^ 42.343

973.14#839,700,601446.2744,377,6gnoehC weiS oH
116.14##881,406,601254.1593,027,3gneW weiS oH

Notes:-

* Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Act, his spouse’s and his children's direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad by
virtue of Section 59 of the Act.

^ Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Act, his spouse's and his child’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad by virtue
of Section 59 of the Act.

 # Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the
Act.

## Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8 of the Act
and his spouse’s  direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad by virtue of Section 59
of the Act.

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT
1 APRIL 2019
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THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 1 APRIL 2019

%serahS fo .oNsredloherahS fo emaN.oN

45.14839,700,601dhB ndS elcyC naC1
79.4453,596,21gnoohC weiS oH2
90.4741,034,01ialakaniS L/A ymasaireP3
84.2744,923,6 gnoehC weiS oH4

5 RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
OSK Technology Ventures Sdn Bhd

5,896,950 2.31

6 Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn 131-113
Employees Provident Fund Board

5,392,350 2.11

7 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Equity Trust 

5,356,100 2.10

8 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Smart Treasure Fund

4,975,500 1.95

9 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Kidsave Fund

4,590,400 1.80

10 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Private Fund – Series 3 

4,137,600 1.62

54.1001,196,3 kcoH eewK oeT11
93.1005,445,3gneK eewhC oH @ eeL haM oH21
01.1593,108,2gneW weiS oH31
80.1000,667,2 gnoiS teuY gnoF41
80.1505,657,2eeK weiS oH51

16 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Smart Balanced Fund

2,590,900 1.02

17 Uob Kay Hian Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Teo Siew Lai

2,533,000 0.99

69.0006,934,2gneP iooK hauhC81
19 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for RHB Smart Income Fund
2,407,400 0.94

20 CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pembangunan Sumber Manusia Berhad

2,253,400 0.88

78.0007,612,2gnoK neuY eeL12
18.0058,960,2niL kI gnooS22
97.0591,520,2diaS niB iressuY32

24 Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Chai Yee Wah (M09)

1,630,000 0.64

25 HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For RHB Malaysia Dividend 
Fund

1,529,800 0.60

95.0000,005,1ymasaireP P/A inimahS assileM62
27 Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Yusseri Bin Said 
1,317,300 0.52

28 Cartaban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
RHB Trustees Berhad For Interpac Dana Safi

1,191,400 0.47

44.0000,521,1niY ekoY gnohC92
30 Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

CIMB Bank for Koh Kin Lip (MY0502)
1,110,000 0.43

20.28138,013,902latoT

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT
1 APRIL 2019
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THIS STATEMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply throughout this Statement:

“Act”

“AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”

“Bursa Securities”

“Code”

“Director”

“EPS”

“Issued Share Capital”

“Listing Requirements”

“Major Shareholder”

The Companies Act, 2016 as amended from time to time and any 
re-enactment thereof

Annual General Meeting

Articles of Association of Tex Cycle, as amended from time to time

The Board of Directors of Tex Cycle

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

Malaysian Code on Take-Over and Mergers, 2010

Shall have the same meaning given in Section 2 (1) of the Capital 
Markets and Services Act, 2007 and includes any person who is 
or was within the preceding six (6) months of the date on which 
the terms of the transaction were agreed upon, a Director of the 
Company, its subsidiary or holding company or a Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company, its subsidiary or holding company

Earnings Per Share

256,189,496 ordinary shares in Tex Cycle (including 1,533,550 
bought back and retained by the Company as treasury shares)

ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

A person who has an interest or interests in one (1) or more voting 
shares in the company and the nominal amount of that share, or the 
aggregate of the nominal amounts of those shares, is:

(a) equal to or more than 10% of the aggregate of the nominal 
amounts of all the voting shares in the company; or

(b) equal to or more than 5% of the aggregate of the nominal 
amounts of all the voting shares in the company where such person 
is the largest shareholder of the company.

For the purpose of this definition, “interest in shares” shall have the 
meaning given in Section 8 of the Act. A Major Shareholder includes 
any person who is or was within the preceding six (6) months of 
the date on which the terms of the transaction were agreed upon, a 
major shareholder of the Company or any other corporation which is 
its subsidiary or holding company

If you are in any doubt as to the course of action to take, you should consult your stockbroker, solicitor, accountant, 
banker or other professional adviser immediately.

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad has not perused the contents of this Share Buy-Back Statement (“Statement”) 
prior to its issuance and takes no responsibility for the contents of this Statement, makes no representation as to 
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from 
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this Statement.

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT
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“NA”

“Person Connected”

“Proposed Renewal of
Shareholders’ Mandate for Share
Buy-Back / Proposed Share Buy-Back”

“Purchased Shares”

“RM” or “Sen”

“Shares”

“Tex Cycle” or “the Company”

“Tex Cycle Group”

Treasury Shares”

“Statement”

Net Assets

In relation to a Director or a Major Shareholder, means such person 
who falls under any one (1) of the following categories:

(a) a family member of the Director or Major Shareholder;

(b) a trustee of a trust (other than a trustee for a share scheme 
for employees or pension scheme) under which the Director, Major 
Shareholder or a family member of the Director or Major Shareholder 
is the sole beneficiary;

(c) a partner of the Director, Major Shareholder or a partner of a 
Person Connected with that Director or Major Shareholder;

(d) a person who is accustomed or under an obligation, whether 
formal or informal, to act in accordance with the directions, 
instructions or wishes of the Director or Major Shareholder;

(e) a person in accordance with whose directions, instructions or 
wishes the Director or Major Shareholder is accustomed or is under 
an obligation, whether formal or informal, to act;

(f) a body corporate or its Directors which/who is/are accustomed or 
under an obligation, whether formal or informal, to act in accordance 
with the directions, instructions or wishes of the Director or Major 
Shareholder;

(g) a body corporate or its Directors whose directions, instructions or 
wishes the Director or Major Shareholder is accustomed or under an 
obligation, whether formal or informal, to act;

(h) a body corporate in which the Director, Major Shareholder or 
Persons Connected with him are entitled to exercise, or control the 
exercise of, not less than 15% of the votes attached to voting shares 
in the body corporate; or

(i) a body corporate which is a related corporation.

A proposal of the Company to grant its Directors a general mandate 
to exercise the authority to carry out a share buy-back of its own 
shares up to a maximum of 10% of its Issued Share Capital 
(excluding treasury shares)

Shares purchased pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back

Ringgit Malaysia and sen respectively

Issued ordinary shares in Tex Cycle

Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad (Company No. 642619-P)

Tex Cycle and its subsidiaries

The Tex Cycle Share purchased by the Company that can be 
retained, distributed as dividend or resold and/or subsequently 
cancelled

The Statement in relation to proposed renewal of authority to 
purchase its own shares by the Company

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT 
2018
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SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT 
2018

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF AUTHORITY FOR PURCHASE 
OF OWN SHARES BY THE COMPANY (“Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal”)

1.	 INTRODUCTION

	 On 21 March 2019, the Board had announced that the Company proposes to seek the approval of the 
	 shareholders to purchase its Shares of up to ten percent (10%) of its issued share capital at any point in time 
	 at the forthcoming AGM.
	
	 The Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back would become valid immediately upon 
	 the passing of the ordinary resolution and will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company  
	 unless renewed by ordinary resolution passed at that meeting or earlier revoked or varied by ordinary resolution 
	 of the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting or expiration of the period within which the next AGM  
	 after that date is required by law to be held, whichever occurs first.

	 The purpose of this Statement is to provide you with details of the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate 
	 for Share Buy-Back and to seek your approval for the Ordinary Resolution to be tabled at the forthcoming 
	 AGM.

2	 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK RENEWAL

	 The Board had, during the Fourteenth AGM held on 16 May 2018 obtained its shareholders’ approval to 
	 purchase up to 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as quoted on Bursa Malaysia 
	 Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) as at the point of purchase. In accordance with the Listing Requirements 
	 of Bursa Securities (“the Listing Requirements”) governing the purchase of own shares by a listed company, 
	 the aforesaid approval will continue in force until the conclusion of the forthcoming Fifteenth AGM of the 
	 Company.

	 The Board proposes to seek approval from the shareholders for a renewal of authorisation to enable Tex Cycle 
	 to purchase up to 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company as quoted on Bursa Securities as 
	 at the point of purchase.

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal shall be effective upon the passing of the resolution in the forthcoming  
	 Fourteenth AGM of Tex Cycle until:

	 (i)	  the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the general meeting at which such resolution was  
	   	 passed at which time it shall lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at that meeting, the authority is 
	    	 renewed, either unconditionally or subject to conditions;

	 (ii)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is required by law to be held; 
		  or

	 (iii)	    revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting, whichever is 
	    	 occur first.

2.1	 Maximum Number or Percentage of Shares to be Acquired

	 As at 1 April 2019, the total issued shares of Tex Cycle comprising 256,189,496 ordinary shares (“Tex Cycle 
	 Shares”).

	 Assuming no further Tex Cycle shares are issued, a total of up to 25,618,949 Tex Cycle Shares may be 
	 purchased pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal. 

2.2	 Treatment of Tex Cycle Shares Purchased

2.2.1	    In accordance with Section 127 of the Companies Act, 2016 (“the Act”), the Board may, at its discretion, deal  
	    with any of Tex Cycle Shares so purchased in the following manner:

	 (i)	 to cancel Tex Cycle Shares so purchased; or

	 (ii)	 to retain Tex Cycle Shares so purchased as treasury shares where the Board may:
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		  a.	 distribute all or part of the treasury shares as share dividends to the shareholders of Tex 
			   Cycle;
		  b.	 resell all or part of the treasury shares in accordance with the Listing Requirements;
		  c.	 transfer all or part of the treasury shares for purposes of or under an employees’ share 
			   scheme;
		  d.	 transfer all or part of the treasury shares as purchase consideration; or

		  in any other manner as may be prescribed by all applicable laws and/or regulations and guidelines 
		  applied from time to time by Bursa Securities and/or any relevant authority for the time being in force 
		  and that the authority to deal with the purchased Tex Cycle Shares shall continue to be valid until all  
		  the purchased Tex Cycle Shares have been dealt with by the Board.

	 2.2.2	 The Board intends to retain the purchased Tex Cycle Shares as treasury shares, or cancel the 
		  purchased Tex Cycle Shares or a combination of both.

3.	 RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK RENEWAL

	 The Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back will enable the Tex Cycle Group to  
	 utilise its surplus financial resources to purchase the Shares of the Company to stabilise the supply and demand  
	 of its Shares in the open market and thereby support its fundamental value. Should Tex Cycle Shares 
	 be cancelled, either immediately or subsequently after being held as Treasury Shares, the Proposed Renewal 
	 of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back is expected to improve the EPS of Tex Cycle in the Group and  
	 benefit the Shareholders of the Company.

	 The Purchased Shares, which are held as Treasury Shares may be realised with potential gain without 
	 affecting the total issued and paid-up capital of the Company. In the event the Treasury Shares are distributed  
	 as share dividends, it serves as a reward to the Shareholders of the Company.

	 The Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back is not expected to have any potential  
	 material disadvantage to the Company and its Shareholders, as it will be exercised only after in-depth  
	 consideration of the financial resources of the Tex Cycle Group and of the resultant impact on its Shareholders. 
	 The Directors in exercising any decision on the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy- 
	 Back will be mindful of the interest of the Company and its Shareholders.

4.	 POTENTIAL ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK RENEWAL

4.1	 Potential Advantages

	 The potential advantages of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal are as follows:

	 (i)	 Allows the Company to take preventive measures against speculations, particularly when 
		  its Tex Cycle Shares are undervalued which would in turn stabilise the market price of Tex 
		  Cycle Shares and hence, enhance investors’ confidence;

	 (ii)	 Allow the Company flexibility in attaining its desired capital structure in terms of the debt and 
		  equity composition and the size of equity; and

	 (iii)	 If the treasury shares are distributed as dividends by the Company, it may then serve to 
		  reward the shareholders of the Company.

4.2	 Potential Disadvantages

	 The potential disadvantages of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal are as follows:

	 (i)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal will reduce the financial resources of the Group and 
		  may result in the Group foregoing better investment opportunities that may emerge in future;  
		  and

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT 
2018
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	 (ii)	 As the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal can only be made out of retained profits of the Company, 
		  it may result in the reduction of financial resources available for distribution to shareholders in the  
		  immediate future.

		  Nevertheless, the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal is not expected to have any potential material  
		  disadvantage to the Company and the shareholders, as it will be implemented only after careful  
		  consideration of the financial resources of the Group and its resultant impact.

5.          FUNDING

	 The maximum amount of funds to be allocated by the Company for the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal  
	 shall not exceed the retained earnings of the Company.

	 Based on the latest audited financial statements of Tex Cycle as at 31 December 2018, the Company’s audited  
	 accumulated retained earnings is RM801,263.00. Meanwhile, based on the unaudited financial statements as  
	 at 31 December 2018, the Company’s unaudited accumulated retained earnings is RM801,263.00.

	 The funding for the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal will be made from internally generated funds of the 
	 Company. The Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal will reduce the cash flow of the Company by an amount  
	 equivalent to the purchase price of Tex Cycle Shares and the actual number of Tex Cycle Shares bought-back. 
	 Therefore, the Company will ensure that sufficient funds are available to effect the Proposed Share Buy-Back  
	 Renewal. There is no restriction on the type of funds which may be utilised for the Proposed Share Buy-Back 
	 Renewal so long as it is backed by an equivalent amount of the retained earnings of the Company.

6.           INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

	 None of the Directors, Substantial Shareholders and persons connected to the Directors and /or Substantial  
	 Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities) have any direct or deemed interest 
	 in the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back and resale of Treasury Shares 
	 (if any).

	 The effect of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority on the shareholdings of the Directors and Existing Major  
	 Shareholders of Tex Cycle based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and Register of Substantial  
	 Shareholders as at 1 April 2019 assuming the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority is carried out in full by Tex 
	 Cycle are as follows:

Directors’ Shareholdings 

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT 
2018

Before the Proposed Share Buy-Back After the Proposed Share Buy-Back
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Directors No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

%

Ho Siew 
Choong

12,695,354 4.955 106,428,388* 41.543 12,695,354 5.506 46.159

Periasamy
A/L 
Sinakalai

10,430,147 4.071 108,478,388^ 42.34 10,430,147 4.524 47.048

Ho Siew 
Cheong

41.379 6,773,447 2.938 106,007,938# 45.976

Ho Siew 
Weng

41.611 3,720,395 46.235

Ravindran
Markandu
Alagasan
A/L 
Varatharajoo

Chan Jee 
Peng

106,604,188##

6,773,447 2.644 106,007,938#

3,720,395 1.45

372,500 0.146 4,500### 0.002 372,500 0.162 4,500### 0.002

50,000 0.020 50,000 0.022-

- - - - - - - -

- - -

106,604,188##1.614

106,428,388*

108,478,388^
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	 Notes:-
	 *   Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies  
	    Act, 2016, his spouse’s and his children’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of 
	    the Companies Act, 2016.

	 ^  Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies 
	     Act, 2016, his spouse’s and his child’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of the 
	    Companies Act, 2016.

	 #   Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies 
	     Act, 2016.

	 ##    Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies  
	    Act, 2016 and his spouse’s  direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of the 
	       Companies 
	       Act, 2016.

	 ###  Deemed interested by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act, 2016 via his spouse’s direct  
	          shareholdings in Tex Cycle.

Substantial Shareholders’ Shareholdings 

	 Notes:-
	 *   Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies  
	     Act, 2016, his spouse’s and his children’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of 
	    the Companies Act, 2016.

	 ^   Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies  
	     Act, 2016, his spouse’s and his child’s direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of the 
	    Companies Act, 2016.

	 #  Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies 
	     Act, 2016.

	 ##    Deemed interested by virtue of his interests in Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Companies  
	          Act, 2016 and his spouse’s  direct shareholdings in Tex Cycle by virtue of Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies 
	       Act, 2016.

SHARE BUY-BACK STATEMENT 
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Before the Proposed Share Buy-Back After the Proposed Share Buy-Back
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Substantial

Shareholders

No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

% No. of
Shares

%

Can Cycle 
Sdn. Bhd.

106,007,938 41.379 -- 45.976

Ho Siew 
Choong

12,695,354 106,428,388* 41.543 12,695,354 106,428,388* 46.159

Periasamy
A/L 
Sinakalai

10,430,147 42.343 10,430,147 108,478,388^ 47.048

Ho Siew 
Cheong

41.379 6,773,447   45.976

Ho Siew 
Weng

3,720,395 41.611 46.235

106,007,938

106,604,188##

4.955

108,478,388^4.071

6,773,447 2.644 106,007,938#

1.452

5.506

4.524

2.938 106,007,938#

3,720,395 1.614 106,604,188##

- - -
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7.	 PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING SPREAD
	
	 As at 1 April 2019, the public shareholding spread of the Company based on the Issued Share Capital was 
	 43.97%. Assuming the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back of 10% of the total  
	 issued and paid-up share capital of the Company is carried out in full, and the number of Tex Cycle Shares 
	 held by the substantial shareholders, Directors and persons connected to the substantial shareholders and/or 
	 Directors remain unchanged, the public shareholding spread of the Company would reduce to approximately  
	 37.74%. However, the Company will ensure that it will not purchase its own Shares which will result in Tex 
	 Cycle’s public shareholding spread falling below the minimum requirement of 25%.

8.	 FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK RENEWAL

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal are presented below based on the assumption that  
	 the implementation of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal and the purchased Tex Cycle Shares are 
	 further to be cancelled.

	 8.1 Share Capital

		  Assuming the Proposed Renewal Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back is carried out in full  
		  by the Company, the maximum number of shares that the Company can cancel is limited to 25,618,949  
		  shares. The proforma effect on the issued and paid-up share capital of Tex Cycle of such a cancellation 
		  of shares is summarised below:

		  However, the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back will have no effect 
		  on the issued and paid-up share capital of Tex Cycle if all the Shares are to be retained as Treasury  
		  Shares, resold or distributed to the Shareholders.

	 8.2 NA and EPS

		  The Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back may increase or decrease 
		  the NA per Share of Tex Cycle depending on the purchase price in comparison to the NA per Share   
		  of  Tex  Cycle  at  the  time  that  the  purchase  is  made.  Assuming  Tex  Cycle  Shares purchased  
		  are cancelled, the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back will  reduce  the 
	  	 consolidated  NA  per  Share  if  the  purchase  price  exceeds  the  audited consolidated NA per Share  
		  at the time of purchase and conversely would increase the consolidated NA per Share if the purchase  
		  price is less than the audited consolidated NA per Share at the time of purchase.

		  If the purchased Tex Cycle Shares are kept as Treasury Shares, the NA per Tex Cycle Share would  
		  decrease unless the cost per share of the Treasury Shares purchased is below the NA per Share at  
		  the relevant point in time. This is due to the requirement for Treasury Shares to be carried at cost and  
		  be offset against equity, resulting in a decrease in the NA of the Company.

		  The effect on the EPS of Tex Cycle Group will depend on the purchase prices of the Shares, the  
		  opportunity cost and the number of Shares purchased.

	 8.3  Working Capital

		  The Working Capital of Tex Cycle Group will be reduced to the extent of the amount of funds utilised 
		  for the purchases of the Shares but is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Working  
		  Capital of Tex Cycle Group.

		  Similarly, the Working Capital of Tex Cycle Group will increase to the extent of the amount of funds 
		  obtained from the resale of the Shares so purchased which are retained as Treasury Shares.

Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital as at 1 April 2019

Less: Maximum number of Shares that may be cancelled

Reduced Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital in the event that the 
Purchased Shares are cancelled

No. of Shares

256,189,496

(25,618,949)

230,570,547
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	 8.4  Dividends

	 	 For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had declared an interim single-tier tax  
		  exempt dividend of RM0.006 per share on 13 June 2018 and paid on 18 July 2018. 

		  The Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back is not expected to adversely  
		  affect the Company’s ability to pay dividends because the amount of dividends to be paid will be  
		  less owing to a lesser number of Shares qualifying for dividends after the Shares Buy-Back regardless  
		  of whether the Shares so purchased are retained as Treasury Shares or are cancelled. However, if 
		  the Shares so purchased are retained as Treasury Shares, they can be used for subsequent payment  
		  of dividends in the form of share dividends.

9.	 IMPLICATIONS RELATING TO THE CODE IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED SHARES BUY-BACK

	 Based on the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 1 April 2019, the substantial shareholder of the  
	 Company, namely Can Cycle Sdn. Bhd. has a shareholding of 106,007,938 Tex Cycle Shares, through its 
	 direct shareholdings, representing approximately 41.38% equity interest in Tex Cycle. The Board does not 
	 anticipate any implication relating to the Code on Tex Cycle and its Shareholders in the event the Proposed  
	 Share Buy-Back Authority of up to ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up capital of the Company is 
	 carried out in full.

10.	 PREVIOUS PURCHASE, RESALE, CANCELLATION AND/OR TRANSFER OF TREASURY SHARES 
	 MADE IN THE PRECEDING TWELVE (12) MONTHS

	 Information on the Tex Cycle Shares purchased during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 is set out  
	 on page 72 and 73 of the 2018 Annual Report of the Company.

11.	 HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES

	 The monthly highest and lowest prices of Tex Cycle Shares as traded on Bursa Securities for the past 12  
	 months from April 2018 to March 2019 are as follows:-

2018
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
2019
January
February
March

High
RM

Low
RM

0.70
0.70

0.735
0.70
0.69
0.68
0.62
0.60

0.585

0.58
0.56

0.555

0.65
0.645

0.66
0.65

0.625
0.6

0.56
0.565

0.53

0.51
0.53
0.52
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Last transacted market price of Tex Cycle Shares on 20 March 2019

being the day prior to the date of announcement of the Proposed

Share Buy-Back.

Last transacted market price of Tex Cycle Shares on 5 April 2019

being the latest practicable date prior to printing of this Statement.

RM0.53

RM0.51

12.	 MAJOR SHAREHOLDER’S AND DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

	 Save for the proportionate increase in the percentage shareholdings and/or voting rights of the shareholders 
	 of the Company as a consequence of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal, none of the Directors and/ 
	 or Major Shareholder of Tex Cycle and/or persons connected to them, has any interest, direct and indirect, in 
	 the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal or resale of treasury shares, if any.

13.	 DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATION

	 The Directors, having considered all aspects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal, are of the opinion that  
	 the Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal is in the best interest of the Company. Accordingly, the Directors 
	 recommend that the shareholders of Tex Cycle vote in favour of the ordinary resolution pertaining to the  
	 Proposed Share Buy-Back Renewal to be tabled at the forthcoming Fifteenth AGM.

Appendix I

FURTHER INFORMATION

1.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 This Statement has been seen and approved by the Board of Tex Cycle who, individually and collectively, 
	 accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Statement and confirm that, after 
	 making all reasonable enquiries and to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the  
	 omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2.	 DOCUMENT FOR INSPECTION

	 Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of Tex Cycle at Level  
	 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, during normal business hours from the date 
	 of this Statement to the date of the Fifteenth AGM:-

	 (a)	 Constitution of the Company; and

	 (b)	 Audited consolidated financial statements of Tex Cycle for the financial years ended 31 December 
		  2017 and 31 December 2018.
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1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 together with the Directors’ and Audit Reports thereon.

Please refer to
Explanatory

Note 1

2. To approve the following payments :-

(a) Directors’ fees and allowances totalling to RM199,000.00 in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Ordinary
Resolution 1

(b) Directors’ fees and allowances to the Directors of up to RM300,000.00 from 1
January 2019 until the next Annual General Meeting.

Ordinary
Resolution 2

3. To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 80 of the
Company’s Articles of Association:-

(a) Mr. Ho Siew Choong Ordinary
Resolution 3

(b) Mr. Ravidran Markandu Ordinary
Resolution 4

4. To re-elect Mr. Chan Jee Peng who is retiring in accordance with Article 85 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Ordinary
Resolution 5

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Malaysia as the Company’s Auditors for the
ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary
Resolution 6

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:-

6. Authority to Issue and Allot Shares Pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies
Act 2016

Ordinary
Resolution 7

“THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”), Articles of Association of the
Company, ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(“Bursa Securities”) and the approvals of the relevant authorities, the Directors be and
are hereby authorised pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016, to issue
and allot shares in the Company at any time and upon such terms and conditions and
for such purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided
that the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution does not
exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company at the time of issue
AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the
listing of and quotation for the additional shares to be issued on Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall
continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company.”

Please refer to
Explanatory

Note 2

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Kenanga 
Room, Royal Selangor Yacht Club, Jalan Shahbandar, 42000 Port Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 15 
May 2019 at 10.30 a.m., for the following purposes:-

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS
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7. Authority for Mr. Ravindran Markandu to Continue in Office as Independent
Non-Executive Director

Ordinary
Resolution 8

“THAT pursuant to Practice 4.2 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance,
approval be and is hereby given for Mr. Ravindran Markandu who has served as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more
than twelve (12) years, to continue to serve as Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.”

Please refer to
Explanatory

Note 3

8. yranidrOkcaB-yuB erahS rof etadnaM ’sredloherahS fo laweneR desoporP
Resolution 9

“THAT subject to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”), the Company’s Articles of
Association, the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities (“AMLR”) and
all other prevailing laws, rules, regulations and orders issued and/or amended from
time to time by the relevant regulatory authorities, the Company be and is hereby
authorised to purchase and/or hold up to ten percent (10%) of the total number of
issued shares of the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”) as may be determined
by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon
such terms and conditions as the Directors of the Company may deem fit and
expedient in the best interest of the Company and an amount not exceeding the
retained profits of the Company, be allocated by the Company for the Proposed Share
Buy-Back.

Please refer to
Explanatory

Note 4

AND THAT upon completion of the purchase by the Company of its own shares, the
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to cancel such shares or
retain such shares as Treasury Shares or a combination of both. The Directors of the
Company are further authorised to resell the Treasury Shares on Bursa Securities or
distribute the Treasury Shares as dividends to the shareholders of the Company or
subsequently cancel the Treasury Shares or any combination of the three.

AND FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to
carry out the Proposed Share Buy-Back immediately upon the passing of this
resolution until:-

(a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at which time
the authority shall lapse, unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the
authority is renewed, either unconditionally or subject to the conditions; or

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting is
required by law to be held; or

(c) revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting

whichever occur first but not so as to prejudice to the completion of purchase(s) by the
Company before the aforesaid expiry date and to take all steps as are necessary
and/or to do all such acts and things as the Directors of the Company deem fit and
expedient in the interest of the Company to give full effect to the Proposed Share Buy-
Back with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, amendments and/or
variations as may be imposed by the relevant authorities.”

9. Proposed Adoption of New Constitution of the Company (“Proposed Adoption
of New Constitution”)

Special
Resolution

“THAT the existing Company’s Constitution be deleted in its entirety and that the new
Constitution as set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 23 April 2019 be and is
hereby adopted as the new Constitution of the Company.

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all such
acts and things as necessary and/or expedient in order to give full effect to the
Proposed Adoption of New Constitution with full power to assent to any conditions,
modifications, and/or amendments as may be required by any relevant authorities to
give effect to the Proposed Adoption of New Constitution.”

Please refer to
Explanatory

Note 5

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING

10. To transact any other business of the Company of which due notice shall be given in
accordance with the Company’s Constitution and the Companies Act 2016.

By Order of the Board
TEX CYCLE TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD

WONG YOUN KIM
Company Secretary

Kuala Lumpur

Dated this 23rd day of April, 2019

NOTES:

1. A member of the Company entitled to be present and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy/proxies, to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company
and need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person appointed by the Registrar of
Companies.

2. A member shall be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the same meeting.

3. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies
the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

4. If the appointer is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be executed under its Common Seal or under the
hand of its attorney.

5. Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for
multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), as defined under the Securities
Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt
authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

6. A proxy appointed to attend and vote in a meeting of the Company shall have the same rights as the
member to speak at the meeting.

7. The duly completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at HMC
Corporate Services Sdn Bhd, Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not
less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8. General Meeting Record of Depositors

For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company shall be
requesting the Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 55(3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association and Section 34(1) of the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, to issue
a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 9 May 2019. Only a depositor whose name appears on the
Record of Depositors as at 9 May 2019 shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy/proxies to
attend and/or vote in his stead.

EXPLANATORY NOTES ON SPECIAL BUSINESS 

1. Item 1 of the Agenda - Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year Ended 31 December
2018
The Audited Financial Statements are for discussion only as the approval of the shareholders is not
required pursuant to the provisions of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016. Hence, this Agenda
is not put forward for voting by the shareholders of the Company.

2. Ordinary Resolution 7 - Authority to Issue and Allot Shares pursuant to Section 76 of the
Companies Act 2016
The proposed Resolution 7 under item 6 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company,
from the date of the above Annual General Meeting, with the authority to issue and allot shares in the
Company up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company for
such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company. This authority,
unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.
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This general mandate is a renewal of the mandate that was approved by the Shareholders at the
Fourteenth Annual General Meeting held on 16 May 2018. The renewal of this general mandate is to
provide flexibility to the Company to issue new shares without the need to convene a separate general
meeting to obtain shareholders’ approval so as to avoid incurring cost and time. The purpose of this
general mandate is for fund raising exercises including but not limited to further placement of shares for
the purpose of funding current and/or future investment projects, working capital and/ or acquisitions. As
at the date of this notice of meeting, no shares have been issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted at the Fourteenth AGM of the Company.

3. Ordinary Resolutions 8 – Authority for Mr. Ravindran Markandu to Continue in Office as
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company Pursuant to the Malaysian Code On
Corporate Governance (“MCCG”)

Mr. Ravindran Markandu was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 1
March 2007 and has therefore served for more than twelve (12) years. However, he has met the
independence criteria as set out in Chapter 1 of the AMLR. The Board based on the review and
recommendation made by the Nomination Committee, therefore, considers him to be independent and
recommends that he should continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director, and pursuant to
Practice 4.2 of the MCCG, the Board will seek the approval of the shareholders at the Fifteenth Annual
General Meeting of the Company via two tier voting system. Further rationale for his retention as
Independent Non-Executive Director can be found on Page 56 of this Annual Report. 

4. Ordinary Resolution 9 - Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back

The proposed Resolution 9 under item 8 above is to seek the authority for the Company to purchase its
own shares up to 10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company on Bursa Securities. For
further information on the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back, please refer
to the Statement to Shareholders which is included in the Company’s 2018 Annual Report.

5. Special Resolution - Proposed Adoption of New Constitution of the Company

The proposed Special Resolution, if passed, will align the Constitution of the Company with the
Companies Act 2016 which came into force on 31 January 2017, the updated provision of the ACE
Marker Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and the prevailing laws, guidelines or
requirements of the relevant authorities, to render greater clarity and consistency throughout as well as to
enhance administrative efficiency.

Further details relating to this proposed resolution are set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 23
April 2019, which was circulated together with the Company’s 2018 Annual Report.

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. The Directors who are seeking re-election and/or continuing in office as Independent Non-Executive
Director at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company are :-

(a) Mr. Ho Siew Choong (Article 80)
(b) Mr. Ravindran Markandu (Article 80 and Practice 4.2 of MCCG)
(c) Mr. Chan Jee Peng (Article 85)

The profiles of the above Directors who are seeking re-election and/or continuing in office as
Independent Non-Executive Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors as disclosed on Page 3
and 4 of this Annual Report.

The details of the above Directors’ interest in the securities of the Company are stated on Page 158 of the
Annual Report.
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Tex Cycle Technology (M) Berhad

I/We ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..............
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of …………………………………………………………………………………………...…………………….………...
(FULL ADDRESS)

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…………..
being a member/members of TEX CYCLE TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD, hereby appoint the following person(s) or
failing him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy/proxies to vote for me/us on my/our behalf, at the
Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Kenanga Room, Royal Selangor Yacht Club,

 Jalan Shahbandar, 42000 Port Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Wednesday, 15 May 2019 at 10.30 a.m. and any
adjournment thereof:-

Name of Proxy, NRIC No. & Address No. of Shares to be
represented by Proxy1. Name :

NRIC No. :
Address : __________________

2. Name :
NRIC No. :
Address : __________________

TSNIAGA ROFSNOITULOSER.ON

1. Approval of the following payments :-

(a)
Directors’ fees and allowances amounting to RM199,000.00 for
the Directors in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2018

Ordinary
Resolution 1

(b)
Directors’ fees and allowances to the Directors of up to
RM300,000.00 from 1 January 2019 until the next Annual
General Meeting 

Ordinary
Resolution 2

2. Re-election of Mr. Ho Siew Choong
Ordinary
Resolution 3

3. Re-election of Mr. Ravidran Markandu 
Ordinary
Resolution 4

4. Re-election of Mr. Chan Jee Peng Ordinary
Resolution 5

5. Re-appointment of Messrs. Grant Thornton Malaysia  as Auditors Ordinary
Resolution 6

6. Authority to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section 76 of the
Companies Act 2016

Ordinary
Resolution 7

7. Authority for Mr. Ravindran Markandu to Continue in Office as
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ordinary
Resolution 8

8. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back
Ordinary
Resolution 9

9. Proposed Adoption of New Constitution of the Company Special
Resolution

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast on the Resolutions
specified in the Notice of Meeting. Unless voting instructions are indicated in the space above, the proxy will vote
as he/she thinks fit.

Number of shares

CDS A/C No.

Date

Signature Shareholder

NOTES:

1.	 A member of the Company entitled to be present and vote at the meeting is entitled to  
	 appoint a proxy/proxies, to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy may but need not be 
	 a member of the Company and need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor 
	 or a person appointed by the Registrar of Companies.

2.	 A member shall be entitled to appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote at the  
	 same meeting.

3.	 Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointments shall be invalid  
	 unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

4.	 If the appointer is a corporation, the Form of Proxy must be executed under its Common  
	 Seal or under the hand of its attorney.

5.	 Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the  
	 Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), 
	 as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 there is no limit  
	 to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of  
	 each omnibus account it holds.

6.	 A proxy appointed to attend and vote in a meeting of the Company shall have the same  
	 rights as the member to speak at the meeting.

7.	 The duly completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the  
	 Company at HMC Corporate Services Sdn Bhd, Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5, Bangsar  
	 South City, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for  
	 holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8.	 General Meeting Record of Depositors

	 For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company 
	 shall be requesting the Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd in accordance with Article 
	 55(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association and Section 34(1) of the Securities 
	 Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors 
	 as at 9 May 2019. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as  
	 at 9 May 2019 shall be entitled to attend this meeting or appoint proxy/proxies to attend 
	 and/or vote in his stead.

PROXY FORM



Please fold here

Please fold here

The Company Secretary

TEX CYCLE TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD (642619-P)
Level 2, Tower 1, Avenue 5

Bangsar South City
59200 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia

STAMP





TEX CYCLE TECHNOLOGY (M) BERHAD (642619-P)

Lot 8942, Jalan Besar Telok Gong, Kawasan Perindustrian Telok Gong, 42000 Klang, Selangor.
Tel :: 603 3134 1984 / 6     Fax :: 603 3134 1985
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